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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

ERH®E

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Kingston
Financial Group Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present
to you details of the Company’s (together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”) annual performance and business development for the
year ended 31 March 2020 (the “Year”).

The Group recorded a decrease of approximately 13% in total
revenue from approximately HK$3,039,228,000 for the year ended
31 March 2019 (the “Previous Year”) to approximately
HK$2,634,417,000 for the Year. Profit attributable to owners of the
Company was approximately HK$503,062,000, representing a
decrease of approximately 50% from approximately
HK$1,001,927,000 of the Previous Year. The year-on-year decrease
was primarily due to the impairment losses on advances to
customers in margin financing of approximately HK$1,122,991,000
(Previous Year: approximately HK$479,411,000).

The novel coronavirus (“COVID-19”) pandemic across the globe
has caused unprecedented impact on the global economy.
Compounded by uncertainties over US-China trade war, capital
market sentiment has been severely dampened. Hang Seng Index
slumped in March 2020, falling back to 2016 levels. In light of
volatile stock market in Hong Kong over the Year, the Group has
adopted a more prudent approach for the margin and IPO
financing business, segment revenue for the Year amounted to
approximately HK$2,012,156,000 (Previous Year: approximately
HK$2,168,514,000), representing for a decrease of approximately
7%. Securities brokerage, underwriting and placements segment
recorded a revenue of approximately HK$52,954,000 (Previous
Year: approximately HK$152,056,000), representing a significant
decrease of approximately 65% as compared to the Previous Year.

Kingston Financial Group Limited
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

ERHE

For the remaining year of 2020, despite the global outbreak of
COVID-19 and uncertainties over Sino-US relationship, it is
expected that the epidemic in Mainland China will gradually be
brought under control. Resumption of work and production has
begun in provinces and cities. The market is expecting continuous
recovery of economy in Mainland China with growth momentum in
the middle- and long-term remains unchanged. In addition,
unlimited quantitative easing imposed by the US Federal Reserve
has improved the adequacy of capital supply as well as liquidity.
Following the launch of fiscal relief measures by the Hong Kong
SAR Government, the advancement of the “Guangdong-Hong
Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area” (“GBA”) and the development of
the “Belt and Road Initiative”, we, being one of the leading brokers
in Hong Kong, will continue to review and adjust future plans, and
rigorously deploy and implement development plans in line with
market conditions, in order to grasp the opportunities arising from
the Hong Kong capital market and the GBA market.

As for Macau, it is still difficult to assess the negative impact of
COVID-19 accurately on Macau’s tourism and gaming industry.
However, the Group will continue to monitor the current travel
situation and market conditions and make corresponding
measures to sustain our business.

Last but not the least, | would like to take this opportunity to
express my heartfelt gratitude to our board members for leading
the Group through a challenging year. | would like to express my
highest gratitude to our management and staff for their unremitting
efforts. | would also like to sincerely thank all our valued customers,
service providers, and business partners as well as you, the
shareholder, for your unwavering support.

By Order of the Board

Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui
Chairman
Hong Kong, 30 June 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E & W LT

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Kingston
Financial Group Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to
announce the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2020 (the
“Year”).

OVERVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of a wide range
of financial services including securities brokerage, underwriting
and placements, margin and initial public offering financing,
corporate finance advisory, futures brokerage and asset
management services. The Group also provides gaming and
hospitality services in Macau.

Total revenue recorded by the Group for the Year amounted to
approximately HK$2,634,417,000, representing a decrease of
approximately 13% as compared to approximately
HK$3,039,228,000 for the year ended 31 March 2019 (the
“Previous Year”).

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the Year amounted
to approximately HK$503,062,000, representing a decrease of
approximately 50% as compared to approximately
HK$1,001,927,000 for the Previous Year. Basic earnings per share
for the Year was approximately HK2.90 cents, representing a
decrease of approximately 50% as compared to approximately
HK5.77 cents for the Previous Year. The year-on-year decrease
was primarily attributable to the impairment losses on advances to
customers in margin financing of approximately HK$1,122,991,000
(Previous Year: approximately HK$479,411,000).

UB Kingston Financial Group Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EI2E R AT

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Despite China and the United States formally signing phase one of
a trade agreement in January 2020, the novel coronavirus
epidemic (“COVID-19”) that broke out in early 2020 and then
evolved into a global pandemic has prompted countries to adopt
travel restrictions and other isolation policies such as “lockdown”,
causing unprecedented impact on the global economy. In order to
cope with COVID-19, Mainland China has implemented a series of
prevention and control measures, including extending the Lunar
New Year holidays nationwide and imposing certain degrees of
restrictions on travel and transportation, which have in turn posed
downward pressure on the economy. Gross domestic product
(GDP) fell by approximately 6.8% year-on-year in the first quarter
of 2020, marking the first ever quarterly contraction.

Due to the US-China trade war and COVID-19, capital market
sentiment has been severely dampened. Stock markets around the
globe have become considerably more volatile, with the US
markets triggering circuit breakers several times, and the Hong
Kong stock market weathering investor selloffs. Compounded by
the social movements and other uncertainties, every sector of the
Hong Kong economy have been heavily affected, and Hong Kong
stocks have been under repeated pressure. Hang Seng Index
slumped from its intraday high of 29,174 on 20 January 2020 to its
intraday low of 21,139 on 19 March 2020, falling back 2016 levels.
Under this challenging business environment, the Group’s
performance in the financial services segment was impacted.
During the Year under review, the Group’s revenue from its
financial services segment dropped by approximately 12% from
approximately HK$2,365,068,000 in the Previous Year to
approximately HK$2,076,043,000 in the Year.

The situation in Hong Kong and the outbreak of COVID-19 resulted
in a significant decrease in the number of tourists visiting Macau.
In light of COVID-19, casinos in Macau suspended operations for
15 days starting from February 2020 at the request of the Macau
government. During the first three months of 2020, gaming revenue
in Macau amounted to approximately MOP30.5 billion in
aggregate, representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately
60%. Revenue from our hotel and gaming businesses for the Year
dropped by approximately 19% and approximately 16%
respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E & W LT

Securities Brokerage, Underwriting and Placements
Securities brokerage, underwriting and placement services is one
of the main sources of income for the Group. The Group
undertakes the origination, structuring and marketing of
placements of equity and equity-related securities. It offers across-
the-board solutions to clients’ financing needs. The Group plays
significant roles as placing agents and underwriters for a wide
range of listed companies in different sectors.

In view of the US-China trade dispute, social instability in Hong
Kong and the COVID-19 epidemic, local economic activities have
come to a standstill. In the first quarter of this year, gross domestic
product (GDP) fell by approximately 8.9% year-on-year, the
biggest drop since 1974 when relevant statistics were available.
Investors remained extremely cautious and trading activities
shrank significantly.

During the Year, securities brokerage, underwriting and
placements segment recorded a revenue of approximately
HK$52,954,000 (Previous Year: approximately HK$152,056,000),
representing a significant decrease of approximately 65% as
compared to the Previous Year, and accounting for approximately
3% (Previous Year: approximately 6%) of the Group’s financial
service segment revenue and approximately 2% (Previous Year:
approximately 5%) of the Group’s total revenue.

Margin and IPO Financing

To complement the Group’s securities brokerage services, the
Group also provides margin and IPO financing services. Margin
financing is made available to clients who have opened margin
accounts with the Group to purchase securities with funds
borrowed from it to leverage their investments. IPO financing is the
grant of loans to clients for subscriptions of shares relating to IPOs.

08 Kingston Financial Group Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EI2E R AT

Due to the poor market sentiment and uncertainties about the
economic outlook, the Group has adopted a more prudent
approach for the margin and IPO financing business. During the
Year, total revenue amounted to approximately HK$2,012,156,000
(Previous Year: approximately HK$2,168,514,000), accounting for
approximately 96% (Previous Year: approximately 92%) of the
Group’s financial service segment revenue and approximately 76%
(Previous Year: approximately 71%) of the Group’s total revenue.
The stock market in Hong Kong was volatile over the Year.
Impairment losses of approximately HK$1,122,991,000 (Previous
Year: approximately HK$479,411,000) were made for advances to
customers in margin financing after reviewing the relevant margin
accounts portfolio and financial positions.

Other Financial Services — Corporate Finance
Advisory Services, Futures Brokerage and Asset
Management

Complementing the securities brokerage, underwriting and
placements, and margin and IPO financing, the Group also
provides a full range of financial services to its clients including
corporate finance advisory services, futures brokerage and asset
management.

The Group holds license under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance to engage in advising on corporate finance activities.
The scope of services provided includes advising on corporate
finance transactions, sponsoring IPOs and advising clients on deal
structure and financing strategies in the context of mergers and
acquisitions, equity fund raising exercises, takeovers and other
notifiable transactions.

The Group provides brokerage services for index futures trading
on the Futures Exchange. The Group also provides portfolio
management services under its asset management business.

Similar to other financial services of the Group, the performance of
this segment was impacted. Revenue for the Year amounted to
approximately HK$10,933,000 (Previous Year: approximately
HK$44,498,000), representing a significant decrease of
approximately 75%, which also accounted for approximately 1%
(Previous Year: approximately 2%) of the Group’s financial service
segment revenue and less than 1% (Previous Year: approximately
2%) of the Group’s total revenue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E & W LT

Goodwill Impairment Assessment

Goodwill has arisen since the Group’s acquisition of financial
services business in April 2011. An independent professional
valuer was engaged to perform impairment assessment on the
goodwill. It was found that the recoverable amount of all 3 cash
generating units, namely the Placing and Underwriting segment,
the Margin and IPO Financing segment and the Corporate Finance
segment, exceed their respective carrying amount. Under this
circumstance, no impairment on the goodwill is considered
necessary.

Hotel Business

The Group is also engaged in hotel business in Macau, which
comprises of hotel room rental, food and beverage operation
catering to international and local markets.

Due to the outbreak of COVID-19, visitor arrivals to Macau declined
rapidly since early 2020. This has had an adverse effect on the
Group’s hotel business in Macau. Revenue for hotel operations
plus food and beverage in total amounted to approximately
HK$176,093,000 (Previous Year: approximately HK$216,365,000),
representing a significant decrease of approximately 19% as
compared to the Previous Year. Hotel business contributed
approximately 32% (Previous Year: approximately 32%) of the total
hotel and gaming business revenue and approximately 7%
(Previous Year: approximately 7%) of the Group’s total revenue.

The average occupancy rates of the two hotels, namely Casa Real
and Grandview, were approximately 75% (Previous Year:
approximately 91%) and approximately 73% (Previous Year:
approximately 88%) respectively.

1 U Kingston Financial Group Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EI2E R AT

Gaming Business

The Group’s casino operation is run by the licence holder
Sociedade de Jogos de Macau, S.A. During the Year, the two
casinos consistently provided solid contributions to the Group.

Similarly, the Group’s gaming business in Macau has been
affected by the spread of the coronavirus. Gaming revenue
amounted to approximately HK$382,281,000 for the Year,
representing a decrease of approximately 16% as compared to
approximately HK$457,795,000 of the Previous Year. Gaming
revenue accounted for approximately 68% (Previous Year:
approximately 68%) of total hotel and gaming business revenue
and approximately 15% (Previous Year: approximately 15%) of the
Group’s total revenue.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group has 69 tables (2019: 64) in the
mass market halls, 15 tables (2019: 12) in the VIP rooms and 262
slot machines (2019: 274) and nil live baccarat machines (2019:
70) in the electronic gaming halls.

Other Income

Other income in the Year was due to a gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment of approximately HK$5,460,000, reversal of
over accrued lease expenses of approximately HK$11,407,000,
handling charges received from securities clients and other
miscellaneous income. The income increased by approximately
61% from approximately HK$25,603,000 in the Previous Year to
approximately HK$41,326,000 in the Year as there was no gain on
disposal of property, plant and equipment, reversal of over accrued
lease expenses in the Previous Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E & W LT

Written-off of intangible assets

The potash industry worldwide has been suffering from oversupply for
a number of years and the potash price has been under pressure. In
addition, the initial exploration and exploitation costs for potash mines
overseas were very high. Despite years of efforts made to identify
potential investors to invest in potash projects, aiming for realising or
otherwise disposing of such assets of those projects, no progress had
been made. As the total annual leasing charge of those leases
exceeded 4.4 million Canadian dollars, after taking into consideration
certain factors including, market conditions, cost of investments and
annual leasing charges, the Group ceased payment of leasing
charges and notice was received on 14 September 2018 that those
leases were cancelled. The Group’s intangible assets of
approximately HK$266,157,000 were therefore written off in the
Previous Year. Such mineral leases were non-core assets of the
Group and were not related to the principal lines of businesses of the
Group. The cancellation of those leases has no material adverse
impact on the overall financial and trading position of the Group.

Change in fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

During the Year, the Hong Kong equity market experienced
fluctuations. The Group recorded a fair value gain on financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss of approximately
HK$30,726,000 (Previous Year: fair value loss approximately
HK$26,116,000). As at 31 March 2020, the Group was holding
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of approximately
HK$138,374,000 (Previous Year: approximately HK$168,366,000)
in market value.

Inventories consumed

Inventories consumed represents the cost of guest supplies and
food and beverage consumed upon provision of accommodation
and catering services to the customers. During the Year, it
amounted to approximately HK$19,367,000 (Previous Year:
approximately HK$23,068,000), representing an approximately
16% decrease as the occupancies of the Group’s hotels dropped
due to the outbreak of COVID-19 in early 2020.

Staff costs

Staff costs amounted to approximately HK$253,500,000 (Previous
Year: approximately HK$253,327,000). The Group reviewed and
adjusted compensation and benefits to employee regularly to
match market rates. Packages commensurate with employees’
qualifications and experience were provided to retain good
employees in the Group as well as to hire potential talents.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Gaming commission

Gaming commission represented amount paid as an incentive to
attract customers. The commission paid by the Group was in line
with market level. The amount increased by approximately 30%
from approximately HK$94,010,000 in the Previous Year to
approximately HK$122,367,000 in the Year. The Group revised its
gaming commission policy in one of its VIP rooms which resulted
in a significant increase in gaming commission but significantly
reduced other operating expenses during the Year.

Broker Commission

Broker commission decreased approximately 65% from
approximately HK$20,096,000 in the Previous Year to
approximately HK$6,993,000 in the Year. The decrease was in line
with the decrease in revenue from securities brokerage,
underwriting and placement segment during the Year.

Interest expenses for securities brokerage,
underwriting and placements, margin and IPO
financing operations

The interest expenses decreased from approximately
HK$316,910,000 in the Previous Year to approximately
HK$270,419,000 in the Year, representing a decrease of
approximately 15% as less funding was required during the Year.

Impairment losses on advances to customers in
margin financing

Due to the volatility in the local stock market during the Year,
impairment losses of approximately HK$1,122,991,000 (Previous
Year: approximately HK$479,411,000) were made on some
particular clients with margin loan shortfalls on a prudent basis
after reviewing their margin accounts portfolio and financial
positions.

Administrative expenses and depreciation of
property, plant and equipment

Administrative expenses mainly included rent and rates, office
management fee, lease expenses, electricity and water, fuel and
etc.. During the Year under review, it amounted to approximately
HK$79,713,000 (Previous Year: approximately HK$112,638,000),
representing an approximately 29% decrease. Due to the adoption
of HKFRS 16, right-of-use asset and lease liabilities in relation to
the lease of the main office premises of the Group were recognised
under property, plant and equipment and lease liabilities
respectively during the Year. This resulted in an increase in
depreciation of right-of-use of asset and a similar decrease in
rental expenses during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses mainly represented operating expenses
for gaming facilities, promotion expenses and other hotel rooms.
During the Year, it amounted to approximately HK$74,717,000
(Previous Year: approximately HK$129,106,000) representing an
approximately 42% decrease. As mentioned above under gaming
commission, the Group revised its gaming commission policy in
one of its VIP rooms which effectively lowered the other operating
expenses during the Year.

Finance cost

During the Year, finance cost of approximately HK$39,148,000
(Previous Year: approximately HK$32,760,000) represented the
interest expenses on the amount due to a shareholder and lease
liabilities.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Financial service segments

The outbreak and continued spread of COVID-19 has added
uncertainties to the global and Hong Kong economies. In addition,
the United States may pursue claims against China and threaten to
impose tariffs on China under the pretext of COVID-19 damages,
further intensifying the tension between China and the United States.
However, countries have launched large-scale relief measures in
terms of fiscal and monetary policies to address the unexpected
economic and financial volatilities. Among them, the Federal
Reserve made two substantial interest rate cuts respectively on 3
and 15 March, and has announced measures such as unlimited
bond purchases.

The People’s Bank of China successively cut the reserve
requirement ratio in January, March and April of this year,
respectively to release market liquidity. At the same time, it
introduced more easing measures, including lowering the medium-
term lending facility (“MLF”) and introducing tax reduction and fee
reduction policies, to help small and medium-sized enterprises
survive the challenging times. With the COVID-19 epidemic
gradually brought under control, Mainland China has begun
resumption of work and production. As for the outlook for Mainland
China’s economic growth performance, it is estimated that gross
domestic product (GDP) will bottom out by the end of the year with
favorable expectations in the middle- and long-term.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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In addition, given the epidemic, fluctuation in the capital markets of
Hong Kong is inevitable. However, it is expected that the launch of
fiscal relief measures by the Hong Kong SAR Government, the
advancement of the “Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay
Area” (“GBA”) and the development of the “Belt and Road Initiative”
would bring more opportunities for Hong Kong as an international
financial hub. The Group will adhere to its prudent management
strategy and rigorously deploy and implement development plans in
line with market conditions, in order to grasp the opportunities
arising from the Hong Kong capital market and the GBA market.

Hotel and Gaming Segments

It is still difficult to assess the negative impact of COVID-19
accurately on Macau’s tourism and gaming industry. However, as
the epidemic gradually subsides, travelers from Mainland China
under the Individual Visit Scheme (IVS) are expected to return. The
improvement of infrastructure inside and outside Macau has made it
more convenient for tourists to visit Macau. In addition, Macau plans
to request the central government to expand the IVS to cover more
cities in Mainland China. The Group will regularly review its policy to
respond timely to the changing environment and sustain its growth.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
FUNDING

As at 31 March 2020, the total equity attributable to owners of the
Company and net current assets of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$21,772,853,000 (2019: approximately
HK$21,522,041,000) and approximately HK$8,399,385,000 (2019:
approximately HK$8,722,658,000) respectively. On the same date,
the Group had cash and bank balance of approximately
HK$192,918,000 (2019: approximately HK$1,086,523,000) and the
current ratio was approximately 1.9 (2019: approximately 1.7).

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had bank borrowings of
approximately HK$1,050,000,000 (2019: approximately
HK$2,420,000,000), amounts due to shareholders of approximately
HK$4,394,523,000 (2019: approximately HK$4,662,264,000), loan
from a related company of approximately HK$2,714,146,000 (2019:
approximately HK$4,033,342,000) and subordinated loans of
approximately HK$700,000,000 (2019: approximately
HK$700,000,000). On the same date, the net gearing ratio,
measured on the basis of total borrowings less bank and cash
balances over net assets, was approximately 40% (2019:
approximately 50%).

SN - AT A‘J$§%i§$‘ﬁ%ﬁ73§%ﬁfﬁ§)§
BT FERRRAHELDYBTRER

R [BERAER | AR[—F— E%J%;f?)i:a%
HABRBERERESRTPOTKEZHRE - KB
BRA-BEEFEDEERE RENBLRZE
FLAEmRZ ERE BIIEEFBEATHM
R E M5 R B

BIERERDE
TR ERE
2 B AT AR DAERET L
M- ERAMTEmT] ATE

BERFREMNEE XN BEF
HeBE = R 15 o 8 4%
k18 - RPN E

BRGERA  SIRRIGRMAEASE - BINE
PIFTEIFB kP RIEINBE RITTHMEE - KEEB
TFEHRREEE  WERBEEREEE ZIRE -
WHERHEBIER -

R-ZZE-_ZTF=ZA=+—8 A2 a%HE AR
BB RBEEFED R4 H21,772,853,000
BIL(ZF — LF 4921,522,041,000% 7T )
N #78,399,385,000/% 7L( = T — L F: &
87226580005%77:) BH  AEEZRS MR

WEER ) 192,918,000 TT( —F — L4 - iﬁ
1,086,523,000/%7z> R ERHAR19( =
—NF H17) e

RZZE-_ZTF=A=+—HB AEBEZRTEE
#3 /1,050,000,000% 7w( = F — L F: &
2,420,000,000% 7T ) B IR R K IEH B
4,394,523,000% w( = T — N F: &
4,662,264,000787T) * KE— %Eﬁ@ AZER
4 /2714,146,0007 w( = &
4,033,342,0007% 7T &?ﬁf@f%%’ﬂ%@ﬁ 700,000,000
BT (ZZ— N4 : #9700,000,000/87T) » BAH -
FEEBBHLRYBIO%R (T —NF:H
50%)  ZLLENBEERBTRBSEHRBEE
FERE

et teea 15



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The following table details the Cash and bank balances — general TR FINBEHRINRESEAE 2 REEIR
account and bank loan of the Group at the end of the reporting £ &R1T48% — —BEEP A RIBITE RS -
period denominated in original currencies:

2020
— 7 —% E
HKD CNY usD SGD GBP

BT AR% En HmER HE
(000) ) ) (000) (000)
(Fr) (Fr) (Fr) (Fr) (F8)

Cash and bank balances BeRBETE
— general account — —REK }5 166,327 9,118 173 63 3 14,980
Bank loan RITER 1,050,000 - - - = =

Cash and bank balances Be KRBT

— general account ——REF 1,053,814 2,648 448 118 3 24,646
Bank loan BITER 2,420,000 - - - - -
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES &,mﬁﬁ
Details of contingent liabilities of the Group as at 31 March 2020 $%IEA_ E_EFE=A=+—H2ZHARBEF
are set out in Note 45 to the consolidated financial statements. BEA R A VIS RERMIFTEALS ©
CAPITAL STRUCTURE B4

During the Year, no material fluctuation was noted on the RARFEE » RATERGERBI EEARE -
Company’s capital structure.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS BEAREE

At 31 March 2020, the Group had capital commitments of R-ZE-ZTHF=F=+—H AEERWNEHE
approximately HK$2,395,000 (2019: approximately BB 2 BAREENF2,3950008L(ZF—N
HK$14,770,000) in respect of acquisition of plant and equipment. F 1 #914,770,00087T) ©
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK1 cent (2019: HK1.5 cents) per share for the year ended 31
March 2020 (“Final Dividend”), amounting to approximately
HK$173,645,000 (2019: approximately HK$260,467,000). The
proposed Final Dividend is subject to approval by the shareholders
of the Company (the “Shareholders”) at the AGM and a resolution
will be proposed to the Shareholders for voting at the AGM. If the
resolution for the proposed Final Dividend is passed at the AGM,
the proposed Final Dividend is expected to be paid on 22
September 2020 to the Shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on 8 September 2020.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For ascertaining the Shareholders’ right to attend and
vote at AGM
Latest time to lodge transfers 4:30 p.m. on
21 August 2020 (Friday)
11:00 a.m. on
25 August 2020 (Tuesday)
24 August 2020 (Monday) to
27 August 2020 (Thursday)

Latest time to lodge proxy form

Book close date

Record date 27 August 2020 (Thursday)

AGM 27 August 2020 (Thursday)

For ascertaining the Shareholders’ entitiement to the
proposed Final Dividend
Latest time to lodge transfers 4:30 p.m. on
4 September 2020 (Friday)

7 September 2020 (Monday) to
8 September 2020 (Tuesday)

Book close date

Record date 8 September 2020 (Tuesday)

Final Dividend expected
payment date

22 September 2020 (Tuesday)

In order to qualify for the right to attend and vote at the AGM and
for the proposed Final Dividend, all transfers accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office, Tricor
Abacus Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong before the above latest time to lodge transfers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate revenue from sales of goods or rendering of
services during the year ended 31 March 2020 attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers were less than 30% of the Group’s
total revenue from sales of goods or rendering of services. The
aggregate purchases during the year ended 31 March 2020
attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers were less than
30% of the Group’s total purchases.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2020, the Group employed a total of approximately
825 (2019: approximately 880) staff. The total staff cost for the Year
was approximately HK$253,500,000 (Previous Year: approximately
HK$253,327,000). The employees’ remuneration, promotion and
salary adjustment are assessed based on their work performance,
working and professional experiences and the prevailing market
condition.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had pledged marketable
securities of approximately HK$3,117,000,000 (2019:
approximately HK$6,748,981,000) pledged to the Group by margin
clients, and certificates of deposit of approximately HK$93,980,000
(2019: approximately HK$93,930,000) to secure certain banking
facilities provided to the Group.

In addition, the Group’s term loans are secured by:

—  property mortgage of leasehold land and buildings, with a
carrying amount of approximately HK$2,100,000,000 as at 31
March 2020 (2019: approximately HK$2,300,000,000);

—  shares of two subsidiaries of the Company;

— corporate guarantee provided by a subsidiary of the
Company;

— a charge of bank accounts provided by two subsidiaries of
the Company; and

— a charge over income and receivables arising from the
business operations of two subsidiaries of the Company,
which engaged in the principal activities of hotel and gaming
segments.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

There was no material acquisition nor disposal conducted by the
Group during the Year.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risk and uncertainty facing the Group is the market
economy of China, Hong Kong and the surrounding regions as
significant changes in their economic conditions will have
significant impact on China and Hong Kong’s stock market, as well
as Macau’s tourism.

Due to the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic since the early of
2020, countries across the globe are taking unprecedented
measures to combat the spread of the virus. Restriction on non-
essential travel, transportation, traveler quarantine measures and
even “lock down” policies impacted the global economy badly.
Investment sentiment in the capital has been dampened. Visitation
to Macau and its gross gaming revenue recorded very substantial
decrease when compared to the same period in the previous year.
This has and will continue to impact the Group’s contribution from
its business in Macau.

Other risks include credit risks, market risks, liquidity risks and
interest rate risks. The Group has been adopting prudent risk
management policy to mitigate exposure to various risks.

RISK MANAGEMENT

COVID-19

The COVID-19 pandemic may continue to have an adverse effect
on the group’s operating results from business in Macau and it is
uncertain when this will end. However, the Group will continue to
observe the current market situation and make corresponding
measures to sustain our business.

Credit risk

The Group’s Risk Management Committee has put in place credit
management policies and procedures which cover the examination
of the approval of clients’ trading and credit limits, approval and
review of the margin lending ratio of individual stock, monitoring of
credit exposures and the follow up of credit risks associated with
overdue debts. Day-to-day credit monitoring is performed by the
Group’s Credit and Risk Control Department in accordance with
the policies and procedures approved by the Risk Management
Committee with toleration and exception reports reviewed by
Responsible Officers and senior management of the Group as well
as by the Risk Management Committee at regular meetings.
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Market risk

If the market value of a margin client’s portfolio falls below his
margin loan amount and the margin client fails to meet margin
calls, the Group will be exposed to the risk that the margin loan
being delinquent. Similarly, if the value of the underlying products
of a client’s futures contract fluctuates such that the outstanding
balances in his account falls below the required maintenance
margin level, the Group may suffer loss if the client’s account
incurs loss even after liquidation of the open position. The
management of the Group keeps close monitoring of the market
condition so that immediate precautionary measures will be taken
to reduce such risk that the Group may encounter. Follow up
actions such as reducing the margin ratio for the pledged
securities and requiring clients to top up their position would be
taken if considered appropriate.

Liquidity risk

As part of its ordinary brokerage activities, the Group is exposed to
liquidity risk arising from timing difference between settlement with
clearing houses or brokers and clients. The goal of liquidity
management is to enable the Group to adequately fund such
business commitments as well as to comply with relevant financial
resources rules applying to various licensed subsidiaries. To
address the risk, the Group’s Accounts Department and the senior
management will review and monitor the Group’s liquidity position
on daily basis to ensure the availability of sufficient liquid funds. In
addition, the Group has also put in place stand-by banking and
other facilities in order to meet any contingency in its operations.
The management believes the Group’s working capital is adequate
to meet its financial obligations.

Interest rate risk

The Group charged interest on its margin clients on the basis of its
cost of fund plus mark-up. Financial assets such as margin loans
and deposit with banks are primarily at floating rates. Financial
liabilities such as bank loans are primarily at floating rates. The
Group income and operating cash flows are not subject to
significant interest rate risk.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

As the Group’s hotel revenues are mostly denominated in Macau
Patacas (“MOP”), and given the exchange rate of MOP has been
fairly stable, its exposure to exchange rate risk is considered to be
limited.

The Group’s financial services businesses and gaming revenue
are mainly denominated in Hong Kong Dollars and hence no
significant exchange rate risk is identified.

TREASURY POLICY

The Group may invest its surplus funds or funds not designated for
specific purpose or funds designated for specific purpose but
application of which is not immediately required (collectively “the
Group’s Funds”) in the form of short term (i.e. less than one year)
and liquid stocks through investing the Group’s Funds in diversified
portfolio of investments products including listed or unlisted
securities, unit trust funds, or such other investments as the Board
of the Company, or such committees or person as the Board may
authorize, may decide from time to time so as to preserve the value
of the Group’s Funds and/or achieve capital appreciation.

REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
meets the external auditors at least twice a year to discuss any
areas of concerns during the audits. The Audit Committee reviews
the interim and annual reports before submission to the Board. The
Audit Committee focuses not only on the impact of the changes in
accounting policies and practices but also on the compliance with
accounting standards, the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) and the legal requirements in the review of the
Company interim and annual reports. The Group’s annual results
for the year ended 31 March 2020 have been reviewed by the
Audit Committee.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2020, there were no purchases,
sales or redemption of the Company’s listed securities by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group had complied with all code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) during the year ended 31 March
2020.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors by Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set
out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Upon enquiry by the
Company, all of the directors of the Company have confirmed that
they have complied with the required standards set out in the
Model Code during the year ended 31 March 2020.

By order of the Board

Chu Yuet Wah
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 30 June 2020
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The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report
in the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Good corporate governance has always been recognised as vital
to the Group’s success and to sustain development of the Group.
We commit ourselves to a high standard of corporate governance
as an essential component of quality and have introduced
corporate governance practices appropriate to the conduct and
growth of the business of the Group.

The Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules sets out the
principles of good corporate governance (the “Principles”) and two
levels of corporate governance practices:

(a) code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) which listed issuers
are expected to comply with or to give considered reasons
for any deviation; and

(b) recommended best practices (the “Recommended Best
Practices”) for guidance only, which listed issuers are
encouraged to comply with or give considered reasons for
deviation.

The Company has applied the Principles and the Code Provisions
as set out in the CG Code and complied with all the Code
Provisions. It also put in place certain Recommended Best
Practices as set out in the CG Code.

The Company periodically reviews its corporate governance
practices to ensure that these continue to meet the requirements of
the CG Code, and acknowledges the important role of its Board in
providing effective leadership and direction to the Company’s
business, and ensuring transparency and accountability of the
Company’s operations.
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The key corporate governance principles and practices of the
Company are summarised as follows:

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Board provides leadership, approves policies, strategies and
plans, and oversees their implementation to further the healthy
growth of the Company, in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholder”).

The Board takes responsibility for all major matters of the
Company, including: the approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, financial information, appointment of the
director(s) of the Company (the “Director(s)”) and other significant
financial and operational matters.

All of the Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information as well as the advice and services of the Company
Secretary, with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all
applicable rules and regulations are followed.

Each of the Director is normally able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expense, upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and the
senior management. The delegated functions and work tasks are
periodically reviewed by the Board. Approval has to be obtained
from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by
the abovementioned officers.

The Board has the full support of the senior management to
discharge its responsibilities.

Composition

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of
skills and experience desirable for effective leadership of the
Company and independence in decision making. The Board
currently comprises 7 members, consisting of 4 Executive
Directors and 3 Independent Non-executive Directors.

Kingston Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2020
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The Board comprises the Directors as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui (Chairman)

Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah (Chief Executive Officer)*
Mr. Chu, Kingston Chun Ho#*

Mr. Ho Chi Ho

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lau Man Tak (Chairman of Audit Committee and Member of
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee)

Ms. Lo, Miu Sheung Betty
(Chairman of Remuneration Committee and Member of
Audit Committee and Nomination Committee)

Mr. Chiu Sin Nang, Kenny (Chairman of Nomination Committee and
Member of Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee)
(appointed on 29 August 2019)

Dr. Wong Yun Kuen
(retired on 29 August 2019)

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing
Rules from time to time.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
at least three Independent Non-executive Directors with at least
one Independent Non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The number of Independent Non-executive
Directors also represented at least one third of the members of the
Board.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
Independent Non-executive Director of independence pursuant to
the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
independent Non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing
Rules.

* Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah is the spouse of Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui.

# Mr. Chu, Kingston Chun Ho is the son of Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui

and Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah.
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Mr. Lau Man Tak is a Non-executive Director, chairman and
substantial shareholder of REF Holdings Limited (“REF”), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. The
Group entered into certain connected transactions (“Connected
Transactions”) with REF and its subsidiary during the year under
review. Details are set out in Note 47 to the consolidated financial
statements. Mr. Lau does not have any management role in the
Company and its subsidiaries since his appointment. He has
expressed his willingness clearly to exercise independent
judgement and has been giving objective views to the Company.
There is no evidence that the Connected Transactions, given its
immateriality, has an unfavourable influence on his independence,
the Board is satisfied that, as proven by the valuable independent
judgement and advice given by Mr. Lau over the years, Mr. Lau
has the required character, integrity, independence and
experience to perform the role of an Independent Non-executive
Director. The Board is not aware of any circumstances that might
influence Mr. Lau in exercising his independent judgement and
therefore believes he is still independent.

Mr. Lau Man Tak has served the Board for more than nine years.
Mr. Lau does not have any management role in the Company and
its subsidiaries since his appointment. He has expressed his
willingness clearly to exercise independent judgement and has
been giving objective views to the Company. There is no evidence
that length of tenure has an unfavourable influence on the
independence of long-serving Non-executive Directors. The Board
is satisfied that, as proven by the valuable independent judgement
and advice given by Mr. Lau over the years, Mr. Lau has the
required character, integrity, independence and experience to
perform the role of an Independent Non-executive Director. The
Board is not aware of any circumstances that might influence Mr.
Lau, in exercising his independent judgement and therefore
believes he is still independent.

In accordance with bye-law 87(1) of the Bye-laws, Mr. Chu Nicholas
Yuk-yui, Mr. Ho Chi Ho and Mr. Lau Man Tak shall retire from office
at the 2020 AGM and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election.
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The Independent Non-executive Directors bring a wide range of
business and financial expertise, experiences and independent
judgement to the Board. Through active participation in Board
meetings, taking the lead in managing issues involving potential
conflict of interests and serving on Board Committees, all
Independent Non-executive Directors make various contributions
to the effective direction of the Company.

Appointment and Succession Planning of Directors
The Company has established formal, considered and transparent
procedures for the appointment and succession planning of
Directors.

The term of office for each of Executive Directors and Independent
Non-executive Directors is the period up to his retirement by
rotation and re-election at annual general meeting of the Company
in accordance with the Company’s bye-laws.

All Non-executive Directors have executed a letter of appointment
with the Company for a term of one year which commenced on 1
April 2020, and subject to compliance with relevant requirements
of the Listing Rules, and will continue thereafter until terminated by
either party by giving not less than three months’ written notice.

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws, any of the Director so
appointed by the Board shall hold office only until the following
annual general meeting (“AGM”) and shall then be eligible for
re-election at that meeting.

BUFNTESTARBRZEG LU BERNZ N

K REERREHBUIE - ZRER2EE
EZRed ERESNEENGEHRZME L

BXEER TRBEFZES  2RBULIFHN
TEFHUARBZABIIHELZHER -

ESZRERMEEE
ARBICREFREREEFTERIEN -
RN BEERE IR ©

i
&

RBEARBZAFME - BRITESRIBILIEH
%?%%Zfiﬁﬁﬁﬁzﬁiﬁﬁiﬁﬂﬂﬁsﬁt C R
RABRAFRGEREE -

ERIPTEFCHEARARIIZERE B
Z_TENA-ARERY—F ABTLETRA
Z?FEF%%E ]I#H\/Jé?iiti,dl EEEM—
HELTPR=ERA 2 EEBMTALL -

REBARRZ B RUEEEEREEZE
MESE THEZERETZERAFTAE (TR

HAFAZD AL MERBEFEEERELE
IREBIT o

SRLSHERMERA

- —ERFF & 27



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

JJ:_ULHr/\D 315& =

At each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time being shall
retire from office by rotation.

In January 2019, on the recommendation of the Nomination
Committee, the Board has approved and adopted the revised
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee in light of the
amendments of the CG Code, and the same are published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Board also
approved the adoption of the Board Diversity Policy in August
2013. The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Training for the Directors

In case there is any newly appointed of the Director, he/she will be
provided an induction so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and
that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and the relevant regulatory requirements.

All of the Directors have provided records of the training they
received to the Company. The trainings included attending experts
briefings, seminars, and conferences, reading materials relevant to
the business, corporate governance and directors’ duties.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing
briefing and professional development to the Directors whenever
necessary. In February 2020, the Company has organised a
training session to all of the Directors conducted by qualified
professionals on topics of “Economic Substance Update”. All of
the Directors attended that session.
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Board Meetings

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals for reviewing and approving the
financial and operating performance, and considering and
approving the overall strategies and policies of the Company. The
Board is also responsible for determining the policy for corporate
governance and performed the duties under the terms of reference
in code provision D.3.1 of Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules during
the year.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, 6 full Board meetings and 1
general meetings were held. The individual attendance record of
each of the Director at the Board meeting and general meeting
during the year ended 31 March 2020 is set out below:

EZRER

ERREEHERE
EEREBFRIBTHARAERER  aRAME
FEIT U RMER B REERRBAREE
RAERRBREBRBEREEK - FRAEERTA
A I E R EERBUR NI B R AP 8% 14 57 Rl
XD31REZHERTREZHE

HE_Z_ZF=A=+—HILFE KXRAY
BUOANNEEREER —ABRERAE -BE-ZT
—EF-A=T-HILFE ZEERESERY
B MRRARE 2 EAHE R SEEHINNT

Attendance Attendance
at Board at general
Name of the Directors meetings meeting
HE HE
EEpR EEREIXNE BREASRH
Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui KRBT E 6/6 1/1
Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah FTHELL 6/6 1/1
Mr. Chu, Kingston Chun Ho REERE 5/6 1/1
Mr. Ho Chi Ho AESRE 6/6 /1
Mr. Lau Man Tak Bk 6/6 1/1
Ms. Lo, Miu Sheung Betty BT 6/6 1/1
Mr. Chiu Sin Nang, Kenny HERE A
(appointed on 29 August 2019) (RZE-—NFNAZTHhBEZME) 2/2 -
Dr. Wong Yun Kuen =REEELT
(retired on 29 August 2019) (RZZE—NEFENAZTHIAEMR) 3/4 1/1

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are
normally made available to the Directors in advance. Notices of
regular Board meetings are served to all of the Directors at least
14 days before the meetings.
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For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable notice is
generally given. Board papers together with all appropriate,
complete and reliable information are sent to all of the Directors at
least 3 days before each Board meeting or committee meeting to
keep the Directors apprised of the latest developments and
financial position of the Company and to enable them to make
informed decisions. The Board and each of the Director also have
separate and independent access to the senior management
whenever necessary.

All of the Directors have been provided with monthly updates by
the Group’s management, giving a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group’s performance, position, recent
developments and prospects in sufficient detail to keep them
abreast of the Group’s affairs and facilitate them to discharge their
duties under the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules.

The Company Secretary of the Company is responsible for keeping
minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft
minutes are normally circulated to the Directors for comment within
a reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is open
for the Directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction,
which involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder
or the Director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a
duly convened Board meeting. The Company’s Bye-laws also
contains provisions requiring the Directors to abstain from voting
and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving
transactions in which such the Directors or any of their associates
have a material interest.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
The Company fully supports the division of responsibility between
the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer to
ensure a balance of power and authority. The positions of the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by Mr. Chu,
Nicholas Yuk-yui and Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah respectively.

Their respective responsibilities are clearly defined and set out in
writing. The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for
the effective functioning of the Board in accordance with good
corporate governance practice. With the support of the senior
management, the Chairman is also responsible for ensuring that
the Directors receive adequate, complete and reliable information
in a timely manner and appropriate briefing on issues arising at
Board meetings.
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The Chief Executive Officer focuses on implementing objectives,
policies and strategies approved and delegated by the Board. She
is in charge of the Company’s day-to-day management and
operations. She is also responsible for developing strategic plans
and formulating the company practices and procedures, business
objectives, and risk assessment for the Board’s approval.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee,
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All
Board committees of the Company are established with defined
written terms of reference which are available on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

All the members of the three Board committees are Independent
Non-executive Directors. The Board committees are provided with
sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors (including one Independent Non-executive Director who
possesses the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise). None of
the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the
Company’s existing auditing firm.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(a) To review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the qualified
accountant, compliance officer or external auditors before
submission to the Board.

(b) To review the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their fees
and terms of engagement, and make recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditors.

(c) To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures.
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Due to the amendments to the CG Code, the terms of reference of
the Audit Committee has been amended in March 2016 and
January 2019.

The Audit Committee is also responsible for performing the
corporate governance duties which include: (i) to develop and
review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance; (i) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior management;
(iii) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (iv) to develop,
review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance (if any)
applicable to the Directors and employees; and (v) to review the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

The Audit Committee held 5 meetings during the year ended 31
March 2020. During the year under review, work performed by the
Audit Committee included (i) reviewing the audited annual results
and the unaudited interim results of the Group; (ii) reviewing the
compliance and internal audit reports on adequacy and
effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems,
and the compliance and corporate governance issues of the
Group; and (iii) discussing with external auditor the audit planning
work (including the nature and scope of the audit and reporting
obligations) in respect of the audit of the annual results of the
Group.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The Audit Committee has not taken a different view from the Board
regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of
external auditors.

The Company’s final results for the year ended 31 March 2020
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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The individual attendance record of each of the Director at the HE-ZZ_TEFE=A=+—HILFEE KEFFRQ
Audit Committee meeting during the year ended 31 March 2020 is FEiZEB@@H 2 AAHFELEEHIT ¢
set out below:
Attendance
at Audit
Committee
Name of Audit Committee Members meetings
HE
EREES
EREESRERR =P
Mr. Lau Man Tak B m A 5/5
Ms. Lo, Miu Sheung Betty EW LT 5/5
Mr. Chiu Sin Nang, Kenny SR A
(appointed on 29 August 2019) (RZB-NENAZTHLAEZE) 3/3
Dr. Wong Yun Kuen (retired on 29 August 2019) &E#B (R -Z—NAFENA -+ N BET) 2/2
Remuneration Committee FMEEE
The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include HMWEESTFBEIZBEIERFTNBRREEAR
making recommendations on and approving the remuneration ZERESHEIEAS ZHMESELED LEM -

policy and structure and remuneration packages of the Directors
and the senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that none of the
Director or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/
her own remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by
reference to the performance of the individual and the Company
as well as market practice and conditions. The Remuneration
Committee has assessed the performance of Executive Directors
and reviewed the terms of service contract of the Directors.

The Remuneration Committee normally meets for reviewing the
remuneration policy and structure and determination of the annual
remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and the senior
management and other related matters. The human resources
department is responsible for collection and administration of the
human resources data and making recommendations to the
Remuneration Committee for consideration. The Remuneration
Committee shall consult the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company about these recommendations on
remuneration policy and structure and remuneration packages.
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During the year under review, work performed by the
Remuneration Committee included (i) assessing performance of
Executive Director and senior management and, where applicable,
approving their terms of services including the Directors’ fees and
the emoluments of Executive Directors; and (ii) reviewing and
determining on policy and structure of the remuneration package
of the Directors and senior management.

The remuneration packages of the Board for the year ended 31
March 2020 had been reviewed by the Remuneration Committee
and approved by the Board by taking into consideration factors
such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment,
responsibility, market conditions elsewhere in the Group and
desirability of performance-based remuneration. Details of the
remuneration of each of the Directors for the year under review are
set out in Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Remuneration Committee met twice during the year ended 31
March 2020 and reviewed the existing remuneration policy and
structure of the Company and remuneration packages of the
Directors and the senior management. The attendance record is
as follows:

REBEFER  FMEESET 2 THERREG)
RATEERSRERBABZRE - X (WER)
WERSEZRBER(BREFVERRITESRZ
@H%)' Ly hETEERRRERARLZ
BN B BUR R A8 o

HE-_ZT-_ZF=-FA=1+—HULFEZEEZRH
MEBCHFMEESFL R - WEESHI
B EBEREEBEZERE MAILBARINZ
e BERAZEBEBE AEEHEHMH@
TS ERARBRBES Z HFHEST AT - §
EENDEFEZTHNFBINGEETBHRRERM
16 °
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Attendance at
Remuneration

Committee

Name of Remuneration Committee Members meetings

HE

FMEESE

FHEESRERSE BRRE

Ms. Lo, Miu Sheung Betty EWIE T 2/2

Mr. Lau Man Tak Bkt 2/2
Mr. Chiu Sin Nang, Kenny M= a

(appointed on 29 August 2019) (RZZE—NFNAZTNLAEZE) -

Dr. Wong Yun Kuen (retired on 29 August 2019) EHE#EBH L (R_Z—NLFN\A T NLBEMT) 2/2
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The remuneration of the members of senior management by band
for the year ended 31 March 2020 is set out as below:

Remuneration bands (HK$)
Frif48 5 (B 7T)

Nil to 1,000,000

£ % 1,000,000

HE—
BIIE] 5

Eff\i A=+—HIEFE  &EMAE
SREREKEFMHEINNT

Number of

person

1,000,001 to 2,000,000 1,000,001 2 2,000,000 1
3,000,001 to 4,000,000 3,000,001 £ 4,000,000 3
Nomination Committee RBREEES

The Nomination Committee is responsible for formulating nomination
policy for the consideration of the Board and to implement the
Board’s approved nomination policy. During the nomination process,
the nomination committee will consider the competency,
independency (in case of Independent Non-executive Director),
conflict of interests, capacity, management experience of a
candidate which makes him/herself suitable for the role as a director
and make recommendation to the Board for consideration.

The Nomination Committee is also responsible for monitoring the
appointment and succession planning of the Directors and assessing
the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee reviewed the Board’s structure, size
and composition regularly to ensure that it has a balance of
expertise, skills and experience appropriate to the requirements of
the business of the Company. Where vacancies on the Board exist,
the Nomination Committee will carry out the selection process by
making reference to the skills, experience, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of the proposed
candidates, the Company’s needs and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations. An external recruitment agency may
be engaged to carry out the recruitment and selection process
when necessary.

REZEGEEHNEREBRABREEZREZRE -
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The Nomination Committee shall have the following responsibilities:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

36

to review the structure, size and diversity (including without
limitation, gender, age, cultural, educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members
of the Board and select or make recommendations to the
Board on selection of individual nominated for directorships.
In identifying suitable individuals, the Committee shall
consider individuals on merit and against the objective
criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board;

to assess the independence of the Independent Non-
executive Directors;

to review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, and
review the measurable objectives that the Board has set for
implementing the Board Diversity Policy, and the progress on
achieving the objectives; and make disclosure of a summary
of the Board Diversity Policy and its review results in the
Corporate Governance Report annually;

to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or reappointment of the Directors and succession planning
for the Directors, in particular the Chairman and the Chief
Executive, taking into account the Company’s corporate
strategy and the mix of skills, knowledge, experience and
diversity needed in the future; and

to determine and disclose the policy for nomination of the
Directors, as appropriate. This includes the nomination
procedures and process and criteria to select and
recommend candidates for directorship set out in the
nomination policy.
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REESZIEFRBIERE

Summary of procedures and process for nomination of the
Directors:

(i)

When there is a vacancy, the Board will evaluate the
structure, size and diversity, such as gender, age, cultural

BHR=E ﬁ?%%'%%%ﬂﬂﬁé%%)%zm
B ABEKEZTTE(IER - Fik

and educational background, ethnicity, professional ERHBBEES  TEik - FELR - e %D
experience, skill and knowledge, and length of service of the HBNIRGEEEIE)  WHEEHEBZEHRE

Board, and identifies special requirements, if any, for the
vacancy (e.g. independence status in the case of an
Independent Non-executive Director).

Prepare job descriptions for the particular vacancy.

Identify eligible candidates through internal resources,
recommendations by other Board members, senior
management and business partners, and external
recruitment agency.

(i)

(iii)

FRER(NAE) (PIIBIIFRTESTAR
BIANTL) -

P E SRR R BRI AR ©

BEAMER HHEZERNE sRERE

B MEBAERBH AR LRI RIS T
EERERIKEA -

(iv) Arrange interview(s) and testing, if necessary, with each  (iv) EAZZEERT iﬁjk mﬂ%ﬁ/\tﬁﬁ
candidate to evaluate whether he/she fulfills the required AL P HAERES T FIEREAE -

(vii)

criteria.

Conduct background check on information provided by the
candidate.

Convene meeting with Board members and other

(vi)

BEREAFMRRNESER -

EBEREBAT - Eﬁ%%%ﬁié&ﬁﬁlﬁ\

professionals of the Group, if necessary, to discuss and MmEZATE Eﬂggﬁuﬁﬁﬁ G R A
assess the suitability of the candidate and where appropriate, SE@E 0 W@ ﬁ,m?ﬁﬂ%%%ktljgm °

make recommendations to the Board.

Convene a Board meeting to discuss and elect for nomination
or appointment.

(vii)
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Summary of criteria for nomination of the Directors:

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(vi)

(vii)

(vii)

38

age, skills, knowledge, experience, professional and
educational qualifications, background and other personal
integrity of the candidate;

the Company’s need;

effect on the Board’s composition and diversity;

time commitment of the candidate to carry out his/her duties.
For example, to consider the number and nature of offices
held by the candidate in public companies or organizations;
conflicts of interest, if any;

independence of the candidate;

in the case of a proposed re-appointment of an Independent
Non-executive Director, the length of service with the

Company; and

other relevant factors.
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During the year under review, work performed by the Nomination
Committee included (i) determining the policy for the nomination of
the Directors with reference to the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board; (ii)
reviewing the annual confirmation of independence submitted by
the Independent Non-executive Directors and assessing their
independence; and (iii) reviewing policy concerning diversity of
board members. Nomination procedures and the process and
criteria will be determined by the Nomination Committee should
there be the need to select and recommend candidates for
directorship.

Details of the duties and powers of the Nomination Committee are
set out in its written terms of reference which has been revised
during the year under review in line with the amendment of the CG
Code on board diversity and are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee met twice during the year ended 31
March 2020. The attendance record is as follows:

Name of Nomination Committee Members

REZEGNREHSR

Ms. Lo, Miu Sheung Betty EY L

Mr. Lau Man Tak B rEk A

Mr. Chiu Sin Nang, Kenny HHERE LA
(appointed on 29 August 2019)

Dr. Wong Yun Kuen (retired on 29 August 2019)

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the required standard set out in the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules. Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
requirements of the Code of Conduct and the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 March 2020.
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The Company also has established written guidelines on no less
exacting than the Model Code (the “Written Guidelines”) for
securities transactions by the employees who are likely to be in
possession of inside information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Written Guidelines by the
employees was noted by the Company.

RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITORS’
REMUNERATION

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required under
the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2020.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements
is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 99 to 107.

The remuneration paid/payable to the external auditors of the
Company in respect of audit services and non-audit services for
the year ended 31 March 2020 amounted to HK$2,500,000 and
HK$338,000 respectively.

An analysis of the remuneration paid/payable to the external
auditors of the Company is set out below:

Types of Services

PR35 5 5

AARFERTREAAANEEE BEFE
FEERS  TUBRBRETENDET Y E
miEal ((2mEalD) -

RAFYWEEREEERE@EIESIZIEN -

RV BHRRcEEREBAMHE

EERABENFERTHEE AR BEE MR
HRE EMRREEMEERE 2 EMEER
E o FRSE - JEW R B 2R o

EEHARSAEEIREARRBE T _TF
ZA=ZT-BULEFEZRBEE -

ARBIMNEZBMMGAMBHRRFRAEE LR
B SN E 99 E 107 B 2 B B -

BHE-_Z-_FFE=-A=+—HIEE RBEEK
BRGSO FEA AR R INEZ A 2 &
3 Bll & 2,500,000 7 7T M 338,000 78 7T °

BN/ BRNARBINERBEME 2 AT

Amount of

Fees Payable/Paid
B BENERSE
(HK$)

(BL)

Audit Services FENZIRTE 2,500,000

Non-audit Services IEEAZ IR

1. Tax services 1. BERE 124,000

2. Others 2. Ht 214,000
338,000

Total A&t 2,838,000
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard the
Shareholder’s investments and Company assets, and reviewing
the effectiveness of such on an annual basis through the Audit
Committee. Such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The Company has maintained a tailored governance structure with
defined lines of responsibility and appropriate delegation of
responsibility and authority to the senior management.

Management currently takes the view that there is no immediate
need to set up an internal audit function in light of the size, nature
and complexity of the Group’s business. The need for an internal
audit function will be reviewed from time to time.

During the year under review, the Board, through the Audit
Committee and an independent accounting firm, has conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group, which covered all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls, with a
view to ensuring that resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions are adequate. The
board is satisfied that the risk management and internal control
systems within the Group are effective and adequate.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Chun Lam was appointed as Company Secretary of the
Company on 4 April 2014. During the year, Mr. Chan Chun Lam
has undertaken sufficient hours of relevant professional training in
compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDER’S RIGHTS

Procedures by which the Shareholders may convene
a special general meeting

The Board may whenever it thinks fit call special general meetings,
any of the Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the company secretary of the Company, to require a
special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such requisition the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionists themselves
may do so in accordance with the relevant provisions of the
Bermuda Companies Act.

Proceedings at general meetings

The rights of the Shareholders and the procedures for demanding a
poll on resolutions at the Shareholders meetings are contained in the
Company’s bye-laws. Details of such rights to demand a poll and the
poll procedures are included in all circulars to the Shareholders and
will be explained during the proceedings of meetings.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. The
Chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee or in their
absence, other members of the respective committees, and where
applicable, the independent Board committee, are available to
answer questions at the Shareholders’ meetings.

Separate resolutions are proposed at Shareholders’ meetings on
each substantial issue, including the election of individual
directors.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior management
maintains regular dialogue with institutional investors and analysts
to keep them abreast of the Company’s developments.

Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an informative and timely
manner. To promote effective communication, the Company also
maintains a website at http://www.kingston.com.hk, where
extensive information and updates on the Company’s business
developments and operations, financial information and other
information are posted.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

This is the fourth year for Kingston Financial Group Limited
(hereinafter referred to as the “Company”) along with its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) to present its Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG”) Report (the “Report”). This Report fulfils the
requirement of the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting Guide”) under Appendix 27
of the Main Board Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Exchange”). It
complies with the “Comply or Explain” and “Recommended
Disclosure” provisions of the ESG Reporting Guide.

This Report covers the Group’s operations and management
business that contribute to material ESG impacts, including the
financial service segment in Hong Kong, as well as two hotels in
Macau namely, Casa Real Hotel Macau (“Casa Real”) and
Grandview Hotel Macau (“Grandview”). As the financial services
segment imposes relatively minimal social and environmental
impacts compared to the hotel and gaming services segment, this
Report will mainly disclose its performance on the Group’s
governance aspects. The hotel casino operations are not under
our direct operational control, we collaborate closely with our
licensed partner Sociedad de Jogos De Macau. We shall consider
expanding our reporting scope as we strive to provide more
comprehensive reporting on our material ESG impact. Unless
otherwise specified, this Report covers our financial year from 1
April 2019 to 31 March 2020 (the “Reporting Period”).

The Group intends to disclose our sustainability vision,
management approach, policies, performance, and future plans
that are material to our operations. All information is compiled and
published based on existing policies, practices, and official
documents or reports in an accurate and transparent manner.

Our board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company is responsible
for the overall leadership in formulating ESG strategies and this
Report. The Board is committed to managing and improving our
sustainability performance by publishing ESG Report on an annual
basis. Relevant information and data for each business operation
are limited to material environmental and social aspects and key
performance indicators (“KPI”).
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The Group adheres to the following Reporting Principles: RREBREATRERR -

Materiality
EEN

This Report is structured based on the materiality of respective sustainability issues as
assessed and identified by the Board. The issues that are most significant to the Group in
terms of its environmental and social impacts are considered material, hence discussed in
this Report. The Board and the management will regularly review these sustainability issues
in order to ensure such issues are being addressed.
ABERBEEFRATENABNERAIREERZENEZLEMNAES - REHRENHE
WFE HEESEZNHBERGEAERN  AREAREETIR EFRNEEE /T H
FERELNRBERRZE  UERELEBSUMA -

Quantitative

1t

This Report discloses material environmental and social KPIs within the operations of the
headquarter office in Hong Kong, as well as the operations of Casa Real and Grandview.
This allows us to review and evaluate the effectiveness of our ESG policies and
management systems.

TMERBEBRIEE  URERSENMEREENERIRBNEEKPI - SEBMIREH
FEMAERMNRE L ENERRRNERE RGN BLIL -

Consistency

-3

This Report is prepared with consistency in terms of methodology with the ESG report from
1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019 (the “Previous Year”) which is in accordance with the
Exchange’s ESG Reporting Guide. For factors leading to meaningful comparison in specific
environmental KPI(s), please refer to the “Performance Data Summary”.

L BREBERMOCESGHES) GBS FR_FE—N\FHA—RAE=T—NF=A=1+—
BUEFNHBORE HENERRE N - AR TKPINEERLEEER  F2H BN
HiEmE] -

We welcome reader feedback on the Report and our approach to  HFIEGHE E AR E LB PO E3E 7 &
sustainability. Please share your views with us by post to our main  I2HER - FH S ERIRE/[F B 99FRAF IR
office in Hong Kong on 72/F, The Center, 99 Queen’s Road DL\72BMEBSAREEEARMOZENEL-F
Central, Central. For further information regarding our corporate B FIMEE AMPKERIBN TS - FLHHM
governance and financial performance, please refer to our Annual B —Z - ZFFFHR -

Report 2020.
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ABOUT THE GROUP BERAEE

The Company has principally engaged in the provision of a wide AAGTFERELZ TN RBE  BEFEK
range of financial services, including securities brokerage, #2 - &ELRE - RESLREXAAHEE ([IPO))
underwriting and placements, margin and initial public offering gi& - PEM KRN - HELCLULREBESER
(“IPO™) financing, corporate finance advisory services, futures 7 o REBMEKKCLEBTRIEWEE X
brokerage and asset management services. The Group’s business ¥R - ZFE R REBERFL - EANATE
operations also include the provision of hospitality and gaming Ef#HX#EHT  BETEAMIEZE -

services in Macau. Throughout the years, the Group has

experienced tremendous growth with the support from our clients,

guests and partners.

Business Structure EBRE
Financial Services Segment SRR EL

Securities Brokerage, Underwriting and Placements

The Group has successfully undertaken the roles of placing agents and underwriters for listed companies in a wide
range of industries. We undertake the origination, structuring and marketing of placements of equity and equity-related
securities, as well as to provide across-the-board solutions to clients’ financing needs.
AEFEEKIABBRITEN LT ARBRERERENBHENAE - HFIRIERENRRERBEESRLENHER - BB E
I UATPHREFTIRHEZENRRTE -

Margin and IPO Financing

RELRIPORE

To complement the Group’s securities brokerage services, the Group provides credits in these transactions. We have
made available to clients who have opened margin accounts with the Group to purchase securities with funds borrowed
from it to leverage their investments. We also grant loans to them for subscriptions of shares relating to an IPO.
REEEALLRT  FAEEEELERFR TR EERD - RMARAEREERIRESRFPOTPREHAEN  UER
EREABSBERS  #TEERE - HfIEHENR  HEFRBER MBEEHEBEIRND -
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Other Financial Services
H{h & BRI

The Group engages in advising on corporate finance transactions, sponsoring IPOs and advising clients on deal
structure and financing strategies in the context of mergers and acquisitions, equity fund raising exercises, takeovers
and other notifiable transactions. We provide brokerage services for index futures trading on the Futures Exchange,
including After Hours Futures Trading where clients can place orders online and through telephone. We have also made
portfolio management services available.

AEBRBERERS REBEBRXAFEEUNLHE RAEEEY KRBLMEBATABIINRSHEBRER
BEEFRHEN - RARREBRRAEENEHRAETRELLERS  BREAERT - ST EF A ARBHE LMNE;
B RMERRHREESEERE -

Hotel and Gaming Services Segment BIE RIEEREES

Casa Real Hotel Macau and Grandview Hotel Macau
ERESEBEREREAIE

The Group is engaged in the hotel business at Casa Real and Grandview, Macau, which comprises hotel room rental,
and food and beverage operation catering to international and local markets. We also provide gaming services at our
two hotel casinos run by the license holder Sociedade de Jogos de Macau, S.A.. The operations include tables in the
two mass market halls, VIP rooms and slot machines in the electronic gaming halls.

AEENEFIZERERBERFEREE 22X BRABEEREMEEERER  REBBRELABTS - REFEAR

PIER R BR ARG B MAIAE S - R AREBIREIEYIRY - £HREMETS - ERBAORE  RAET
R T -
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THE GROUP’S SUSTAINABILITY

Following our core values — “Professionalism”, “Engagement” and
“Integrity” in making business decisions, we strive to leverage our
efforts in pursuing sustainability. The Group has established our
sustainability strategy during the Reporting Period that addresses
four major aspects in managing our ESG-related performance,
namely, — Our Operations, Our People, Our Environment, and Our
Community.

The Board acknowledges its overall responsibility to oversee the
sustainability strategy and to ensure its alignment with the Group’s
policies. The Board is committed to evaluating, determining, and
managing sustainability risks by observing regulatory requirements
and industry practices, regularly reviewing our policies, and
maintaining close communication with our stakeholders so that
economic, environmental and social values are well-balanced.

Stakeholder Engagement

The Group attaches importance to communicating with
stakeholders, whose views are essential in guiding the Group to
formulate our sustainability strategy, as well as to improve our
performance. We strive to maintain close relationships with our key
stakeholders through various engagement channels. Through
regular stakeholder engagement, we are able to identify relevant
ESG-related issues that are most material to the Group. It also
allows us to gain a comprehensive understanding of their views
and expectations, in order to enhance our sustainable practices
moving forward.

AEBOAEHEERE

EITREREN  RMERE S [28] A
[BIE) RO EE  ABDERTHERRE - #
HHR - AEEEHEHTRERERE 8
SHIABELERRMERS  LEREAT
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Shareholders and

Clients and Guests
Investors =R A S;TaI"
5 8
REMREE
Annual general meetings Customer satisfaction survey Departmental meetings
Annual and interim reports Social media platforms Performance appraisals
Correspondences On-site customer services Notice boards
FEBRRRE BEMEERE gk
FEMPHRE HRERF e BRETHE
(= B 5% P R AR® NER

Suppliers Media Regulatory Bodies
HED e EEHE
Meetings

Tender notices

Inspections and feedback Press conferences Compliance reports
Correspondences Interviews Correspondences
S TERhE AHRmE
BizEREERA &m I
BREFREE
i
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Determining Materiality

The Group has commissioned an independent sustainability
consultancy to assist the management of the Group in reviewing
ESG-related policies and identifying material ESG issues based on
their importance to stakeholders and the Group’s business
development. Through peer benchmarking and understanding the
Group’s ESG policies and practices, management has confirmed
that the material environmental and social aspects and issues are
in line with those from the Previous Year.

Based on the significance of the 4 material ESG issues identified
for both financial services and hotel and gaming services in the
following table, this Report is structured in which the four major
aspects follow the order of “Our Operations”, “Our People”, “Our
Environment” and “Our Community”.

Financial Services Segment

B AR S X H

HEEEM

AEBEZABUAFEERBBAR HHYHE
SEFHRE L RERBEBERE  AREH
HENEMEBEEBRRNERNE - BHERN

RE HEkERHEE - BBRAEXITRTHAR
SENRE HEREAHRRNER A£ECD
EREZRENAERRMEEE F—H -

ATHEZESBREMEE R ELREHNE
RERE @ NEARRE  AREREEERE
ATHRMEE] - [HFIHBET] - [RFRRE]
TR P | BEF -

Hotel and Gaming Services Segment

BER ERRIEES

Business Conducts and Ethics

BRI RMNER

Corporate Culture
PEXE

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

BTIREAER

Customer Engagement and Satisfactions

EF2EEMHEE

We acknowledge the importance of stakeholders’ views in forming
the foundation of our sustainability strategy. Moving forward, the
Group shall continue to maintain its reporting efforts in
communicating our initiatives and performance on these aspects
in an accurate and honest manner. We shall also consider
expanding our ESG-specific stakeholder engagement exercise to
guarantee a holistic view in the future. Where appropriate, we will
also disclose our future plans and strategies in the pursuit of
improvement.

Quality of Service and Rooms

RBMEFE =

Use of Resources
AIREMR

Business Conducts and Ethics

BERITRMER

Employment Development and Training
MEERMEI

BIFTRAROENE R AR A FHEERRAH
EMTEMEE - REAKR  AEERKEEER
ST AEEMBEN D BB FEENTT
PRI - WRFE e RERBBZHNE
HFITMEZZ BINRE2E - URBRERKE —
E2EAERRE o AIEMFFA] - ISR EE R R A
R B S SRR

EHNELREBEFRA
ig_giiﬁ
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OUR OPERATIONS

The Group believes accountable business practices form the
foundation of sustainable development for a company. We are
dedicated to seizing and responding to the risks and opportunities
arising from the Group’s operations and enforcing strong corporate
governance by sound business conduct and supply chain
practices. We hope to delight our guests at Casa Real and
Grandview through creating engaging experiences with assurance
to their health and safety during their stay.

Risk Management

From the global trade war, political unrest to the COVID-19
pandemic outbreak, significant changes in economic and social
conditions have significantly impacted Hong Kong’s stock market
and Macau’s tourism. Together with management, the Audit
Committee has reviewed and discussed internal control and risk
management matters faced and anticipated by the Group. We are
committed to safeguarding its assets, shareholders investments,
as well as managing non-financial risks.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The US-China Trade War, Brexit and Social Unrest

EMNEE
AEBERERETNRETREARAIFERR
WELD - BABNEENEEAEELEET LR
FE R A8 - BB RIFERTT A M EEIE
FHOEREREBROERER - HAFERER
SEEEMEREENEAEEEDER  BF
EANEAEHENRENZ 2

Rk EE

HREREHE - BUABEM2019BRHBFRIE
B KEMHE SRR BLEBAE L BEER
MARFIREXEREATE - ERLZEECHE
EEERI L mARE M ESMBRNAEE
EREBRERER - RIOBHREARENEE
BERIRE - AR EE ISR -

FERBMNIRERE

FXEZE  RKERERSELSHE

Amidst the ongoing US-China trade war with the uncertainty over Brexit, global economic growth has slowed down.
The dampened growth has resulted in curbed trading activities, poor market sentiment, as well as investors’ cautions
towards the future economic outlook during the Reporting Period. Coupled with the impacts under months of social
unrest in Hong Kong, these have created uncertainties over our financial services segment, as well as tourism industry
in Macau.

HEEFEEHE - M EEBRBATEARE - @ 2REBEERNE - ERMESBREHNRSEH I NG - 28
MIHRAR  URKREEHRRKLEBEARSEEREE - N EXEEHARCGBHENTE - REMO SRR A KRFIH
IREFEFS IR T TEE M o
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Our Response

In light of weakened market sentiment and uncertainty about the
economic outlook, the Group has adopted a more prudent
approach in margin and IPO financing business. We also
anticipated a recovery of investment sentiment upon the positive
progress of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area
development, which will present ample opportunities for the
financial services industry. We also believe that the opening of the
Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macao Bridge, together with other new resorts
and entertainment facilities, will assist a healthier development of
Macau’s economy.

Moving forward, the Group shall continue to adopt a responsive
approach to implement action plans that align with market
situations. We will regularly review our policies to respond timely to
the changing environment and sustain our growth.

EM =

HRMISRSKS - N ELERN S THA A&
BaERESMIPOMEXR LRMESBHEE -
BMEFEERNERBEROERSREARER
R RERBRBESTHKAEKE - LAERELS
RO KK F 8 A S Aty 2 37 60 JR R R AN 4R SE 3R 5
B RABRFIR AR R ER

RERN - AEBEBBETETIBHRR - Bk
SUHITH B E RN R - T
(EMIBE - AR S -

The Outbreak of COVID-19

2019 BRI E R BREE

Due to the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic since the early of 2020, countries across the globe are taking
unprecedented measures to combat the spread of the virus. Restriction on non-essential travel, transportation, traveler
quarantine measures and even “lock down” policies impacted the global economy badly. Visitation to Macau and its
gross gaming revenue recorded very substantial decrease when compared to the Previous Year. This has and will
continue to impact the Group’s contribution from its business in Macau.

HRBE ZZ_ZFYEECOVID19ZEFEUAR - 2HZBODRIAIIARR 2 BieE RS EE o FFVE2 MR RAER
w o IR EE [ BEREREXEDIREE - B —FEARL - BPIREARREBEYARGHRGEEE
REkiE - FiiERE BT SEEH A EERERMIER 2 EREKTE -
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Our Response

The Group remains vigilant on the health and safety risks and
continues to focus on maintaining good personal and
environmental hygiene in our daily operations. We have
implemented measures at our offices. Masks are distributed to
staff. Prior to entrance to the office area, staff and visitors are
required to undergo body temperature testing with forehead digital
thermometer at reception. We also requested our staff to self report
to the Human Resources department who had paid visits to
Mainland China in the previous 14 days, or who have had close
contact with people from Mainland China.

At our hotels, we have implemented procedures that aim to
safeguard the health of our guests and staff amid the pandemic.
Meetings were held to remind our staff the importance of
reinforcing such procedures. For more information regarding our
procedures to prevent COVID-19 outbreak at our hotels, please
refer to “Guest Health and Safety” and “Occupational Health and
Safety” under sections “Our Operations” and “Our People”.

We understand the COVID-19 has brought detrimental impacts to
both our financial service segment, as well as hotel and gaming
services segments. The Group believes with the trust, support and
cooperation from our stakeholders, we can navigate through the
hard times together.
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Other Financial Risks and Our Approach HittemERERMOVEER

Credit Risks
FEERK

Market Risks
s E

Liquidity Risks
REE S ER

Interest Rate Risks
F == 2 b

We have put in place credit management policies and procedures that examine approval of
clients’ trading and credit limits, review margin lending ratio of individual stock, monitor
credit exposures, and follow up with risks associated with overdue debts. Our Credit and
Risk Control Department performs daily credit monitoring under the supervision of our Risk
Management Committee.

BHPEHEEEERERRLIET  UBERFPRHNEERENELL %@IEJH&@E’J%%
TEELH - B “1*?%)1 IR B HER AR o BPIEEAAMERIE S FBPIERRE?

ZEENEET ETREEEEE-

To this end, we rely on our management to maintain close monitoring of the market
condition to deploy precautionary measures in a timely manner. Follow up actions such as
reducing the margin ratio for the pledged securities and requiring clients to top up their
positions would be taken if considered appropriate.

FEHE  RMNEEBBERERMSBEN  UWEERKKINENER - AEEREE RSN
REURETS - R ENRBF2RESLLEREREFPMHE -

The Group reviews and monitors our liquidity position on a daily basis to ensure the
availability of sufficient liquid funds. We have also set up stand-by banking and relevant
facilities for contingency purposes and the adequacy to meet our financial obligations.
AEEGRERKEZEMRBESN  UHEREEEHFAANRSES - RMEET
WRRITRBERE - UWETR2H  TREREABITHMBEE -

As we charge interest on our margin clients, financial assets and financial liabilities are
primarily at floating rates. Thus, our income and operating cash flows are not subject to
significant interest rate risks.

HAFIARE 2 2 P YR ALE ﬁﬂéﬁ?& BEFERIBMETL - Bt - BFIEKRA
itk ﬁfﬁimif&m%xiﬁflﬁﬂ
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Business Ethics

At the Company, we maintain our business integrity by strict
prevention of cases relating to corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud,
money-laundering, and violation of confidentiality. We consistently
enhance our decision-making mechanism and strengthen
transparency under listed company structure to safeguard the
long-term interests of all stakeholders. We also expect our staff to
uphold their duty of care to report any violations through
confidential channels.

Anti-Corruption

The Group complies with relevant local laws and regulations
relating to anti-corruption. Our Staff Handbook stipulates that staff
must not solicit or receive benefits from any parties that have
relations to the Group’s business, in the form of gifts, loans, fees,
rewards, offices, contracts, services, personal assistance, among
others. We also prohibit the offering or acceptance of any kind of
bribes, or facilitation of payments and kickbacks. All employees
are required to disclose any personal interest or interest of their
immediate friends and family that might conflict with the Group
throughout their employment.

At Casa Real and Grandview, the Group extends its control on
procurement by avoiding the concentration of power or
commitment of fraud in a certain department. Procurement duties
and tasks are segregated to several departments to foster cross-
functional supervision. During the Reporting Period, we retained a
minimum of three quotes from different suppliers to ensure a fair
and just comparison on price, services, and quality.

We encourage our staff to uncover and report misconduct to the
management. Upon receipt, the case will be investigated. The
identity of the whistleblower and related information will be kept
confidential. We maintain legal disciplinary responsibilities for any
violation of the above particulars. Shall the case be confirmed as
corrupt, appropriate disciplinary actions will be taken accordingly.
The Group will consider dismissing the staff or reporting to relevant
regulatory bodies depending on the severity of the breach.

Kingston Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2020
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Anti-Money Laundering

Money-laundering activities are inhibited in accordance with our
Internal Guidance Note on Anti-Money Laundering, which details
the nature and types of activities, relevant legal ordinances that
govern our conduct, as well as policies and procedures that
identify suspicious criminal acts. We also require our staff to
regularly visit the Securities and Futures Commission website for
updated information in relation to money laundering and terrorist
financing.

We employ a systemic approach to monitor clients’ transaction
activities and identify suspicious financial activity. When
suspecting issues relating to terrorist financing and money
laundering activities in the areas of terrorism, drug trafficking and
organised and serious crimes arise, our employees are obliged to
report to the Head of Compliance, who is responsible to review
transaction, and identify and report suspicious cases to the Joint
Financial Intelligence Unit of the Hong Kong government.

As per hotel operations, casino staff are trained to monitor guests’
unusual behaviour, complementary to our preventive policies. For
transactions exceeding a certain amount, respective guest
information should be recorded in preparation for any follow up
investigations in the future.

Confidentiality

The Group is mindful and respectful to privacy and information
security. We strictly forbid the disclosure of private and sensitive
company information to unauthorised third parties. The obtaining
of sensitive price information to trade in any related securities is
also prohibited. Relevant provisions on the collection and use of
personal data have been set out on the customer agreement
signed by both the Group and the customer, whereas the
employment contract also details procedures in safeguarding
client transactions, finance and other confidential information. To
safeguard the privacy wellbeing of our financial services segment
staff, a Collecting Personal Information Declaration form is
distributed during recruitment.

At Casa Real and Grandview, we take data security protection
thoughtfully. Measures are employed to ensure secure handling of
customer personal information. We review the hotel system’s user
account list on a monthly basis to ensure only authorised staff has
access to the database. Hard copies will be shredded and
discarded properly under the supervision of senior staff whenever
appropriate.
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Financial Product and Service

To optimise clients’ investment outcomes, we are committed to
acting in their best interests. All Account Executives are required
to comply with the Principles of Business Conduct as developed
by the International Organisation of Securities Commission. We
strive to help them make appropriate decisions by providing clear
financial product information, including product features, terms
and conditions, and any related risks and charges. Our financial
recommendations are tailored to their individual investment
objectives, risk orientation, and resource abundance. We also
adhere to regulatory requirements on the advertisement of the
Hong Kong Securities Regulatory Commission Code and ensure
that all advertisements published by the Group do not contain
false, defamatory, misleading, or deceptive information.

Guest Experience

The Group believes sustainability in the hotel and gaming business
relies on our ability to retain guests’ loyalty, which is achieved by
their overall satisfaction during their stay. We strive to commit
ourselves to serve professionally and put their wellbeing as our
first priority.

Guest Satisfaction

Our hotels review ratings from external travel and hotel review
sources such as Booking.com and TripAdvisor on a regular basis.
As of 31 March 2020, the combined average of the two hotels
overall experience ratings from Booking.com and TripAdvisor were
8.2 and 7.5 out of 10. Feedback forms are placed at hotel rooms
and lobbies for guests to share their opinions with us, which will be
considered and discussed among the management in the monthly
departmental meetings. All feedback received during the
Reporting Period, positive and negative, have been reviewed and
resolved diligently.

As we prioritise our guests’ satisfaction, our hotels are open to
room exchange under special circumstances with reasonable
cause. A Room Exchange Procedure is in place to instruct our
frontline staff on the standard procedures and criteria when
processing room exchange requests.

8.2/10

Booking
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Guest Health and Safety
Casa Real and Grandview

e A

5 /8 $&%

BEERERERZR
have established policies, concerning EXR&®BEMBIAAECARERE  BRE

guest wellbeing during their stay in general, and in times of A& EAE - WHEBEEZ 2B MBI AR A
medical emergencies and incidents. WE R

Housekeeping

mw%

Water Quality of
Swimming Pools

HEk ok &

Food Safety
BYRE

Emergency Evacuation
3= 3004

Daily inspections are conducted by hotel managers among our frontline and housekeeping
staff to ensure the hygiene and cleanliness of hotels in accordance with our internal policies
and guidelines. Amidst the COVID-19 pandemic, we have tightened control over the
wellbeing of our guests by implementing the following procedures:
BELBEBRRETENRE TNERERBA S TIERSHNEEMNFREES R BEMES|
MR 2019 BIRR SR BRE - JAIBHEATIER - dIagE 6= AR -
o Measure guests’ body temperature before entering the hotel

ENBERIEEZTARAR
° Ensure all guests wear surgical masks when entering the hotel

HERAIA B NENBEREMES I OE

° Instruct guests in filling out Health Declaration Form at the hotel entrance
EREAOREERT NERRERRE
° Installation of automatic sanitiser dispensers for guests’ usage

ZEHEEAEANEEFET R

We comply with local regulatory requirements. In addition to daily water sampling
conducted by our hotel staff, monthly visits are conducted by officials from the
[.A.C.M.-Laboratorio. Onsite measurement on the level of free residual chlorine and pH
value, as well as laboratorial analysis on microbiological and chemical substances are
tested. During the Reporting Period, the test results of our hotel swimming pools fulfilled all
the standard requirements.

BMEBERESHETER AEEIERETKERR  TRRESCRANESTEEAL
7 RIS E MR EKTNpHE - WETHAEMTEEMEERESIAR - AREH
- BPE TBEF LRGSR FEFEEER -

Our hotel restaurants obtain certification and licenses with relevant local and international
food safety standards. We also closely monitor the quality of food produced by our
partners, as well as regularly maintain the kitchen tools and equipment.
RATBEEERYGE M EEEEFARMET 2 RENREMA - ZRMTAHUEEAE
BHORMEER  WEHEEREREREMREE -

Our frontline and security staff have attained training in face of emergencies of various
types. We conduct annual fire inspections at our hotels. 24-hour closed-circuit televisions
and recording technology are equipped and monitored by security staff. In the unlikely
event of guest injury, discreet assistance and proper medical attention would be offered to
the affected guests. We request our employees to keep detailed records of every injury
incident for management to review and devise relevant improvement plans.
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Supply Chain Management

The Group strives to proactively engage our supply chain partners,
in order to help us realise and commit to corporate social
responsibility throughout our value chain. Adequate considerations
are given to indirect environmental and social impacts induced
throughout the entire procurement process. As such, we expect all
our suppliers to comply with laws and regulations, underlining our
anticipation concerning quality of products and service, business
ethics, labour standards, and environmental impacts.

Casa Real and Grandview give priority to procure locally, and from
countries of close proximity to minimise carbon footprints as well
as cost induced by transportation. During the Reporting Period, a
total of 184 suppliers that support our hotel operations at Casa
Real are mainly from Macau, Hong Kong, and the Mainland China.

HEEEE
AEERGRHAEEAERH AR AEBRM
EEEEERTERYARBETEELEEL -
AERERBARET  RMRDEERTEENORE
MHgFE - Bt RAIFLEMENHEEE L
BPRRER  BRABRPHERNRBER B
FER BIRENMRRTENENR -

ERSEBEMERBEBERESE b RHMPIT
B - DOREHR B ENFE R AN A o N3RS HIR -

HEERSEBEELEMTHOHERH L 184 -
TR2RERMA - BEMPE AU -

Suppliers Distribution at Casa Real

EXRENHERS

Mainland China
FREIALY, 3.30%

Hong Kong
%75, 16.30%

When procuring new equipment and machineries, we follow our
internal guidelines and closely examine their energy efficiency
performance in addition to their costs. We also regularly assess
our suppliers and maintain an updated supplier list to facilitate
selection and continual partnership, as well as ensuring their
practices fulfil our quality expectation and health and safety
requirements. To strengthen our supply chain management and
reduce potential risks, the responsibilities of negotiation, decision
making, and quality inspections are segregated into three
departments to avoid overpowering of individual departments.
Each material equipment purchase is reviewed, validated, and
approved by management before order placement.
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OUR PEOPLE

The Group values talent and considers our staff the greatest
attributes to ensure long-term success of our business. We are
dedicated to attracting, retaining, and developing talented
individuals, as well as forging solid and healthy relationships with
them. We strive to understand their needs, provide a fair, inclusive,
and safe workplace, pay attention to their development, as well as
maintain Group-wide labour standards.

Employment

Inclusivity and Equality

As an equal opportunity employer, we attach great importance to
the establishment of a sound employment system. We maintain a
diversified and inclusive workplace through detailing in our human
resources policies that employment shall not be influenced by
gender, age, race, colour, disability, sexual orientation, family role
or religion, amongst others. We strive to ensure fair opportunities in
recruitment, training, promotion, and resignation, as well as to
establish mutual respect among our employees.

We do not tolerate any form of discrimination or harassment in our
workplace. Employees are encouraged to report to management if
they encounter any incident. Credible internal investigations shall
be conducted, and appropriate disciplinary or legal actions shall
be taken once verified.

Remuneration

We have implemented various human resources management
policies and provided our staff with attractive remuneration
packages. Our staff are entitled to benefits, including medical
insurance, compensation insurance, and transportation allowance.
In addition to statutory holidays, they are also entitled to paid
leaves and maternity leaves.

Communication

We conduct regular performance evaluation and appraisals, where
staff’s contribution, competence and qualifications are
acknowledged under our recognition scheme. We will also discuss
areas for improvement. Assessment results will be used as internal
reference for promotions and salary adjustments. In the continuous
enhancement of our human resources policies, we regard effective
staff engagement essential, and have made adequate channels
available to encourage employees’ feedback.
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Occupational Health and Safety

The Group values workplace health and safety and formulates
internal policies to safeguard staff’'s physical and mental health
and prevent their exposures to occupational hazards. Our financial
services mainly involve office operation. Therefore, a hygienic, safe
and comfortable working environment is essential. To this end, we
keep all fire escapes clear and maintain adequate indoor
ventilation, as well as ensure sufficient personal space for storage
and stretching of bodies. To maintain indoor air quality, smoking
indoors is strictly prohibited, in accordance with regulatory
requirements.

Casa Real and Grandview work closely with local regulatory bodies
for the safety condition inspections of our equipment and
machineries, as well as kitchen tools. We commission professional
licensed third parties for the regular maintenance on appliances,
fire and security systems, as well as conducting pest control. At
Grandview, regular occupational health and safety inspection is
conducted by the management to ensure a safe working
environment. Among technical staff who work at the engineering
department and hotel kitchens, we require them to put on
protective shoes.

We have implemented staff handbooks that outline standard
handling procedures and safety measures under different
circumstances, as well as incorporate safety topics in our regular
training programmes. At Grandview for instance, we arrange staff
to attend the Hotel and Catering Occupational Safety Card Training
Course to enhance their safety awareness when providing
hospitality services. More information about safety topics covered
during the Reporting Period as below:
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Fire safety and drills
First-aid
Occupational health
Self-defence

Typhoon management trainings
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In the face of COVID-19 pandemic, our staff’'s health is prioritised
at the top of Casa Real and Grandview’s concern. An Employee
Health Declaration Form is distributed among Casa Real staff. We
also arranged accommodation for all non-local hotel staff. The
following practices have been closely followed by both hotels:

1. Measure staff’'s body temperature before entering the hotel

2. Ensure all personnel put on surgical masks within the hotel
area

3. Distribute alcohol-based hand wash, masks and gloves to
frontline staff

4. Distribute masks to back office staff

5. Update our staff on latest news of COVID-19 pandemic on
staff notice boards

6. Disinfect staff dormitory with bleach on a daily basis

In addition to physical health, mental wellness is as important. At
Casa Real and Grandview, we take care of our staff's daily duty
meals, offer quarters accommodations, as well as ensure that they
are assigned to adequate amounts of rest periods. We organised
various staff engagement activities that integrate work and life
balance during the Reporting Period. For more details of the
events, please refer to the “Our Community” section.

During the Reporting Period, 2 cases (2018/19: 3 cases) of
workplace related accidents at Grandview were reported, resulting
in 8 lost days (2018/19: 27 lost days). Whereas 9 cases of
workplace related injuries were reported at Casa Real, resulting in
151 lost days. While the cases were handled earnestly, we
endeavour to the best of our ability in protecting our employees
from workplace hazards in the future.
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Training and Development

The competency and growth of our staff steers the development of
the Group. We are committed to providing career advancement
opportunities and formulating training plans for staff on their
transferable customer service skills and technical know-how.

We provide in-house training on a regular basis and arrange
external training whenever necessary for our staff in the financial
services segment to update their knowledge on relevant
regulations and compliance issues. We also encourage them to
take on learning and development opportunities, for instance,
undertake professional work-related examinations. During the
Reporting Period, 23 staff in our financial services segment have
participated in a 1.5 hours Economic Substance Updates Course
regarding BVI and Cayman Islands.

Casa Real and Grandview attach great importance on staff’s
customer service skills. We provide regular internal training that
covers various skills and knowledge, including customer services
related skills, industry language, conflict management, food safety,
fire safety and other practical skills for specific work duties. At our
hotel and gaming services segment, a total of 458.5 hours were
allocated during the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, the hotels also collaborated with local
organisations, such as Macao Occupational Skills Recognition
System, Instituto De Formacao Turistica Professional Instructors
Teaching, Macau Hotel Association, Macao Government Tourism
Office, Civic and Municipal Affairs Bureau, as well as the
Occupational Health and Safety Department of Macau to
coordinate external trainings for its employees on essential skills in
hotel operations and management.
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Labour Standards

The Group upholds and supports human rights throughout our
business by ensuring that our operations do not involve any form
of forced, coerced or bonded labour, and that the legal minimum
age requirements for employment are strictly observed in all
jurisdictions where we operate. We obtain working permits for all
our foreign workers at Casa Real and Grandview in compliance
with relevant laws and regulations.

In order to prevent recruiting or appointing candidates who fail to
meet legal employment requirements, our human resources
department at the financial services segment, and two hotels
conduct identity review and verification. The recruitment procedure
will be terminated immediately if a false identity is provided, or
should the candidate fail to meet our legal employment
requirements. We also set out relevant compensation provisions
for overtime work in the Group’s Staff Handbook for the prevention
of forced labour behaviour.

OUR ENVIRONMENT

The impact of global climate change has led to calls for stronger
global action. The Group acknowledges its responsibility to protect
the planet’s scarce natural resources and regards environmental
sustainability the Group’s key concerns in fulfilling its corporate
social responsibility. We have formulated relevant environmental
policies and measures to mitigate environmental risks while
operating in the hospitality industry.

! Since the environmental impact of our financial services segment is
relatively less significant, this section dedicates the majority of its
content to our hotels’ environmental performances.
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Emissions Mitigation

i HE

Greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions exacerbate global warming B =& ([GHG)) BEERMINE 2B L « ¥ HER
and contribute to ecological damage to our planet. The hotels are 3% 4 BERR £ o ﬁfFﬁ}fTE’]EE*?‘JH'J\“@F
dedicated to reducing emissions arising from our operations, AEHEN  BLHERETEREGZERY - BHifE
which are mainly generated by our cooking activities, vehicles and  # ~ #&A R VEA KB J1EFE © ﬁﬁT%ﬁaﬂﬁéﬁin
machinery operations and electricity consumption. We continually & {v &9 tERE R A B - WIREBEERTES
assess the risks and opportunities associated with climate change, IBIEiHT @ HHEABHENFZLREREK -

as well as implementing measures to ensure environmental

compliance and minimal disturbance caused to the surrounding

community.
Regular Inspection

Kitchen tools

BERA

Vehicles

EH#

Indoor Air Quality
ERERER

Noise Nuisance

R ELE

EHRE

To enhance optimal efficiency of the hydrovent ventilation system that intercepts air
pollutants and grease particles, Grandview conducts biannual inspection and maintenance
and ensures cooking fume emission is being kept within legally acceptable range. Regular
inspections on the electric cooking stoves were also performed by Casa Real.
RTRESBEERSAYFHEMNNESRBERRFHNRERE  EXE8 @EtﬂéELﬂ
—RIBEMGEE  EHRRHEROEZAEXBEAN  MERESEETHREEF
RIEA -

We assure that all vehicles are checked regularly and properly maintained such that their
emission level comply with local environmental standards.

BIREMBERBETHRE - WETEENRE - FEREBUKFESE EHAREFE -

In addition to banning smoking at public indoor areas and casino floors, we commissioned
external professional bodies to record and regulate the indoor air quality, including
particulates concentration. All monitoring results shall be submitted to relevant government
bodies for compliance check.

BREZEARRMT RESERBEIIREIN  HPTERINEEERBLE MR EENERE
= BENTRE -FEARAIEROSEXEHBIHE  LERREHFARE -

We follow our internal policies to procure equipment and machinery that produce minimal
noise. Regular inspections are also performed to ensure noise levels of machinery fall
below 75 dB.

RARRBRAFBERRBELSKERSIORBIEES - T RS AERESORIKFEE
K757 H o
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The Group is committed to disclosing our carbon footprint through
ESG reporting on a yearly basis in a transparent manner. The
quantification methodology is referenced from the “Guidelines to
Account for and Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and
Removals for Buildings (Commercial, Residential or Institutional
Purposes) in Hong Kong 2010”. The emission factors are based on
the latest figure provided by the Hongkong Electric Company (the
“HKE”) and the Companhia de Electricidade de Macau (the
“CEM”). For more information, please refer to the “Performance
Data Summary”.

Resources Efficiency

Energy usage accounts for the majority of our environmental
impact in both our financial services segment and hotel and
gaming services segment. We strive to reduce resource
consumption in its daily operation by formulating corresponding
policies that set out conservation initiatives and encourage staff to
preserve natural resources.

In addition to our green office and resource saving practices, our
hotels (excluding casino floors) adopt LED lighting systems that
continue to occupy more than 90%. To maintain energy
performance of its energy-efficient inverter air-conditioning system
(installed in the Previous Year) that operates a closed-circuit air-
conditioning cooling tower and utilises environmentally-friendly
refrigerants, Casa Real commissioned professionally licensed third
party to conduct monthly cleaning of air filters, and cleaning of air-
cooled fins as well as air ducts on an annual basis. Water filters
are being changed every three months.

Monthly inspections on gas and electricity usage are monitored by
the hotels’ engineering department who also provide technical
recommendations on energy efficiency improvement for the
Group's consideration. The technical recommendation and result
analysis remain one of the agenda in the monthly general meeting
among the senior management team.

In addition to system upgrades, we are active participants in the
environmental campaigns. During the Reporting Period, the hotels
continued to support WWF’s “2020 Earth Hour” and “Macau
Energy Saving Week” organised by the Office for the Development
of Energy Sector of Macau by participating in the “Lights Off
Campaign”. Exterior lightings of the hotels were turned off for one
hour during the events to demonstrate the hotels’ dedication to
energy conservation.
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Waste Reduction

(i oAt

B /8 $&%

WD BEY

The Group adopts a holistic approach in improving resource ARNEBEREA2EMNREIESERUE  WEENR
efficiency and minimising waste for landfill disposal. We integrate >4 2 & N HIEE o FMI 18 R 202 & B R E R
our internal operation policies with reduction and recycling REEREBIWHITE)GMEAS - ANEEE E3Rs R A
initiatives. The Group follows 3Rs principles — Reduce, Reuse and  — 54> « EE{FERFEI - WARIEEY R4S
Recycle and conducts waste separation according to their natures. 17948 o

Paper
Kok

Hotel Toiletries
EIE A

Food Waste
BYHIR

To reduce paper waste at source, we encourage paper saving in offices and hotels by
promoting communication through electronic means, replacing print-out copies with
electronic versions, and using double-sided papers when printing is necessary. At
Grandview, we distribute reusable totes instead of paper bags when selling Lunar New
Year rice cakes.

BTRBERDEREY  BRMOSEBRAZFAENEFANETER  SHREK  USETF
FRERAR I ENAR - SWAERR EFIENRE R EmIIENARKR - BIRBEEEBEFHER - s EH
FRE  URBHE -

Casa Real and Grandview supply toiletries on a need basis. After hotel room check-out,
housekeeping staff at Grandview collects and separates unused or leftovers of soaps,
amenities bottles and toilet paper rolls for further repurposing. Soaps are reused for
housekeeping purposes, shower gel is used for hand sanitising in public toilet areas,
whereas toilet paper rolls are re-utilised in staff bathrooms.
EXGBRERERBERFEHELARAR BERFER  EXSBHENEKEGRHK
ERARNIES  EHMARBLRFERBREL S (FHMRE - EERERARERE
BORABTARAHEFEOESEF  MEEABRAINERAREIAE -

Collaboration and close communications with local travel agencies lead to better
anticipation of travellers in tour groups, which results in better procurement and preparation
of food, thereby reducing food waste at source. Posters are also set up at kitchen and hotel
canteens to promote food cherishing behaviour. For surplus food, they will be sent to the
staff canteen for consumption. Food waste separation is practised, which is collected by
the Direccao dos Servicos de Proteccao Ambiental for further handling, recycling, and
disposal.

FREEMWRITHEENZERZER - B EERBAKRITENRT A - BEIERBEMER
'Y - HRE RO RN - HARKEFFMBEERZRLEGH  SEERNTR M
FANBRYEXINETIRERM - RUNIETHERIE - YHIRFRERBKE - LE—F
BRIE - EIRMEE -
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Recyclables
Rl=l &)

Non-recyclables
FE B @

Casa real and Grandview practise extensive waste separation and recycling on materials,
such as plastics, metals, used batteries, red packages, toothbrushes, carton boxes and
paper. We educate our staff and engage licensed service providers for the collection and
further processing.

EXSEBERERAELER 28  ESiH
MOEMEL - RPIEHEET

CALEE - TR MM RE R TTRE
 WEE B RIS B TR AE — R TE -

For other types of waste that are not applicable to the 3Rs strategies, we follow stringent
procedures to ensure proper management and handling. For instance, used cooking oil
from hotel restaurants is collected and sent to a waste processing service provider to

undergo treatment before disposal.

N EA @A 3Rs REGHIEEY) - TS I%S
B BMEREREREEABHORAM - X

This year, we are delighted to invite a specialist from the
Environmental Protection Bureau for a seminar held at Grandview.
The seminar promoted various ways to reduce waste at source
and to adopt a more environmentally friendly lifestyle. Our staff
members were encouraged to put this new information into
practice.

2019 Moon Cake Boxes Recycling

In support of the Environmental Protection Bureau of Macau’s
recycling initiative, Grandview participated in the programme,
Recycling the Lunar Cake Boxes Is Very Easy ([ Y8 A #f & #f
EASY). A recycling point was set up at the hotel to collect empty
lunar cake boxes after Mid Autumn’s Festival for the government
department’s processing, and recycling purpose.

2020 Red Pockets Recycling

As another recycling initiative of the Environmental Protection
Bureau of Macau, Grandview participated the programme,
Recycling the Red Packets Is Very Easy (B F R E 4F EASY). The
hotel set up a recycling point to collect empty and reusable red
packets for the government’s future distribution. Since the
implementation in 2017, over 6 million of red packets have been
collected. In this year’s Lunar New Year, 2 million reusable red
packets were distributed to the society. We are pleased to be a
part of this recycling and reusing scheme.

The Group does not generate any hazardous waste within its
operations, while the consumption of packaging material is
considered immaterial to our Group’s operations and hence not
disclosed in this Report.

”}%Tﬂfﬂﬁfﬁif BRZEEEMESE - 241K
EREYRERFHERRE  ARBEE -

SF BRARSEAFBIREREDNER - &
BRBEEERT ST E BENRBTIER
SRR TTE - A RIMAI B ERARNAETET R
MM EE THEEREIAEEESD -

2019 F AstEE
AXERPIBEBERERNDUES  BREELR
BT [l B IFEASY | EE) « BIIEEER
SIEIW S - FERKE R UE ASE - StEATERPY
RIB - EFIEK A

2020 FALEH B E U
EBBE2ETRFABERERNS —BEEUE
8 — [ U2 5 FEASY ) 581 o BAFIFEIE 5 %
SO E - WERERGERNAEE  ®HBFA
BIREE - B2017 EE MUK - R LU ETH
BEOEBEAHE - ESFEHFEHRE  HALE
EMT200B A EMAHE - RIFIRSEEH
SEEIAE Y R EREE -

AEBEEEE LW EELEFEREY  mE
MEE RS ARENZEMS A TEKX - llit
REABERHKE -
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Water Management

The Group acknowledges that effective water management is
important for our planet and our business. We strive to promote
responsible water consumption through different measures among
office and hotel frontline staff.

At Casa Real and Grandview, water is provided for the domestic
use of our guests, staff and hotel, including cooking, cleaning and
housekeeping. We conduct routine inspection and maintenance on
water pipes and faucets to avoid leakage problem of faucets and
gaskets, as well as other issues in the water supply system. We
also promote water conservation practises among staff and guests
by posting signs at hotel bathrooms and kitchens. The hotels’
engineering department record water consumption and conduct
analysis on a monthly basis in order to ensure there is no unusual
water consumption pattern.

In managing effluent emissions, all wastewater at hotel kitchens is
set to pass through an oil and grease interceptor to filter out oily
impurities before disposing for further treatment. The intercepted
oil and grease are collected by an external recycler for further
treatment. Casa Real and Grandview also commission professional
service providers to regularly maintain and clean the interceptor
for optimal performance.

OUR COMMUNITY

The Group is committed to delivering long-term value for the
communities we serve. To generate positive impact, we invest
resources, engage our staff and guests, and collaborate with
community organisations. During the Reporting Period, the Group
has donated HK$400,000 to the Po Leung Kuk and HK$300,000 to
Wah Yan Cultural Foundation Limited to support the organisations’
operation and functioning.

2019 World Tourism Day — Tray Race

Celebrated on 27 September every year, Macau Government
Tourism Office took the occasion of the World Tourism Day and
organised the Tray Race. Tourism industry partners, including our
hotels, visitors, and local community were invited to join the
celebratory event where participants raced at the Ruins of St.
Paul’s.

Staff Birthday Party

Coordinated and organised by our hotels’ head of department,
Grandview organises staff birthday parties every two months. The
event celebrates and acknowledges staff's accomplishment and
contribution to the hotel throughout the Reporting Period.
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LAWS AND REGULATIONS COMPLIANCE

We are committed to Group-wide adherence to relevant laws and
regulations in order to safeguard the interests of our shareholders,
clients, guests, staff, suppliers, the environment and community at
large. During the Reporting Period, we communicate closely with
our staff to ensure their awareness and compliance with all
applicable laws and regulations that impose a significant impact
on our operations in Hong Kong and Macau, as listed below:

BFERENER

BN ERESEEREBETHEBEERIMER
AREEBRR - &P -BABI HERD RE
NEHEATON LG - ERERRN - HPRET
BYEE BMRETITHRIWETHAEHRMES
BRI EBBEAZENRBEEERNESR
BT

Our Operations
RMHEE

° Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486 of the Laws of Hong Kong)

EAER (ALER) 155 (FEADIZE 486 &)

° Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)

& M EBIGE (BFREDIES7T1E)

° Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers

EHETAEFETESRI ZNIEESTRI

° Regulations of Hotel Activity and Similar Activity (No. 83/96/M)

BIEE M RBITRZ IR 2 M E (5 83/96/M )

° Personal Data Protection Law (Law No. 8/2005)
18 A B RHR#EE (5 8/2005 57 A7)

° Prevention and Suppression of Bribery in the Private Sector (Law No. 19/2009)

TEPH 38 IEFL & S PIBE RR A2 HI/E (55 19/2009 9% 7R )

° Prevention and Suppression of Money Laundering Crimes (Law No. 2/2006)

FER 38 1HE 5 B EIE IR (55 2/2006 57512 )

e teen 09
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Our People
RPMWET

‘

Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
EEEN (BEEEDESTE)

Employees’ Compensation Ordinance (Cap. 282 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
BEEMERD (EBENFE282F)

Minimum Wage Ordinance (Cap. 608 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
RIETE G (FEEDIFE 608 %)

Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Cap. 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
g HEATEEFEED] (BB EDIF 485 F)

Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Cap. 509 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
BELE RERED (HABEDIE509%)

Labour Relations Law (Law No. 7/2008)
LBENR A (5 7/2008 574 )

Social Security Scheme (Law No. 4/2010)
HEIRIEHIE (5 4/2010 55572 )

Employee’s Compensation Insurance Ordinance (Law No. 40/95/M)

THEESNRB MR EED] (5 40/95/M 5ER)

Fire Prevention Regulation (Law No. 24/95/M)

B N2 IR E (55 24/95/M 57512 )

Regulation on Prohibition of lllegal Work (Ordinance No. 17/2004)
IFIEATERRE (55 17/2004 577 THUER)

Law of Hiring Non-Residents Workers (Law No. 21/2009)
B2 R SN B (55 21/2009 5E )

Our Environment

dE =,
o

BANRE

10

Environmental Law (Law No. 2/91/M)
IRIBME A (F2/91MSERE)

Rules on Prevention and Control of Ambient Noise (Law No. 54/95/M)
RE A TRIBER S 27800 KT 6l (5 54/94/M SREE)

General Regulation of the Public Spaces (Ordinance No. 28/2004)
A AR E (55 28/2004 SR TBUERR)

Regulations on Water Supply and Drainage in Macau (Decree Law No. 46/96/M)
SRPIEBEKIR = (58 46/96/M5RES)

Kingston Financial Group Limited
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PERFORMANCE DATA SUMMARY BERHERE
Financial
Key Performance Indicators Services Casa Real Grandview
MRENER SRR EREER Ea
Environmental? 352
Scope 1: Direct Emissions tCO2e- 1.61 946.71 168.39 1,116.71
HE: EREAEREHEN W_RtiEE
Scope 2: Energy Indirect Emissions tCO2e- 160.57 9,187.37 9,040.96 18,388.90
#E2 : FAEAEREHN W_RtiREE
Total GHG Emissions (Scope 1-2) tCO2e- 162.18 10,134.08 9,209.35 19,505.61
mRERBHR(HE1-2) W_StixEE
GHG Emission Intensity by Revenue® tCO2e-/HKD'000 N/A N/A N/A 0.01
BRERBHMEE (BRI AGTH? M_grikEE T TEA TEA
BET R
GHG Emission Intensity tCO2e-/Room N/A 0.10 0.08 N/A
by Occupied Room* WB_S(tiEE TE A TNE R
RERBHMEE RAEEREE) 5F
Electricity Usage kKWh 198,238.45 | 10,404,727.00 | 10,238,910.00 | 20,841,875.45
EhMHE TRE
LPG Usage m? N/A 69.00 21,733.00 21,802.00
RILRERERE SR ek
Petroleum Usage Litre 605.02 569.98 3,790.66 4,965.66
FURERE F
Diesel Oil Usage Litre N/A 360,483.08 12,490.43 372,973.51
i Dali P TER
Total Energy Usage MJ 733,974.99 | 51,394,064.27 | 38,496,381.21 | 90,624,420.47
BELRER KEE
Energy Intensity by Revenue MJ/HKD’000 N/A N/A N/A 34.40
ARBRRE (RUAGT) KEE,/BETT TEA TEA TEA
Energy Intensity by Occupied Room MJ/Room N/A 502.29 327.99 N/A
RRERTE (RAEEMHE) KEE/8BF i TEA
Water Usage m? N/A 186,355.00 112,933.00 299,288.00
IKFE SR NiE A
Paper Usage Sheet N/A 422,951.00 N/A 422,951.00
HiE R ek TiE A
Waste Disposal Tonne N/A 678.00 53.50 731.50
FEYRIE [ TEHR
Waste Recycled Tonne N/A N/A 47.90 47.90
BEY I U4 AiE A TEA

SHUEBEMERAR
—EoTEER

X
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Financial
Key Performance Indicators Services Casa Real Grandview
BREMEE SRR EREE Et8
Social #&
Total Workforce #% &) 5 Person A 65 388 265 718
By Gender #1145
Male 5 Person A 31 204 151 386
Female %2 Person A 34 184 114 332
By Employment Category 5t 27k -F
Senior Level &4 Person A 14 10 6 30
Intermediate Level £} Person A 12 59 5 76
Junior Level —f&#% A Person A 39 319 254 612
By Age 1% 4F i
<30 Person A 9 87 74 170
30-50 Person A 34 229 151 414
>50 Person A 22 72 40 134

2 All figures have been rounded up to 2 decimal places, unless 2 BIFSHHE  DAIFTEEFHMERAZ &

otherwise specified. EL1E R o

3 The total revenue of the Group is recorded at approximately 3 K £ B R2019/20 81 B¢ F [ B 48 Yo A £F 12 4
HK$2,634,417,000 for the financial year 2019/20. 2,634,417,000% T °

4 During the Reporting Period, the total number of occupied rooms for 4 WEHRA  EXEEBMEIGEELBERES 5
Casa Real and Grandview were 102,319 and 117,371 rooms A102,319F/1117,371 14
respectively.
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HKEX ESG GUIDE CONTENT INDEX

Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs
BE- - —BREER
BRENIER

Description

BR(RR - g RERESDE &

Relevant Chapter or Explanation

A. Environmental
A. RE

HRER SRR

Aspect A1: Emissions

B A1

D BERRYD

General Disclosure

—RIRE

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

BHEERIRERBHN - MKRIHEDS - BE

NEEBEEMNELSN

(a) BR: &

(b) BTHEHETAREAZENHBEZLROIINE
e

Our Environment — Emissions Mitigation,
Resources Efficiency, Waste Reduction,
Laws and Regulations Compliance
BPIIRE — B - BRME R
DREY) - EIPEENER

KPI A1.1
FAEENIEZEALA

The types of emissions and respective emissions
data.

BEm i 58 R ARRE BE IR -

Our Environment — Emissions Mitigation,
Performance Data Summary

BRI — B ERBIEHE

KPI A1.2
PAEEAMIEEAL2

Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility)
BERBETE (ANEETE Mﬂw B =
SESEM - FERMETE

E (LA

Performance Data Summary

RRBERE

KPI A1.3
BARAMIERALS

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
PIELXREREEMEE (UNTE
NEESEMN  BIERETH) °

) R (i@ ) &= E (1A

Performance Data Summary

ERBERE

KPI A1.4
FAREMIEEZEALL

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
FESXBREREEDEL Eﬁ%@ﬁ
NEESEMN BERETE

1) R (@) = E (1

Performance Data Summary

RBIERE

KPI A1.5
BARRMIERALS

Description of measures to mitigate emissions and
results achieved.

R E RPN & B b M PTSACR ©

Our Environment — Emissions
Mitigation, Resources Efficiency,
Waste Reduction

BAIRIRE — RBE - BRSO
DREY)

KPI A1.6
BARARIMIERAL.6

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes are handled, reduction initiatives and results
achieved.
HiRIEAEMEEREDN X
WS PR RCR ©

IR E L BT

QOur Environment — Emissions
Mitigation, Resources Efficiency,
Waste Reduction
BAIVIRIE — BB -
DREEY

BIRM S - B

EHNELREBEFRA
ig_giiﬁ

13
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Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs
BE- - —REER
BRENIER

Description

AES

Relevant Chapter or Explanation

HRER AR

Aspect A2: Use of Resources [EH A2 : &R A

General Disclosure

—RRE

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including
energy, water and other raw materials.

BRERER(BIEER - KEEAMRME) OB -

QOur Environment — Resources
Efficiency, Waste Reduction

BAIRRE — ERMa - R ED

unit produced.
X @ATABEMENRE (UBEETE) & (WER)
HEBUNE -

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type | Performance Data Summary
FARENIEZEA2.1 (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in '000s) and | &M EERHE

intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per

facility).

REASSMEERSKREEER(NE - fon) 85

EUNTEFTEFAE) KBE (WAGESEL -

BREETE) °
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit | Performance Data Summary
BREMIEZEA2.2 of production volume, per facility). EREIERE

BRKERTE (WABES SN - BEARMH)
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and | Our Environment — Resources
BARENIEEZEA2.3 results achieved. Efficiency, Waste Reduction

T AR PR A aR AT B R PTG AR o BARE — BERWa M EY
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing | Our Environment — Resources
BARENIEEA24 water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives | Efficiency, Water Management

and results achieved. BIHIRE — BRMa - KERE

Rl USKEGE /KR E AT B - AR RKR | 12

et B RFTSACR o
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products | The Group’s operations did not
FREMIEEZEA25 (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per | involve the use of packaging

material for finished products
REBHNERB L RERBEME

SR °

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources BT A3 : BIE R ARE

R

General Disclosure

—RRE

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact
on the environment and natural resources.
MIEBEITAHBRERRAEREKNERZEOEE -

QOur Environment — Emissions
Mitigation, Resources Efficiency,
Waste Reduction, Water
Management
BAIRIRIE — ABE - BRME
DEEY) - KEREE

VEd

KPI A3.1
BRENIERA3A

Description of the significant impacts of activities on
the environment and natural resources and the
actions taken to manage them.

M EBEBEHRBERRAERNEATE RE KR

ERBEATENITE -

QOur Environment — Emissions
Mitigation, Resources Efficiency,
Waste Reduction, Water
Management

BIPIVERE — B - BRME -
LEEY) - KERE R

Ed
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Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs
BE - —REER

Description

Relevant Chapter or Explanation

RRENER

B. Social
B. #=

HRER SRR

Employment and Labour Practices EfER % T ¥R

Aspect B1: Employment /E [ B1

ER

General Disclosure
—RIHE

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

Eﬁﬁ g SRR - BB TERE REA - T

EHe  Zut  REMRUAREMFBRENS

(@) B%: &

(b) %jﬁ?%’ﬁéﬁ/xﬁ%ﬁ%%Eﬂﬁf‘e@if&&%ﬁfﬁﬂE@;éf
o

Our People — Employment, Labour
Standards, Laws and Regulations

Compliance
BZMMET — BB - £TA8] - &
D7)

KPI B1.1
BARENESRBIA

Total workforce by gender, employment type, age
group and geographical region.
RIER - EBER - FiER RitEE o HE S B8 -

Performance Data Summary

ERBUERE

KPI B1.2
FAREMIEEB.2

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and
geographical region.

RIER) - R R BRI AR B R -

N/A
NaEm

Aspect B2: Health and

Safety BHEB2 : BEEZ 2

General Disclosure

—RiNE

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment
and protecting employees from occupational

Our People — Occupational Health
and Safety

BRPWET —BERRELZR

hazards.
FARM T2 TERELREREBEBELBEN
(@) B &
(b) ﬁ#iﬁéﬁ/\*ﬁék BN EBERLROINE
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities. The Group did not have reported
BRENEEZEB2.1 EITEAEMBTMAS KR - work-related fatality cases during
the Reporting Period
AEEEREHANLEETEEH
BISL T -
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Our People — Occupational Health
BEENIBEB2.2 ETEERATIEAS - and Safety
BMHWET —BERERLZD
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety | Our People — Occupational Health
BRENIEEB2.3 measures adopted, how they are implemented and | and Safety
monitored. BMMET —BEREREZS
RUER - FRARKMREDNEERKLE -
TNETRHEBERER
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Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs
B - —RFEER

Description

Relevant Chapter or Explanation

RRENER

AES

Aspect B3: Development and Training B B3 : %8 k%3

HRER AR

General Disclosure

—RRE

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and
skills for discharging duties at work. Description of
training activities.

BRARMEEBRIT IIERENANB R EENER - f
MIBFEED

Our People — Training and Development
BB T — FIHEERE

RERREEERE D - BRES TR T
2o

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and | Our People — Training and Development,

AR ENISEBS.1 employee category (e.g. senior management, middle | Performance Data Summary
management). BMME T — HFHIHEBEE - EE
EHRIREEER (NS REERE  TRAEEES)E | BRE
SHXIMEEB DL

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee | N/A

BARENIEEB3.2 by gender and employee category. i A

Aspect B4: Labour Standards EHE B4 : % T %8|

General Disclosure

—RIRE

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour.

BN EE T Akl T

(a) BOR: &

(b) BTFHBETAGERZENHEEZLROIINE
£ o

Our People — Labour Standards,
Laws and Regulations Compliance
BMHWBET — S THR - BFARE
MER

W BIRE MBI ERR B RIS U EREREY 288 -

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment | Our People — Labour Standards
BREMIEEBIA practices to avoid child and forced labour. ZMIMWE T — BT AR

R s BB B HIM IS FELAR e B T ORI T o
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices | Our People — Labour Standards
BREMIEEB4.2 when discovered. BMWETL — BT A8
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Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs
BE - —REER

Description

Relevant Chapter or Explanation

RRENER

Operating Practices & E1E |

HRER SRR

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

FEEBS5 : HIEEEE

General Disclosure

Policies on managing environmental and social risks

Our Operation — Supply Chain

—RIEE of the supply chain. Management
EREEENIRE Rt g R R B EE — fLrEE e
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. N/A
BEENIEEBS.1 i@ E SR HEER S E - NiEA
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging | Our Operation — Supply Chain
AR EMIEIEB5.2 suppliers, number of suppliers where the practices | Management
are being implemented, how they are implemented | FMAIEE — HEEER

and monitored.
i R HEEES - MERTERES/H
FEREE - LRBBEMMINITRERFE -

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility BEHEB6 : ERET

General Disclosure

—RIKE

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods
of redress.

BREMRHERNRBORERLZ S - BE - B8R

LR SEE A RFRUTER

(a) BX: &

(b) BTFHETABERAZENHBEEZLRIINE
¥ e

Our Operation — Risk Management,
Product and Service Quality, Guest
Experience, Laws and Regulations
Compliance

B EE — ARER  ©RlEm
KRR - BERER - EpEENE
R o

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject | N/A
R ENIEEB6.1 to recalls for safety and health reasons. T EA
EERDEREMBERPEL T EEFEIEHMEAED Y
HED
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service-related complaints | N/A
R ENIEIEB6.2 received and how they are dealt with. AN iE A
BRI B on M RIS VIR AR 8 B A BT 5 0% -
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and | Our Operation — Business Ethics
AR ENMISZEB6.3 protecting intellectual property rights. B EE —mEER
i B A I AR PR NG EE M R A V1B A o
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall | Our Operation — Product and
BARENIEEB6.4 procedures Service Quality, Guest Experience
HE S E RE N EmEIWAE T o B EE — S REm KR - B
zHe!
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy | Our Operation — Business Ethics,
R ENIEIEB6.5 policies, how they are implemented and monitored. Guest Experience
WiHEEERMRERFLBECR - URBBHITRE | RFINEE —BXER  BETER
BIE o
LHERERMARA
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RIE - 2 MEAWRE

Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs
BE- - —REER
BRENIER

Description

AES

Relevant Chapter or Explanation

HRER AR

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption BEB7 : RE’S

General Disclosure

—RIRE

Information on:

the policies; and

compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money

laundering.
BRI - 9% - MEFRLREN
(a) BX: &
(b) EFHETABERZENHBEZNARNINE

¥ o

Our Operation — Business Ethics,
Laws and Regulations Compliance
BPIREE —mEar B oiE
AER

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt | The Group was not involved in any
ARENIEEBT.A practices brought against the issuer or its employees | legal cases regarding corrupt
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the | practices during the Reporting
cases. Period
RERPAHBTASHEEREWEEENESFH | AREEREHRRB EE)SHR
AEMEEE MFRAER - BRENZED -
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle- | Our Operation — Business Ethics
BARENIEEBT.2 blowing procedures, how they are implemented and | kI &E — B EER
monitored.
fa S0 HE b N BRI Fr - DA RAERRENTT B JE ©
Community &

Aspect B8: Community Investment [EE B8 : HERE

General Disclosure

—RIRE

Policies on community engagement to understand
the needs of the communities where the issuer
operates and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’ interests.
BREUHRBERTHEEMELETEMEREE
BEBeE R ENRAOBUR

Our Community

BRI

AR IREMBAER (W EXEH)

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, | Our Community
AR ENIEEBS.1 environmental concerns, labour needs, health, | AR
culture, sport).
EIEREE(WHE  RREH - BHITHEFK - 2
ik - 885 °
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the | Our Community
BRENIEEBS.2 focus area. MR

18

Kingston Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2020




REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EERWmE

The Directors of the Company (the “Directors”) have pleasure in
submitting their report and the audited financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 108 to 109. The Board has
recommended the payment of final dividend for the year ended 31
March 2020 of HK1 cent per share (2019: HK1.5 cents). No interim
dividend was declared during the six months ended 30 September
2019 (six months ended 30 September 2018: nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business, an analysis of the Group’s
performance (using financial key performance indicators), a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group, particulars of important events occurred since 31 March
2020, if any, and an indication of likely future development in the
Group’s business are provided in the Management Discussion and
Analysis of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company’s environmental principles and practices are set out
in the section headed “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” in this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Board considers that effective environmental protection
measures will not only contribute to environmental protection but
also reduction of the production cost. During the Year, the Group
has implemented various measures to reduce waste and pollution
and to effectively and efficiently use the resources.

Financial Services Operation

The Group’s financial services operations are fully automated and
waste-free. Looking forward, we will continue to adopt the
environmental friendly operation mode.

ARAEZR(EF)MAREZAEERE_FT—
ZEZA=THULFEZEEZRBEMREZ
FATEIRER

FEXHK
ARBEBEBAREER - EXBMBLAAE
BEN AR A M MR EE 40

2ET SR
AEEEHE-TETF-A-TRHLEFEZE
%ﬁ#%m&gszTAﬁ 5 & EAth 2 U
Bk EERERNBE-_ZT-_ZEF=A=1+—
AIEFERNSABRESR1IBW( ZZE—NF
1581 -BMEEREEZE_FE-NLFLA=1TH
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Hotel and Gaming Operation

The Group is committed to minimising the environmental impact of
its operation. Since our business operates in 24 hours basis,
electricity consumption has always been a main concern for us.
We are hence gradually replacing lighting system with energy
saving LED light in the two hotels, which is beginning to yield
positive results in reducing electricity usage. In additional to that,
the Group is actively considering the installation of new air
conditioning system to lower energy consumption and noise level.
The Group’s professional team also regularly checks and closely
monitors the waste water system to ensure the sewage discharged
is adequately treated and complied with relevant laws and
regulations.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group has the greatest respect for the laws and regulations
which govern our businesses. We have appointed compliance
officer to oversee compliance with all relevant regulations for our
financial services business in Hong Kong. As for the gaming
business in Macau, the Group has adopted anti-money laundering
procedures in accordance to relevant regulations. Policies are well
communicated to relevant employees to ensure compliance with
all these anti-money laundering policies and procedures.

The Group has complied with all relevant laws and regulations
throughout the year.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The management firmly believes that staffs are the most valuable
asset of a company and are crucial to the company’s success. As
a caring employer, we offer competitive benefits to our staffs and
provide full spectrum training to familiarise our staffs with the
industry. We are also committed to provide our staffs a safe
working environment by strictly following operational manual
formulated with reference to the guidelines issued by the Macau
Labor Affairs Bureau.

The Group’s key hotel customers include online and traditional
travel agents. As a professional service provider, we are dedicated
to provide wonderful accommodating and entertainment
experience to our customers. Our well trained staffs create a safe,
clean and cozy environment to gain repeat customers.
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We also established long-term good cooperation relationship with
suppliers up to over 10 years, to ensure stable supply, price and
quality of the product for our hotel operation in Macau.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended 31 March
2020 is set out in Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy on 4 January 2019
(the “Dividend Policy”) in order to provide return to the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

Under the Dividend Policy, provided that the Group is profitable
and without affecting the normal operations of the Group, the
Company may consider to declare and pay dividends to the
Shareholders. In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in
determining the dividend amount, the Board shall take into
account, among others, the Group’s actual and expected financial
performance, retained earnings and distributable reserves,
working capital requirements, capital expenditure requirements
and future expansion plans, liquidity position, Shareholders’
interests, general economic conditions, business cycle of the
Group’s business and other internal or external factors that may
have an impact on the business or financial performance and
position of the Group and other factors that the Board deems
appropriate. Declaration and payment of dividend shall remain to
be determined at the sole discretion of the Board and subject to
the Laws of Bermuda, the Bye-Laws of the Company and any
applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The Company will continually review the Dividend Policy and
reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update,
amend and/or modify the Dividend Policy at any time. The
Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding
commitment by the Company that dividends will be paid in any
particular amount and/or in no way obligate the Company to
declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in Note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity on page 112 respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the distributable reserves of the Company as at 31
March 2020 are set out in Note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year ended 31
March 2020 amounted to approximately HK$750,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
Note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years, as extracted from the audited
financial statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out as
below:

ot 18

ARARFEBENREEEHFES RS

BT MEN ST RE V2B HARBEDE -
7 Ik

ARAR-B-FEZA=+—AZADRHE

HIBEENARA M MARMEEST -

B
HE-_Z-_TF-ZA=Z+—HIFE KAEB{E
HEE=1E A £49 750,000 7T °

M - BERRE
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HRERMIFE18 o

Ffs 8 2 A
AAREEMBRARFIBTHNGE Y BRENE
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BME - DRFAKERMBHREK - YEFE
o #IT

2B

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

—ECEF —NF —N\F —tF ZT—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET T FET SRCH FET

Revenue s 2,634,417 3,039,228 3,093,546 2,878,897 3,115,050

Profit before taxation BB AT 589,826 1,230,664 1,607,105 1,781,825 2,030,072
Profit for the year attributable  AQEHEAE A

to owners of the Company FE(5F R A 503,062 1,001,927 1,348,626 1,484,943 1,700,374

Total assets BEE 31,905,896 35292916 37,594,895 36,654,680 34,928,528

Total liabilities BEBE (10,133,043) (13,747,276) (16,955,535) (17,053,551) (16,300,305)

Non-controlling interests e - (23,599) (15,606) (19,871) (12,231)
Total equity attributable to AABHEB A

owners of the Company FE(L 25 % 21,772,853  21522,041 20,623,754 19581267 18,615,992

Kingston Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2020

82



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EERWmE

SHARE OPTIONS AND SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share options and share capital of
the Company during the year are set out in Notes 34 and 36 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

Share Options Scheme

The original share option scheme adopted on 7 June 2004 expired
on 6 June 2014. At the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 20 August 2013, Shareholders have approved the
adoption of a new share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”).

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide the
Company with a flexible and effective means of incentivising,
rewarding, remunerating, compensating, and/or providing benefits
to participants. To determine the eligibility of the participant, the
Board may offer to grant an option to any participant who has
contribution to the Group.

For share options granted under the Share Option Scheme are
subject to such terms and conditions as it may be determined by
the Board at its absolute discretion and specified in the offer of a
share option. The terms and conditions may include: (i) vesting
conditions which must be satisfied before a share option holder’s
shall become vested and capable of being exercised; and (ii) the
Board may, in its absolute discretion, specify performance
conditions that must be achieved before a share option can be
exercised, and/or the minimum period for which a share option
must be held before it can be exercised.

The share option price will be determined by the Board at its
absolute discretion and notified to a share option holder. The
minimum share option price shall not be less than the highest of: (i)
the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer date; (ii) the
average closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the offer date; and (iii) the nominal
value of the shares of the Company.

The total number of shares of the Company which may be issued
upon exercise of all share options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any share options to be granted under any
other share option scheme adopted by the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the aggregate of the shares of the
Company in issue at the adoption date. Share options lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme adopted by the Company will not be
counted for the purpose of calculating the 10% limit.
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With the approval of the Shareholders in general meeting, the Board
may “refresh” the 10% limit provided that the total number of shares
of the Company which may be issued upon the exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme adopted by the Company under the limit
as “refreshed” shall not exceed 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue at the date on which the Shareholders approve the
“refreshed” limit. Share options previously granted under the Share
Option Scheme and share option granted under any other share
option schemes adopted by the Company, including those
outstanding, cancelled and lapsed in accordance with the terms of
the relevant scheme, or exercised share option will not be counted
for the purpose of calculating the limit as “refreshed”.

The Board may, with the approval of the Shareholders, grant share
options in excess of the 10% limit to participants specifically
identified. In such situation, the Company will send a circular to the
Shareholders containing a generic description of the specified
participants who may be granted such share options, the number
and terms of such share options to be granted and the purpose of
granting such share options to the specified participants with an
explanation of how the terms of the share options will serve the
purpose. The total number of shares of the Company which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding share options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and all
outstanding share options granted and yet to be exercised under
any other share option scheme adopted by the Company shall not
exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in issue from time to
time. No share option may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and no share option may be granted under any other
share option schemes adopted by the Company if this will result in
the limit being exceeded.

The Board shall not grant any share option to any participant which,
if exercised, would result in such participant becoming entitled to
subscribe for such number of shares of the Company as, when
aggregated with the total number of shares of the Company already
issued or to be issued to him under all share option granted to him
(including those share option exercised and unexercised) under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme adopted
by the Company in any 12-month period exceed 1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at the approval date.

The Board may grant options to any participant in excess of the
individual limit of 1% in any 12-month period with the approval of the
Shareholders in a general meeting (with such participant and his
associates abstaining from voting). In such situation, the Company
will send a circular to the Shareholders and the circular must disclose
the identity of the participant, the number and terms of the share
options to be granted (and previously granted to such participant).
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Share options under the Share Option Scheme which is vested and
has not lapsed may be exercised at any time during such period
notified by the Board as not exceeding 10 years from the date of
grant. The exercise of share options may also be subject to any
conditions imposed by the Board at date of grant.

For the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, the Company had
no share option being granted, outstanding, lapsed or cancelled
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Other than the Share Options Scheme as disclosed in the above
paragraphs headed “Share Options Schemes”, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Company during the year or
subsisted at the end of the financial year under review.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Bye-Laws of the Company provide that the directors for the
time being of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which
they shall or may incur or sustain by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty or
supposed duty in their respective offices except such (if any) as
they shall incur or sustain through their own willful neglect or
default respectively.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liability and
costs associated with defending any proceedings which may be
brought against the directors of the Company and its subsidiaries.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares of the Company on prorate basis to existing of
the Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

During the year ended 31 March 2020, there were no purchases,
sales or redemptions of the Company’s listed securities by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors who held office during the year ended 31 March
2020 and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui (Chairman)

Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chu, Kingston Chun Ho

Mr. Ho Chi Ho

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lau Man Tak

Ms. Lo, Miu Sheung Betty

Mr. Chiu Sin Nang, Kenny (appointed on 29 August 2019)
Dr. Wong Yun Kuen (retired on 29 August 2019)

In accordance with the bye-law 87(1), Mr. Chu Nicholas Yuk-yui,
Mr. Ho Chi Ho and Mr. Lau Man Tak will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, and being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election.

The term of office for each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors is the period up to his retirement by rotation and re-
election at annual general meeting of the Company in accordance
with the Company’s bye-laws.

The Company has received from each of Mr. Lau Man Tak, Ms. Lo,
Miu Sheung Betty and Mr. Chiu Sing Nang, Kenny an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and the Company still considers the independent Non-
executive Directors to be independent.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of directors and senior management of
the Group as at the date of this report are as follows:

Chairman and Executive Director

Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui, aged 67, holds a Bachelor’'s degree
in Accounting and a Master’s degree of Business Administration
from the Louisiana State University. He has more than 20 years
experience in corporate finance, foreign exchange, lending,
securities and futures trading industries. He is a member of Hong
Kong Securities Institute and a responsible officer under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance for type 1 (dealing in securities)
and 2 (dealing in futures contracts) regulated activities. He is the
spouse of Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah and the father of Mr. Chu, Kingston
Chun Ho. He joined the Group in February 2006.

Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah, aged 61, is the Chief Executive Officer and
an Executive Director of the Company. She is the co-founder of the
Group, she has over 20 years of experience in financial services
industry. Mrs. Chu has also been appointed as the Permanent
Honorary President and Vice Chairman of The Institute of Securities
Dealers, Vice Chairman of Hong Kong Securities Professionals
Association. Moreover, she is a Member of National Committee of
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, Vice President
of Belt and Road General Chamber of Commerce, Permanent
Member of the Friends of Hong Kong Association, the Founder and
Permanent Honorary Chairman of The Chamber of Hong Kong
Listed Companies, Chairman (2015-16) and Advisory Board
Member (2016-17) of Po Leung Kuk, Standing Chairman of
Federation of Hong Kong Guangdong Community Organisations,
Chairman of the Hong Kong Federation of Dongguan Associations,
Permanent Honorary Chairman of Federation of Hong Kong Zhuhai
Community, Chairman of Aplichau Promotion of Tourism
Association, Chairman of The Aplichau KaiFong Welfare
Association, Honorary President of Hong Kong Army Cadets
Association, Honorary President of Hong Kong New Arrivals
Services Foundation Limited and Director of Sun Yat-Sen University
Advisory Board. She earned an Honorary Ph.D. degree in Business
Management from York University, the United States and holds a
Bachelor’s degree in Science of Management from Golden Gate
University, the United States. Mrs. Chu is currently the chairman
and an Executive Director of Sincere Watch (Hong Kong) Limited
which is a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. She is also the spouse of Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui
and the mother of Mr. Chu, Kingston Chun Ho. She joined the
Group in April 2005.
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Executive Director

Mr. Chu, Kingston Chun Ho, aged 35, is an Executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Chu is also a licensed person under Securities and
Futures Ordinance for type 1 (dealing in securities) and type 6
(advising on corporate finance) regulated activities for the Company’s
wholly owned subsidiaries, Kingston Securities Limited and Kingston
Corporate Finance Limited respectively. Representative of Kingston
Futures Limited in Financial Services functional constituency. Mr. Chu
is a Member of Guangxi Committee of The Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, Member of General Committee of The
Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies, Vice President of Hong
Kong CPPCC Youth Association, Vice Director of Youth Committee of
HKCPPCC (Provincial) Members Association, Vice President of
Federation of HK Guangxi Community Organisations, Vice Chairman
of Hong Kong Guangdong Youth Association, Honorary Chairman of
Hong Kong Guangxi Youth Organisations and The Founder Chairman
of Youth Committee of Hong Kong Federation of Dongguan
Associations. Mr. Chu holds a Bachelor Degree of Science in
Business Administration from the University of Southern California in
the U.S.A. Mr. Chu is also an Executive Director of Sincere Watch
(Hong Kong) Limited (“Sincere HK”) since 29 May 2012 and the
chairman and an Executive Director of Synergis Holdings Limited
since 9 March 2017, both companies are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chu is a Director of Sincere Watch Limited,
the immediate holding company of Sincere HK since 21 May 2012,
Mr. Chu is the son of Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui and Mrs. Chu Yuet
Wah. Mr. Chu joined the Group in July 2010 and was appointed as
Executive Director on 21 August 2015.

Mr. Ho Chi Ho, aged 45, is an Executive Director of the Company.
Mr. Ho is responsible for origination and execution of corporate
finance transactions including mergers and acquisitions, corporate
and capital restructuring, business projects evaluation, and equity
and debt fund raising. Mr. Ho has extensive experience in banking
and capital markets, and also held senior positions in corporate
management in Hong Kong listed companies. Mr. Ho is also an
Executive Director of China Water Industry Group Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, since April 2019. Mr.
Ho holds a Master degree in Business Administration from the Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology and a Bachelor degree in
Business Administration (Accounting and Finance) from The
University of Hong Kong. He is registered as a Responsible Officer
under the Securities and Future Ordinance for Type 6 (advising on
corporate finance) regulated activities. Mr. Ho had worked with the
Group from 2003 to 2007 and rejoined in August 2011. He was
appointed as Executive Director on 2 January 2014.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lau Man Tak (“Mr. Lau”), aged 50, holds a Bachelor Degree
of Arts in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
He has more than 19 years of experience in finance and
accounting. He is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Securities and Investment Institute and a fellow member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Lau is currently an
Executive Director and Chairman of TEM Holdings Limited, a
company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange, an Independent
Non-executive Director of Synergis Holdings Limited, a company
listed on Main Board of the Stock Exchange and an Independent
Non-executive Director of Chinese Food and Beverage Group
Limited, a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange. He is
also a Non-executive Director and chairman of REF Holdings
Limited, a company listed on Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
He joined the Group in October 2005.

Ms. Lo, Miu Sheung Betty (“Ms. Lo”), aged 58, is a qualified
solicitor in Hong Kong and has over 31 years of experience in
general legal practice, with specialisation in conveyancing,
commercial and probate laws. Ms. Lo has been in active practice
since qualification and is currently a consultant of Messrs. K.C. Ho
& Fong, Solicitors & Notaries. She graduated from The University
of Hong Kong with a Bachelor Degree in Laws (LL.B.) in 1985. She
also holds a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws (PCLL). Ms. Lo is an
Independent Non-executive Director of Sincere Watch (Hong
Kong) Limited since 19 June 2012. She is currently an Independent
Non-executive Director of AEON Stores (Hong Kong) Co., Limited
since 8 November 2013. The securities of all of these companies
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. She joined the
Group in September 2016.
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Mr. Chiu Sin Nang, Kenny (“Mr. Chiu”), aged 58, has over 30
years of experience in accounting. Mr. Chiu has held various
senior accounting and finance positions in sectors of property
investment and development, and information technology
development business. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the CPA Australia. Mr.
Chiu received a Master of Accountancy degree from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong in December 2006, a Bachelor of Laws
degree from the Peking University, the People’s Republic of China
in July 1998, a degree of Master of Commerce in Accounting from
The University of New South Wales, Australia in May 1989, a
Bachelor of Administrative Studies degree and a Bachelor of Arts
(Economics) degree from the York University, Canada in June
1986 and June 1985 respectively. He is currently an Executive
Director of Kin Shing Holdings Limited and an Independent Non-
executive Director of Keyne Limited (formerly known as Nine
Express Limited) and Sincere Watch (Hong Kong) Limited, all
companies are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
He joined the Group in August 2019.

Senior Management

Mr. Lui Chun Pong, aged 51, joined the Group on 30 April 2018
and is the Chief Operating Officer of the Company. Mr. Lui
obtained a Bachelor degree of Arts from the University of Hong
Kong, a Master degree of Laws from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong, a Master degree of Accountancy from Charles Sturt
University in Australia and an Executive Master degree of Business
Administration from the City University of Hong Kong. He is a
Certified Public Accountant and a Certified Tax Advisor in Hong
Kong, and a Chartered Certified Accountant and a Chartered
Secretary in the United Kingdom. He has over 28 years of
experience in corporate accounting, financing and tax
administration in the real estate business like property
development, property investment and property management, in
addition to company secretarial practices of Hong Kong listed
companies. Mr. Lui held senior positions at a number of Hong
Kong Companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Lui currently is a Non-executive Director of China Ocean Group
Development Limited (formerly known as China Ocean Fishing
Holdings Limited), a company listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Lui was an Executive Director of Hsin Chong Group
Holdings Limited from September 2015 to December 2016 and
redesignated to a Non-executive Director from January 2017 to
November 2018 and an Executive Director of Synergis Holdings
Limited from December 2015 to March 2017, both Companies are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Chan Chun Lam, aged 48, joined the Group on 4 April 2014
and is the Financial Controller and Company Secretary of the
Company. Mr. Chan holds a bachelor degree of Business
Administration in Accounting with honors from Hong Kong Baptist
University. Mr. Chan is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising)
and a fellow member of both the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Chan has worked for an International accounting
firm and a number of listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Chan
has over 20 years of professional experience in financial
management and auditing.

Ms. Chan Yin Tong Cynthia, aged 69, is a Director of Kingston
Securities Limited. Ms. Chan is responsible for promotion, sales
and marketing, recruitment and training of sales representative of
Kingston Securities. Ms. Chan has extensive experience in
securities broking, compliance, administrative functions, activities
in underwriting new issues, equity capital markets and project
financing. Prior to joining the Group, she was the Dealing Director
and Responsible Officer of Wintech Securities Limited and Koffman
Securities Limited principally responsible for securities broking,
compliance and administrative functions. In addition, Ms. Chan
also undertook activities in underwriting new issues, equity capital
markets and project financing. Ms. Chan has been working in
international securities firms and investment banks in the 1980’s.
Ms. Chan worked in Merrill Lynch (FE) Limited in 1989 and
Standard Chartered Securities Limited in 1993 and was also the
Assistant Vice President of Prudential Bache Securities Hong Kong
Limited in 1997. She is very experienced with the operations of the
Hong Kong securities market. Ms. Chan is a registered
Responsible Officer under Type 1 (dealing in securities) regulated
activities. Ms. Chan joined the Group in February 2006.
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Mr. Wong Hip Keung Jimmy, aged 59, is the Director-Retail and
Corporate Sales of Kingston Securities Limited. Mr. Wong is
responsible for overseeing the dealing department which includes
both securities and futures products. He has a Bachelor Degree in
Accounting from the Golden Gate University in San Francisco, CA,
USA. With extensive experience in securities and capital markets,
he is specialised in securities & futures broking, compliance and
administrative functions. He is registered as a responsible officer
under Type 1 (dealing in securities) and Type 2 (dealing in futures
contracts) regulated activities. He joined the Group in October
1996.

Mr. Chan Kwun Wah Derek, aged 49, is the Managing Director of
Kingston Corporate Finance Limited. He is principally engaged in
leading and planning investment banking and financial
consultation services, including IPO sponsorship, structured
finance, merger & acquisitions, asset restructuring and corporate
governance advisory. He has earned over 21 years of experience
from a few renowned securities firms and global financial
institutions. He holds a Master of Business Administration in the UK
and a Bachelor’'s Degree in Business Administration in Canada. He
is registered as a responsible officer under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance for Type 1 & 6 activities. Mr. Chan had worked
with the Group from 2004 to 2008 and rejoined in January 2014.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND THE FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration and of the five highest
paid individuals of the Group are set out in Notes 16 and 17 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah has entered into a service contract with the
Company for an initial term of 3 years which commenced on 1 April
2014, and will continue thereafter until terminated by either party
by giving not less than 6 months’ written notice.

All of the Non-executive Directors have executed a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of one year which
commenced on 1 April 2020, and subject to compliance with
relevant requirements of the Listing Rules, and will continue
thereafter until terminated by either party by giving not less than
three months’ written notice.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 March 2020, none of the Directors are interested in any
business, apart from the Group’s businesses, which competes or
is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses
of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Saved as disclosed in Note 47 to the consolidated financial
statements, no contracts of significance to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party in which any of the Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year ended 31 March 2020 or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year ended 31 March 2020.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECURITIES

At 31 March 2020, the following of the Directors had interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which would be required (a) to be notified to
the Company or the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFQO); or (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in
the register referred to therein; or (c) to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the requirements of the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies:

Long positions in the issued shares of the Company:

Number of shares
of the Company
ARAFRBEE
Personal Corporate

Name of the Directors Interests Interests

EEHA

8 A S DA ERE

Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah -
T HELZL

10,157,205,895
(Note 1)
(Htat 1)

Notes:

1. As at 31 March 2020, 10,157,205,895 shares of the Company are
held by Active Dynamic Limited which is controlled by Mrs. Chu Yuet
Wah (“Mrs. Chu”).

2. As at 31 March 2020, Mrs. Chu, through Active Dynamic Limited
held 3,750,000,000 convertible preference shares of the Company
conferring rights to subscribe for up to HK$3,000,000,000 in
aggregate in cash for 3,750,000,000 new shares of the Company at
the conversion price of HK$0.80 (subject to adjustments) per share.
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Save for those disclosed above, no interests and short positions
were held or deemed or taken to be held under Part XV of the SFO
by any of the Director or the Chief Executive of the Company or
their respective associates in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Part XV of the SFO or pursuant to the Model Code or which are
required pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO to be entered in the
register referred to therein.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
interests and short positions in securities”, at no time during the year
ended 31 March 2020 was the Company or any of its associated
corporations a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or
Chief Executive of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or underlying shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate, and none of the Directors
or Chief Executives, nor any of their spouses or children under the
age of 18, had any rights to subscribe the securities of the
Company, or had exercised any such rights during the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2020, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO
shows that, the following shareholders had notified the Company
of relevant interests and short positions in the issued shares of the
Company:

Number of shares
of the Company
RARRGBEE
Personal Corporate

Name of Shareholders Interests Interests

BRRERB 1H

(PN £ DNEERE

Active Dynamic Limited - 10,157,205,895

(Note 1)(K17E1)
Note:

1. Active Dynamic Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Mrs.
Chu. The interests of Mrs. Chu and Active Dynamic Limited in the
Company are stated under the section headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s interests and short positions in securities” above.

Save for those disclosed above, the Company has not been
notified of any other relevant interests or short positions in the
issued shares of the Company as at 31 March 2020.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME
Particulars of the employee retirement benefits scheme of the
Group are set out in Note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Entering into Tenancy Agreement

On 15 January 2019, the Company as the tenant, entered
into the Tenancy Agreement with The Center (72) Limited, a
company wholly and beneficially owned by Mrs. Chu Yuet
Wah, as the landlord of the Premises, in relation to the
leasing of the Premises for a term of three years.

1.

A summary of the principal terms of the Tenancy Agreement

is as follows:

Date

Parties

Premises

Terms

Rental and
payment
terms

Air-conditioning
and management
charges

Deposit

15 January 2019

. (i)  the Company as tenant; and

(i) The Center (72) Limited as
landlord

The Landlord is principally engaged in
property holding.

. the whole of 72th floor, The Center, 99

Queen’s Road Central, Central, Hong
Kong Island, the gross floor area of
which is approximately 26,586 square
feet

. three (3) years, commencing from 15

January 2019 to 14 January 2022

. HK$3,057,390 per month (excluding

Government rates, Government rent,
air-conditioning and management
charges), with a rent-free period of
three months commencing from 15
January 2019 to 14 April 2019

: HK$229,039 per month

. HK$10,561,563.60, equivalent to three

months’ rental, Government rates,
Government rent, air-conditioning and
management charges by the
Company to the Landlord on the date
of the Tenancy Agreement
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Based on the monthly rental, air-conditioning and management
charges, and taking into account the rent-free period of three
months under the Tenancy Agreement, the aggregate amount
payable by the Company under the Tenancy Agreement will
be approximately HK$109 million and is expected to be
financed by the internal resources of the Group.

Details were set out in the Company’s announcement dated
15 January 2019.

2. Other Connected Transactions
Details of other connected transactions entered into by the
Company during the year are set out in Note 47 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of events after the reporting period are set out in Note 48 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material related party transactions undertaken by the
Group in its normal course of business are set out in Note 47 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at
the date of this report.

AUDITORS

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 of the
Company have been audited by BDO Limited, who will retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 June 2020
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|IBDO

EEE 1 +852 2218 8288
{85 : +852 2815 2239

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
HEETHEER11155
JKLHIL2548

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
KINGSTON FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kingston
Financial Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 108 to 268, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT OF GOODWILL

Refer to Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements and the
accounting policies on Note 4(c) to the consolidated financial
statements.

As a result of the Group’s acquisition of Kingston Capital Asia
Limited in April 2011, the Group recognised a goodwill of
approximately HK$10,997 million as at 31 March 2020 and 2019
relating to the cash-generating units allocated for the businesses
of Kingston Capital Asia Limited and its subsidiaries including the
provisions of securities dealings, underwriting and placements,
margin and initial public offering (“IPQO”) financing and corporate
finance advisory services to its clients.

For the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, the management
concluded that no provision of impairment loss of goodwill was
recognised. This conclusion was based on the assessment of
recoverable amounts of the relevant cash-generating units by
using the value in use calculations derived from the most recent
budget plan approved by the management. The preparation of
budget plan involves the exercise of significant judgement and
estimation uncertainty, particularly in estimating the discount rate
and future revenue growth rate applied in the value in use
calculations. Independent qualified professional valuer was
engaged by the management to support the impairment
assessment of goodwill.

We identified the impairment assessment of goodwill as a key audit
matter because of the significant judgement and estimation
uncertainty involved in the determination of recoverable amounts
and the carrying amount of goodwill is significant to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUD'T MATTERS (continued)
IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT OF GOODWILL (continued)
Our response:

Our key audit procedures in relation to the impairment assessment
of goodwill included:

— Evaluating the competence, experience, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent qualified professional valuer
engaged by the management to perform the value in use
calculations of the relevant cash generating units;

— Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation
methodologies and the reasonableness of the underlying key
assumptions and estimates adopted in the value in use
calculations based on our knowledge of the businesses and
third party information available to us;

— Reconciling the key input data to supporting evidence of the
value in use calculations provided by the management, such
as approved budgets and considering the reasonableness of
these budgets;

— Evaluating the sensitivity of the impairment assessment in
terms of changing the key assumptions and estimates used;
and

— Engaging our internal valuation specialist to assist us in
assessing the reasonableness of the underlying key
assumptions and estimates used in the value in use
calculations.

IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT OF ADVANCES TO
CUSTOMERS IN MARGIN FINANCING

Refer to Notes 23 and 43(b)(ii) to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies on Note 4(g)(ii) to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 March 2020, the total gross carrying amount of advances
to customers in margin financing was approximately HK$18,454
million (2019: approximately HK$19,238 million).

As at 31 March 2020, the carrying amount of expected credit loss
(“ECL") of approximately HK$2,109 million (2019: approximately
HK$986 million) was recognised in relation to the advances to
customers in margin financing.
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KEY AUD'T MATTERS (continued)

IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT OF ADVANCES TO
CUSTOMERS IN MARGIN FINANCING (continued)

In assessing the ECL on the individual balances of advances to
customers in margin financing, the management performed the
assessment based on their historical credit loss experience,
adjusted to factors that are specific to the margin clients, general
economic conditions and forecast of future conditions at the end of
reporting period. The management also reviews the fair value of
pledged securities received from the margin clients. The
methodologies and assumptions used in the impairment
assessment of advances to customers in margin financing are
reviewed regularly by the management to reduce the differences
between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

We identified the impairment assessment of advances to
customers in margin financing as a key audit matter because of
the significant judgement and estimation uncertainty involved in
the determination of ECL on the individual balances of advances to
customers in margin financing at the end of reporting period.
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KEY AUD'T MATTERS (continued)
IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT OF ADVANCES TO
CUSTOMERS IN MARGIN FINANCING (continued)
Our response:

Our key audit procedures in relation to the impairment assessment
of advances to customers in margin financing included:

— Examining the underlying documentation and key
assumptions and estimates used in the impairment
assessment of advances to customers in margin financing by
the management on a sample basis, and assessing the
future cash flows of repayments and the fair value of pledged
securities for all impaired balances of advances to customers
in margin financing;

—  Challenging the management’s assessment and expectation
of the possible outcomes on the recoverability of the
individual balances of advances to customers in margin
financing, the fair value of pledged securities and future cash
flows of repayments against our understanding of the latest
situation and the principal activities of the pledged securities
by reading the public announcements and other available
information to us; and

— Discussing with the management on the key assumptions
and estimates used in the valuation of the pledged securities
to determine whether it is consistent with the view of our
internal valuation specialists, including:

(i) Assessing whether the selection of valuation
methodologies are appropriate for the categories of
pledged securities;

(i)  Assessing the reasonableness of key assumptions and
estimates used by the management with reference to
the latest status against the public announcements
and other available information to us ; and

(i)  Evaluating the appropriateness of key inputs used in
the valuation of pledged securities by checking to
external market data available to us.
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

— ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional missions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

— Obtain and understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

— Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

ST

ATEME NTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B ZEENRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEM ENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Chan Tsz Hung

Practising Certificate Number P0O6693

Hong Kong, 30 June 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
ETHEECQMPR%ENS%E;NCUME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 HE—Z -—THF=FA=+—HItFE

2020 2019
—E-EHF —T-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FHTT
Revenue Wz 7
Securities brokerage, underwriting BHEL  BHER
and placements commission income AR EME WA 52,954 152,056
Margin and IPO financing interest income REGRERAAEE
RE B WA 2,012,156 2,168,514
Other financial services income E e r RIS WA 10,933 44,498
Room and other rental income EENEMBS WA 149,511 188,635
Food and beverage revenue B R BN G 26,582 27,730
Gaming revenue IEEE 382,281 457,795
2,634,417 3,039,228
Other income HdA 8 41,326 25,603
2,675,743 3,064,831
Inventories consumed FriEAFEE (19,367) (23,068)
Staff costs 8 T A 9 (253,500) (253,327)
Gaming commission ERA (122,367) (94,010)
Broker commission gale (6,993) (20,096)
Interest expenses for securities brokerage, BHELL  BEEEES -
underwriting and placements, margin and RESUANBRAREE
IPO financing operations REER B (270,419) (316,910)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥ - = MEEITE 18 (150,931) (103,071)
Impairment losses on advances to customers A& F & {RFSRERME
in margin financing E518 23 (1,122,991) (479,411)
Write off of intangible assets MisELEE 20 - (266,157)
Administrative expenses THAX (79,713) (112,638)
Other operating expenses Hmgegms (74,717) (129,106)
(2,100,998) (1,797,794)
Finance income AMEWA 23,327 21,803
Finance costs BB R 10 (39,148) (32,760)
Change in fair value of financial assets at BEAFEFABRZSBEAE
fair value through profit or loss AL ) 30,726 (26,116)
Exchange gains, net b 5 W a5 558 176 700
15,081 (36,373)
Profit before taxation R 75 BT V58 ) 12 589,826 1,230,664
Taxation BE 11 (86,664) (220,744)
Profit for the year FREF 503,162 1,009,920

1 []8 Kingston Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2020



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FeBEmEMEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 HE—ZT -—THF=-A=+—HItFE

2020 2019
HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Profit for the year FRER 503,162 1,009,920
Other comprehensive income Ha2mEWA 15
Item that will not be reclassified to BreamrsBEEny
profit or loss: HH
Surplus on revaluation of leasehold land EHEET M REFT AR
and buildings 8,018 254 560
Item that may be reclassified subsequently HigngeES o BEEER
to profit or loss: ZIEH :
Change in fair value of financial assets BEAVEFAEMEZE
at fair value through other comprehensive WAZ EREE
income ZRNFEES) = (270)
Other comprehensive income for the year FREMEEUA 8,018 254,290
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEKAELEE 511,180 1,264,210
Profit for the year attributable to: ERERER
— Owners of the Company — RRBHEAE A 503,062 1,001,927
— Non-controlling interests — FEIERRE RS 100 7,993
503,162 1,009,920

Total comprehensive income for the year  E{iFRZEW ALLEE :
attributable to:

— Owners of the Company — KRBIHEE AN 511,080 1,256,217
— Non-controlling interests — JEIE R RE R 100 7,993
511,180 1,264,210

Earnings per share (HK cents per share) BREFR (SRBMW) 14
— Basic — EK 2.90 5.77
— Diluted — & 2.90 5.77

e teea 109



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MR

As at 31 March 2020 R=—FE=-_FF=HA=+—H

2020 2019
—EB-EF —ZT-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET THIT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - HENE&E 18 3,038,087 3,043,862
Statutory deposits for financial CRRBER ZETIZRS
services business 4,216 4,072
Goodwill EES 19 10,996,683 10,996,683
14,038,986 14,044,617
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 21 2,447 2,488
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFAEMEERRAZ
other comprehensive income TREE 140 140
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFABRZEHEE
profit or loss 22 138,374 168,366
Advances to customers in MEFBMNRESHE
margin financing 23 16,345,648 18,252,042
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H A REWARTK 24 102,407 212,979
Tax recoverable A] Yz [B] 7 18 238,632 154,012
Cash and bank balances B& MIRTTE 6
— held on behalf of customers —REPHSA 25 846,344 1,371,749
Cash and bank balances IRE MIRIT4EH
— general accounts — —REREF 26 192,918 1,086,523
17,866,910 21,248,299
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B o5 REMEMNIER 27 990,227 1,657,540
Amounts due to shareholders JEAS IR FRIE 28 4,394,523 4,662,264
Loan from a related company TE—FREELNFERK 29 2,714,146 4,033,342
Subordinated loans BEEX 30 700,000 700,000
Bank loans HTITER 31 630,000 1,420,000
Lease liabilities HeEaE 32 35,859 -
Tax payable & #5118 2,770 52,495
9,467,525 12,525,641
Net current assets RBEEFE 8,399,385 8,722,658
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBEE 22,438,371 22 767,275

1 1 u Kingston Financial Group Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

are MR

As at 31 March 2020 R-—E-_TE=A=+—H

2020 2019
—_ ? — EF _ni
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FH&T
Non-current liabilities FREEE
Bank loans RITER 31 420,000 1,000,000
Lease liabilities HeEaE 32 29,917 -
Deferred tax liabilities BIETIAE & 35 215,601 221,635
Total non-current liabilities FRBEELAE 665,518 1,221,635
Total liabilities E &85 10,133,043 13,747,276
Net assets EEFE 21,772,853 21,545,640
Capital and reserves BERRHE
Share capital — ordinary shares BRAR — Ei@ak 36 272,290 272,290
Share capital — non-redeemable & AN — AT BE (0] AT HR A%
convertible preference shares 1B 36 75,000 75,000
Reserves B 37 21,425,563 21,174,751
Total equity attributable to owners of A TEHE AEGRERELE
the Company 21,772,853 21,522,041
Non-controlling interests FEIE RS 38 - 23,599
Total equity DB 21,772,853 21,545,640
The consolidated financial statements on pages 108 to 268 were F 1082268 B Vi A M HMENR ST FE X
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors of the B =+ B & AR T i%%ﬁt/ﬁ ME#EHE - W H
Company on 30 June 2020 and were signed on its behalf by: LUTNATREESE

Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui
Director

EF

Chu Yuet Wah
=HE

Director

EF

Rt 1N



CUNSEUDAL% ggATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 March 2020 HE—_ZT-_ZEF=A=1+—HILEE

Atiributable to owners of the Company

KATREAERE
Share
capital —
non-
Share redeemable
capital —  convertible Share Capital Property Exchange Non-
ordinary preference  premium redemption Contributed revaluation FVOCI fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
shares shares account reserve surplus reserve  reserve* reserve  eamings interests equity
BA— RATEFA
R&—  FARE
EER TRREER ROGER EABERE A0NBB NEERRE E E REEA it FERER
(No(eaﬂ) (Noem te (Noeo/ (Note 37) (Note 37) § (Note (Note 38)
/ i237) )
HK$ 000
At1 April 2018 R-2-\EmA-H 272,290 75000 11,739,980 466 814 1414601 1,322 (23,169) 7,131,810 20,613,114 15,606 20,628,720
Profit for the year ERE| - - - - - - - - 1,001,927 1001927 7993 1,009,920
Other comprehensive income FREMZARA
for the year - - - - - 254,560 (270) - - 254,290 - 254,290
Total comprehensive income FREERAES
for the year - - - - - 254,560 (270) - 1001927 1256217 7993 1264210

Realised upon depreciation on revaluation %E** iim&@ B

of leasehold land and buildings - - - - - (43,844) - - 43,844 - - -
Dividend paid (Note 13) - - - - - - - S (7%0)  (347.290) - (347,90
At 31 March 2019 R-ZB-AE=R=t+-A 272,290 75000 11,739,980 466 814 1625317 1,062 (23,169) 7,830,291 21,522,041 23599 21,545,640
Profitfor the year EREf = = = = - - - - 503062 503,062 100 503,162
Other comprehensive income EREHZERA

for the year = = = = = 8,018 = = = 8,018 = 8,018
Total comprehensive income FREERAER

for the year - - - - - 8,018 - - 503,062 511,080 100 511,180
Acquisition of non-contralling interests B SRR iR (A 38)

(Note 38) = = = = = = = = 199 199 (36%9)  (3500)
Realised upon depreciation on revaluation i REFER

of leasehold land and buildings ik, - - - - - (52,267) - - 52,267 - - -
Dividend paid (Notes 13 and 38) ERBRE(H 1R %) - - - - - - = - (260467) (260467)  (20000)  (280,467)
At 31 March 2020 R-B-BEZfAz+-1 272,290 75,000 11,739,980 466 814 1,581,068 1,052 (23,169) 8,125,352 21,772,853 - 21,772,853

* FVOCI reserve is the abbreviation of fair value through other * G FHEFAAEMDEMAFEETIIZAFEFTAL
comprehensive income reserve. fib 2 ETHA 12 BT -

1 1 2 Kingston Financial Group Limited
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CUNSULIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

/\\/\ EE,\/ ;ﬁ%%

For the year ended 31 March 2020 HE—ZT -—THF=-A=+—HItFE

Cash flows from operating activities

REXRTERERE

2020
—?—?$

HK$000
TR

2019
—NF
HK$'000
TR

Profit before taxation B 758 Al g 7 589,826 1,230,664
Adjustments for: BRI S IEEH R
Finance costs BEMAK 10 39,148 32,760
Finance income BE WA (23,327) (21,803)
Dividend income i B A 8 (1,205) (567)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #2% « E RRETE 18 150,931 103,071
Provision of impairment losses on trade and ~ :HEE 5 R EMEKERZR

other receivables HEBE 24 475 226
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - BEREE

plant and equipment pdl¢:: 8 (5,460) -
Write off of property, plant and HWSEME - BB R EE

equipment 12 609 -
Write off of intangible assets WEmEEAE 20 = 266,157
Impairment losses on advances to MEFENRERRHE

customers in margin financing REEE 23 1,122,991 479,411
Change in fair value of financial BATESAERZ

assets at fair value through SREEZ

profit or loss RNEEEE 22 (30,726) 26,116
Reversal of over-accrued lease expenses, net & EI#B2EfEEAEMY - (94 8 (11,407) -
Operating profit before working BEESEHA R T

capital changes 1,831,855 2,116,035
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL /() M (98)
Decrease/(increase) in financial BAFEFAERZ

assets at fair value through SREE

profit or loss B/ (&) 60,718 (1,677)
(Increase)/decrease in statutory SRRBEB LT RS

deposits for financial services business (3gm),/ (144) 6,209
Decrease in advances to customers MEPBNREDHE

in margin financing and trade and IARE S REM

other receivables P Lt BR FURL 875,908 1,779,579
Decrease in cash and bank balances HeRiRTTEH

— held on behalf of customers —REFEERD 525,405 677,852
Decrease in trade and other payables E 5 MEMENEREZOR D (638,314) (626,967)
Cash generated from operations B IREEI S 2,655,469 3,950,933
Income tax paid BERFEH (228,136) (296,282)
Net cash from operating activities REXBHERESFH 2,427,333 3,654,651

EHNELREBEFR QA
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CUNSULIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

/\\/\ Iﬁ\/;ﬁ%%

For the year ended 31 March 2020 HE—Z -—THF=FA=+—HItFE

2020 2019
—BCEF —T-hEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THET
Cash flows from investing activities RETEBMEBHERE
Additions of property, RNEVE  BER
plant and equipment HiE (40,286) (8,937)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE BEX
plant and equipment B FEEUA 6,378 -
Payment for acquisition of Wi % HXTEﬁnlaﬁi 38
non-controlling interests (3,500) -
Interest received BUFI S 23,327 21,803
Dividend received 2R E 1,205 567
Net cash (used in)/from investing RETEH(FTA)/FiB
activities B& 38 (12,876) 13,433
Cash flows from financing activities METBHAERERE 41
Advances from shareholders PESEA = 442,353
Repayments to shareholders BEBRFEFE (267,741) -
Advance from a related company —REAE N R B 2,803,914 3,877,986
Repayment to a related company M—REEQAER (4,123,110) (6,987,643)
Proceeds from bank loans RITERMAER 11,710,549 17,828,000
Repayments of bank loans BEETER (13,080,549) (17,758,000)
Repayments of interest portion on EBEHEAENEES
lease liabilities (3,798) -
Repayments of principal portion on EBEHEEBELRSHD
lease liabilities (31,510) -
Interest paid [EARENESS (35,350) (32,760)
Dividend paid ERRE 138 38 (280,467) (347,290)
Net cash used in financing activities METBRARSFE (3,308,062) (2,977,354)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and iﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%fﬁlﬁ =]
cash equivalents W),/ hnEEE (893,605) 690,730
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning ﬁ%}]iﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁlﬁ =]
of year 1,086,523 395,793
Cash and cash equivalents atend of year FXABRERRESEEHIER 26 192,918 1,086,523

1 14 Kingston Financial Group Limited
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Kingston Financial Group Limited (the “Company*) was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability in
Bermuda on 10 April 1996 under the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda. The Company’s shares have been listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) since 23 July 1996. The address of
the Company’s registered office and principal place of
business are located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and 72/F, The Center, 99 Queen’s
Road Central, Central, Hong Kong respectively.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 40.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

2.1 Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
During the year, the Group has adopted for the first
time the following new or revised HKFRSs, including
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards and Interpretations (the “new
and revised HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
which are relevant to the Group’s accounting policies
and business operations prepared and presented on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the
financial year beginning on or after 1 April 2019:

HKFRS 16 Leases
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Amendments to Prepayment Features with
HKFRS 9 Negative Compensation

Amendments to Plan Amendment, Curtailment
HKAS 19 or Settlement

Amendments to Long-term Interests in Associates
HKAS 28 and Joint Ventures

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Annual Improvements to
HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
and HKAS 23
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

2.1 Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs that are

mandatorily effective for the current year
(continued)
Except as described below for the impact of the
adoption of HKFRS 16 “Leases”, the adoption of other
new or revised HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the financial year beginning on or after 1 April 2019
did not have any significant impact on the Group’s
accounting policies, financial position and financial
performance for the current and prior years and/or the
disclosures set out in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (“HKFRS 16”)
(i) Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16

HKFRS 16 brings significant changes in
accounting treatment for lease accounting,
primarily for accounting for lessees. It replaces
HKAS 17 “Leases” ("HKAS 17”), HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
“Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease” ("HK(IFRIC)-Int 4"), HK(SIC)-Int 15
“Operating Leases — Incentives” (“HK(SIC)-Int
15”) and HK(SIC)-Int 27 “Evaluating the
Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal
Form of a Lease” (“HK(SIC)-Int 27”). From a
lessee’s perspective, almost all leases are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position as a right of-use asset and a
lease liability, with the narrow exception to this
principle for leases which the underlying assets
are of low-value or are determined as short-term
leases. From a lessor’s perspective, the
accounting treatment is substantially unchanged
from HKAS 17.

Kingston Financial Group Limited
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NUTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

2.1 Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

(continued)
HKFRS 16 “Leases” (“HKFRS 16”) (continued)

(i) Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 (continued)

For details of HKFRS 16 regarding its new
definition of a lease, its impact on the Group’s
accounting policies when the Group as a lessee
or lessor, taxation and the transitional impact and
practical expedients applied from the initial
adoption of HKFRS 16, please refer to section (ii)
to (vi) of this note.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 by using the
modified retrospective approach and has
therefore recognised all of the cumulative effect of
the initial adoption of HKFRS 16 as an adjustment
to the opening balance of retained earnings at the
date of initial adoption, i.e. 1 April 2019. The
comparative information presented in the prior
financial year of 2019 has not been restated and
continues to be reported under HKAS 17 and the
related interpretations as allowed by the transition
provision in HKFRS 16.

The following table summarised the impact of
transition to HKFRS 16 on the consolidated
statement of financial position as of 31 March
2019 to that as of 1 April 2019 as follows:

\

2 BEMNBEBUBRERES
HHREER D

2.1 BRANAF BE 08 ) A 2 AT S AR
BT B BMB|REER 2

Al ([ &2 R

ERVBRELEAE16FEHEI(F

B EREEAE165% 1) (@)

() RANEEBEHHIREERE 169

()
BEARY R EERF 1657 EHE
HHEEZHMTEE  HEAEEE
AFEMAAS AR Z @5 HOR
ZE/’E“&EEPK%T%ZW%}%HM%&
AERIFE 16 IAR Z BEFE R

ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ,\%%ﬁﬁ/ﬁﬁﬁ RS
RN E D)

RNEBFEALIETBPERME
B IS HRE R E 165 - Bt
BERTINRMBB(I—ZT—H
FMA—B) BIIRRNE B
HEREERF 165 2 A K5t
VERRABRBANPIESHRZ
FE - BBV HREERFE 16
SRZBEAES AR —E— 1
FE—AHBRFER2YLERE
B ARES - BRERERSE
ETAERIE17R R ABMERIER R -

TERBAEEERBHEREE
AF16RHER T - NF=A
=t—HE-ZT-hFWA—H
ZIFB MBI RER A TR

HK$'000
TAT

Consolidated statement of
financial position as at 1 April 2019

Assets:
Right-of-use assets presented in
property, plant and equipment
Liabilities:
Lease liabilities (non-current)
Lease liabilities (current)

R-ZB-AFOA—-BZ

REMBMRRR
BE:
R - BERERERYZ
FREEE 97,286
afE&:
MEBEGERE) 62,805
HEBBORD) 34,481
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2 ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

2 RHBEBMBHREEAN(FEY
HHmEER )

2.1 Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs that are 21 RARFERBERZHTHRL
mandatorily effective for the current year BRI BB EREER »)
(continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (“HKFRS 16”) (continued) ERMBERELEANE16FE HEI(EF
BUEREERE165]) (2)
(i) Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 (continued) () RAEENHEREERFE 165
2R ()
The following reconciliation explains how the NTHEMER-_Z—-NF=A
operating lease commitments disclosed by —t+—HEREBSFERFE17
applying HKAS 17 as at 31 March 2019 could be SRR R 2 R E AR A B A
reconciled to the lease liabilities at the date of ZE-NFNA—B2EHEEHH
initial adoption of HKFRS 16 recognised in the A S 2R R RE R MR ER AN & P8 B
consolidated statement of financial position as at BHREEAF16HAHZAE
1 April 2019: BEETTHER -
HK$'000
FHET
Reconciliation of operating lease reEfEREREAEEE
commitments to lease liabilities ZH R
Operating lease commitments as of RZZE—NEF=A=+—H
31 March 2019 ZISEHE AN 105,494
Less: Operating lease commitments relating & : BERRENML 2 FE 2 K&
to leases exempt from capitalisation: THEAIE -
— Short-term leases with remaining — HTHERR - =_Z=F
lease term ending on or before —A=Zt—HszmIHz
31 March 2020 REPEE (1,543)
103,951
Less: Total future interest expenses W RRF BB (6,665)
Total lease liabilities as of 1 April 2019 A-E—NFMNA—H
ZHEaERR 97,286
Total lease liabilities classified as: HEEBEEYI A
— Current liabilities — RBAE 34,481
— Non-current liabilities — ERBAE 62,805
97,286
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NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B mRME

2 ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

2.1 Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

(continued)
HKFRS 16 “Leases” (“HKFRS 16”) (continued)

(i) Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 (continued)

The weighted average of the incremental
borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position as of 1 April 2019 is 4.8%.

(i) The new definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a lease is defined as a contract,
or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use
an asset (the underlying asset) for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. A contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time when the
customer, throughout the period of use, has both:
(a) the right to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from the use of the identified
asset; and (b) the right to direct the use of the
identified asset.

For a contract that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, a lessee shall allocate the
consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-
alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components, unless the lessee apply the practical
expedient which allows the lessee to elect, by
class of underlying asset, not to separate non-
lease components from lease components, and
instead account for each lease component and
any associated non-lease components as a single
lease component.

The Group has separated the non-lease
components from the lease components on the
basis of their relative stand-alone prices.

\

KRBV BREEAN(FRY

B E

A )

2.1 BRANAF BE 08 ) A 2 AT S AR
BT B BMB|REER 2

ERVBHREENF16R[HE|([F
BUBHREERFE165 ) (@)

(i)

(ii)

RAEEH B HEERE 165

ZREE)
RZTF-NENA-—BZ&HEEH
Bk R AR 2 HERERTE
AmEFOZEEEENES
4.8% °

HEZHEZ
RIBFBMEHREERIE 1655 -
HERTEERURERBEE
(HEEE) RN —BEBRZER
B2 —HANEBHNZ &S -
EEPREEERBERE : (a)
BREREREBNEETRZ
BARMOEEMD : R(o)BR
ERCBAIEE &R - 64
B e AN AT A — Exﬁﬁ'ﬁlm HE
HBIEEZ g

REEHE /\L‘A&—Iﬁj&lﬁ
BINMEESIEHEN D 26

5 ABAAEZBEORED @EI
SHERD  BERHENS 2
HEBRIEREEEER D 22
BN BIE - BIEETRATE A TR
EE A AEARANIERABREE
HRRIETUEEN Y FESIE
HEKD  r MEEKSHEKS &
FTHRBEIERER D ARIIIEE
—MHERD -

AEHE E*ETF*E‘%T?“ AV
Bk ED IFRERD

15 R

e teea 119



NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= AR

Are M SRR M

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

RAEBHEREER([FBE
BREZER |) )

(continued)

2.1 Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs that are 21 RARFERBERZHTHRL
mandatorily effective for the current year BRI BB EREER »)
(continued)

BEPKRELAE16EHEI(E
BB REERE165E]) (@)
(iii) 1EAEAHAZ D5 EE

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (“HKFRS 16”) (continued)

(iii)  Accounting as a lessee

Under HKAS 17, a lessee has to classify a lease
as an operating lease or a finance lease based on
the extent to which risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of a lease asset lie with the lessor or
the lessee. If a lease is determined as an
operating lease, the lessee would recognise the
lease payments under the operating lease as an
expense over the lease term. The asset under the
lease would not be recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position of the
lessee.

Under HKFRS 16, all leases (irrespective of they
are operating leases or finance leases) are
required to be capitalised in the consolidated
statement of financial position as right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities, but HKFRS 16
provides accounting policy choices for an entity
to choose not to capitalise: (i) leases which are
short-term leases; and/or (ii) leases for which the
underlying asset is of low-value. The Group has
elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for low-value assets and leases for
which at the commencement date have a lease
term less than 12 months and do not contain a
purchase option. The lease payments associated
with those leases have been expensed on
straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group recognised a right-of-use asset and a
lease liability at the commencement date of a
lease.

1 2" Kingston Financial Group Limited
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NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B mRME

2 ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)
2.1 Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

(continued)
HKFRS 16 “Leases” (“HKFRS 16”) (continued)

2.1

(iii)  Accounting as a lessee (continued)

Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at
cost and would comprise: (i) the amount of the
initial measurement of the lease liability (see
below for the accounting policy to account for
lease liability); (ii) any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received; (iii) any initial direct costs
incurred by the lessee; and (iv) an estimate of
costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling
and removing the underlying asset to the
condition required by the terms and conditions of
the lease contracts, unless those costs are
incurred to produce inventories. Except for right-
of-use asset that meets the definition of a class of
property, plant and equipment to which the Group
applies the revaluation model, the Group
measures the right-of-use assets applying a cost
model. Under the cost model, the Group
measures the right-to-use assets at costs, less
any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liability. The right-of-use
asset is depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-
line basis. For right-of-use asset that meets the
definition of a leasehold land and buildings held
for own use, they are carried at fair value.
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NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRR

2 ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2 HMEBUMBEREELN(EEHY
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) BHREER ] )
(continued)

2.1 BRANAF B2 08 A 2 AT S AR
BT EBMB|REE 2

2.1 Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (“HKFRS 16”) (continued) ERMBERELEANE16FE HEI(EF

BB EERE165% 1) (@)

(i) VERAHAZ B EIE (#)

(iii)  Accounting as a lessee (continued)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings that
were held for rental or capital appreciation
purpose would continue to be accounted for
under HKAS 40 “Investment Property” (*“HKAS
40") and would be carried at fair value. For
leasehold land and buildings which is held for
own use would continue to be accounted for
under HKAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment”
("HKAS 16”) and would be carried at fair value
under the revaluation model. For the payments of
property interests which includes both leasehold
land and buildings elements, the entire property
is presented as property, plant and equipment of
the Group when the aforesaid payments cannot
be allocated reliably between the leasehold land
and buildings elements since its acquisition. The
adoption of HKFRS 16 therefore does not have
any significant impact on these right-of-use
assets.

Other than the above right-of-use assets, the
Group also has leased a number of properties
under tenancy agreements which the Group
exercises its judgement and determines that it is
a separate class of asset apart from the leasehold
land and buildings which is held for own use. As
a result, the right-of-use assets arising from the
leased properties under tenancy agreements are
carried at depreciated cost.
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NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B mRME

2 ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)
2.1 Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

(continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (“HKFRS 16”) (continued)

2.1

(iii)  Accounting as a lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities

The lease liability should be recognised at the
present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the date of commencement of the lease.
The lease payments shall be discounted by using
the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate
can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group shall use the
Group’s incremental borrowing rate as an
alternative.

The following payments for the right-to-use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are
not paid at the commencement date of the lease
are considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed
payments less any lease incentives receivable; (ii)
variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, initially measured by using the index or
the rate as at commencement date of the lease;
(iii) amounts expected to be payable by the
lessee under residual value guarantees; (iv) the
exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee
is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and
(v) payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee
exercising an option to terminate the lease.
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2 M ERUBREEN(ERHN

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) BHREER ] )

(continued)

2.1 Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs that are 21 RAERFERBERZHTHRL
mandatorily effective for the current year BRI BB EREER @)
(continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (“HKFRS 16”) (continued) ERAMBEHRELEANE16FE [HEI(&

BUEREERE165E]) (2)

(i) Accounting as a lessee (continued) (i) TERBAMANZ SFTEE (&)
Lease liabilities (continued) HESE®
Subsequent to the commencement date of the REERE AR NEEFE
lease, the Group shall measure the lease liability BTAFAFGTEHERRE ()18
by: (i) increasing the carrying amount to reflect MEEENRBEESEZF
interest on the lease liability; (ii) reducing the B (iR BREEARBRER 2
carrying amount to reflect the lease payments MEMZ: RHEFAERA
made; and (iii) remeasuring the carrying amount B RBERE{REEER
to reflect any reassessment or lease Bl an¥5 Bk FI R E B G BUR R AE
modifications, e.g. a change in future lease ENGEY - HEREY - BE
payments arising from change in an index or a EEHENREDNEEREE
rate, a change in the lease term, a change in the EZFHEEE) -

in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in
assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities and makes REBERATBAENFEEE
a corresponding adjustment to the related right- AfE UHBEBERAEEEER
of-use assets whenever: (i) the lease term has R (VEERBEN BT
changed or there is a change in the assessment FEERZNEEE  RILER
of exercise of a purchase option, in which case T HEEEaEERAFRANE
the related lease liability is remeasured by Fratih B Al 2 ST R IR R ALER
discounting the revised lease payments by using KIETHENRMENGTE - &
a revised discount rate at the date of (WHEENRRAHETHHSHEEAE
reassessment; and (ii) the lease payments rmisHegEmHIREE &
change due to changes in market rental rates EAT - BEEEaEERE
following a market rent review, in which cases the AR R AR TR EN
related lease liability is remeasured by RMEHETE ©

discounting the revised lease payments by using
the initial discount rate.
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NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B mRME

2 ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)
2.1 Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

(continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (“HKFRS 16”) (continued)

2.1

(iii)  Accounting as a lessee (continued)

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if: (i) the modification increases
the scope of the lease by adding the right-to-use
one or more underlying assets; and (ii) the
consideration for the lease increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect
the circumstances of a particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for
as a separate lease, the Group remeasures the
lease liability based on the lease term of the
modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the lease modification.

Taxation

For the purposes of measuring the deferred tax
for leasing transactions in which the Group
recognises the right-of-use assets and the related
lease liabilities, the Group firstly determines
whether the tax deductions are attributable to the
right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

(iv)

For leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease liabilities,
the Group applies HKAS 12 “Income Taxes”
requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences
relating to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
are not recognised at initial recognition and over
the lease terms due to the application of the initial
recognition exemption.
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NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BHRR

2 ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)
2.1 Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

(continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (“HKFRS 16”) (continued)

2.1

(v)  Accounting as a lessor

The Group has leased out minor area of its
leasehold land and buildings to a number of
tenants as the lessor of operating leases. As the
accounting requirements under HKFRS 16 for a
lessor is substantially unchanged from the
accounting requirements under HKAS 17, thus
the adoption of HKFRS 16 does not have a
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

Under HKFRS 16, when the Group acts as an
intermediate lessor by leasing out its leasehold
land and buildings to tenants, the Group is
required to classify the sublease arrangement as
a finance lease or an operating lease with
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the
head lease, instead of only with reference to the
underlying asset. If the head lease is a short-term
lease to which the Group applies the exemption
criteria, then the Group classifies the sublease as
an operating lease. The adoption of HKFRS 16
does not have a significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements in this regard.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a modification to an
operating lease as a new lease from the effective
date of the modification in terms of considering
any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to the original lease as part of the lease payments
for the new lease.
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2 HRMERUBREEN(ERHN

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) BHREEA D

(continued)

2.1 Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs that are 21 RARFERBERZHTHRL
mandatorily effective for the current year BT BB EREER »)
(continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (“HKFRS 16”) (continued) ERMBEHRELEAE16HE [HEI(F

BMBREEAE 165 1) (2)

(vi) Transitional impact and practical expedients (vi) B HRERAE BB EERE

applied from the initial adoption of HKFRS 16 16 AR BEFERTEAE
B

As mentioned in section (i) of this note, the Group BANAMIFESE () BNl - AREE
has adopted HKFRS 16 by using the modified ERALETBBERMNE SN
retrospective approach and has therefore RS ERE6 - B ER
recognised all of the cumulative effect of the initial IR M B (BN —ZF — hF Y
adoption of HKFRS 16 as an adjustment to the RA—8) B ANE B %R
opening balance of retained earnings at the date HEAF16R 2B R E
of initial adoption, i.e. 1 April 2019. The comparative BRARERBIBVER A
information presented in the prior financial year of B mBANBRELRFE 16
2019 has not been restated and continues to be IR BEEXFERT - —ZF— N
reported under HKAS 17 and the related FLF—EYBEEM27ILERE
interpretations as allowed by the transition B KREY - BEERERED
provision in HKFRS 16. STERIFEAT R RABERERZ W -
The Group has recognised the lease liabilities at REBERERENE BT BH
the date of initial adoption of HKFRS 16 at 1 April EEAFEI6F AR T —NF
2019 for leases that was previously classified as MA—BRERREBEE G2
operating leases under HKAS 17 and measured A7 RgEEEZHE
the lease liabilities at the present value of the ERRHEABWEATHEN
remaining lease payments, discounted by using R BREBEB(HEBEAEERZZZ
the weighted average of the incremental —NEMA—BEE 2 INEFH
borrowing rate determined by the Group as of 1 EEEEMNXMR)FEHESR
April 2019. & o
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2 ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

2.1 Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs that are

128

mandatorily effective for the current year
(continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (“HKFRS 16”) (continued)

(vi) Transitional impact and practical expedients

applied from the initial adoption of HKFRS 16
(continued)

The Group has elected to recognise all of the
right-of-use assets as at 1 April 2019 for leases
that was previously classified as operating leases
under HKAS 17 at the carrying amount equal to
the related lease liabilities, adjusted by any
prepaid or accrued lease payments by applying
HKFRS 16.C8(b)(ii) transition provision. After the
initial recognition of right-of-use assets, the Group
applied HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” at the
end of each reporting periods to assess if there is
any impairment indicator on that date. The
weighted average of the incremental borrowing
rate applied to lease liabilities recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position of 1
April 2019 is 4.8%.

To ease the transition from HKAS 17 to HKFRS 16,
the Group applied the following practical
expedients at the date of initial adoption on 1 April
2019:

(i)  when measuring the lease liabilities at the
date of initial adoption of HKFRS 16, the
Group applied a single discount rate to a
portfolio of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics (such as leases with a similar
remaining lease term for a similar class of
underlying asset in a similar economic
environment);
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NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B mRME

2 ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

2.1 Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

(continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (“HKFRS 16”) (continued)

(vi) Transitional impact and practical expedients
applied from the initial adoption of HKFRS 16
(continued)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

the Group has elected not to apply the
requirements of HKFRS 16 in respect of the
recognition of right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for which the remaining lease terms
end within 12 months from the date of initial
adoption of HKFRS 16, i.e. where the
remaining lease terms ending on or before
31 March 2020 or for those underlying assets
of lease contracts are low value;

excluded the initial direct costs for entering
the lease contracts whereby the Group as a
lessee position from the measurement of
right-of-use assets at the date of initial
adoption of HKFRS 16;

used the hindsight, such as determining the
lease terms if the lease contracts contain any
options to extend or terminate the lease
contracts when the Group as a lessee
position; and

the Group, as a lessee position, relied on its
assessment of whether the lease contracts
are onerous by applying HKAS 37
“Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets” immediately before the
date of initial adoption of HKFRS 16 at 1 April
2019 as an alternative methodology to
perform an impairment review of right-of-use
assets. The Group has adjusted the carrying
amount of right-of-use assets by the amount
of any provision for onerous lease contracts
and therefore recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position immediately
before the date of initial adoption of HKFRS 16.
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NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BHRR

2 ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2 RMEBHMBHREER( FBEH

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) BmEEA ] @

(continued)

2.1 Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs that are 2.1 PRV FEE S A B2 #iE] S
mandatorily effective for the current year BITEBHBHREEN &)
(continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (“HKFRS 16”) (continued) BEAMKREENZ16KEHE|(H
B EREERE165 1) (&)
(vi) Transitional impact and practical expedients (i) B RNE BRI SR & ERE
applied from the initial adoption of HKFRS 16 16U B 2R FTERE
(continued) BRIEE T L ()

In addition, the Group has applied the following
practical expedients to define its lease contracts
whereby HKFRS 16 has applied to all of the
Group’s lease contracts that were previously
identified as leases by applying HKAS 17 and
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 and not to apply HKFRS 16 for
lease contracts that were not previously identified
as containing a lease under the definitions of
HKAS 17 and HK (IFRIC)-Int 4. Therefore, the
Group has not reassessed for those lease
contracts which existed prior to the date of initial
adoption of HKFRS 16 at 1 April 2019.

Regarding to those existing lease contracts
effective on 1 April 2019 together with the
consideration of practical expedients, there were
no advanced lease payments made at or before
the commencement date of the lease contracts,
no lease incentives received from the lessor, no
material initial direct cost incurred by the lessee
when entering into the lease contracts, nor any
dismantling and removing cost to restore the
underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease contracts. As a
result, the carrying amount of right-of-use assets
is equivalent to the related lease liabilities at the
date of initial adoption of HKFRS 16 at 1 April
2019 and no material deferred tax impact arises.

For those lease contracts entered into or modified
on or after 1 April 2019, the Group applied the
definition of a lease in accordance with the
requirements set in HKFRS 16 to assess whether
a lease contract contains a lease.

1 3" Kingston Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2020
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NUTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A B ERR I

2 ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

2.1 Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

(continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (“HKFRS 16”) (continued)

(vi) Transitional impact and practical expedients

applied from the initial adoption of HKFRS 16
(continued)
In accordance with the transition provision of
HKFRS 16, when the Group, as a lessor, is not
required to make any adjustment upon the
transition for leases in which the Group is a lessor
but account for these leases in accordance with
HKFRS 16 from the date of initial adoption and the
comparative information has not been restated.

2.2 New or revised HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective

The following new or revised HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements, have been issued, but are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group. The
Group’s current intention is to apply these changes on
the date they become effective.

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current®
Definition of Material

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform?

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business?

COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions®
Insurance Contracts*

Amendments to HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17
Sale or Contribution of Assets

between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
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NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BHRR

2 ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

2.2 New or revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (continued)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April
2020.

2 Effective for business combinations and asset
acquisitions for which the acquisition date is on or after
the beginning of the first annual period beginning on or
after 1 April 2020.

3. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June
2020.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April
2021.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April
2022.

6 The amendments were originally intended to be effective

for periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019. The
effective date has now been deferred or removed. Early
application of the amendments continue to be
permitted.

In addition to the above new or revised HKFRSs, a
revised “Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting” was issued in 2018 and its consequential
amendments, the “Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards”, both
issued by the HKICPA, will be effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2020.

The directors of the Company are in the process of
making an assessment of what the impact of these new
or revised HKFRSs is expected to be in the period of
initial adoption. Up to date when the consolidated
financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors of the Company, the
directors of the Company did not aware of any aspect
of these new or revised HKFRSs which are likely to
have a significant impact on the preparation or
presentation on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

1 32 Kingston Financial Group Limited
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NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(=]
AN}

B 75 R R P =k

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “HKFRS”) issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis, except for
certain properties and financial instruments, which are
measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting
policies set out in Note 4.

Use of critical accounting judgements and
estimations

When the directors of the Company prepare the
Group’s consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs, it requires the use of critical accounting
judgements and estimations with reference to historical
experience and various factors that are believed to be
reasonable on the application of the accounting
policies, which revolved key sources of estimation
uncertainty and significant risks of causing material
adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities presented in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements when those areas have a higher
degree of judgements or complexity of estimations
since the actual results may differ from these
judgements or estimations when it is not readily
apparent from other sources. As a result, the directors
of the Company review, on an ongoing basis, to revise
for any changes of those critical accounting
judgements and estimations, and recognise in the
period when it is revised or in the period of the revision
and the future periods as if the revision affects both. For
details of the critical accounting judgements and
estimations that have a significant impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements are further
disclosed in Note 5.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company.
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NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRR

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4 FEFFHER
(a) Business combination and basis of (a) ERXEHRGEEE

consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries. Inter-company transactions and balances
between group companies together with unrealised
profits are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in
which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the dates of acquisition or up to the dates
of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line
with those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted
for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by the
Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed are principally measured at
acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured at
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains or
losses are recognised in profit or loss. The Group may
elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure
the non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary either at fair value
or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value unless another measurement
basis is required by HKFRS. Acquisition-related costs
incurred are expensed unless they are incurred in
issuing equity instruments in which case the costs are
deducted from equity.

Kingston Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2020
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NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B mRME

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4 FESTBER®

(continued)

(a) Business combination and basis of (a) XBEHRFEEE®

consolidation (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are
recognised against goodwill only to the extent that they
arise from new information obtained within the
measurement period (a maximum of 12 months from
the acquisition date) about the fair value at the
acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments to
contingent consideration classified as an asset or a
liability are recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in losses of control are accounted for as
equity transactions between the equity owners of the
Company and non-controlling interests. The carrying
amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
a separate reserve within the equity and attributed to
owners of the Group.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal of the subsidiary is calculated as
the difference between: (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest held; and (ii) the previous carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities
of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. For
the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary are
accounted for in the same manner as it would be
required if the relevant assets or liabilities were
disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b) Subsidiaries

136

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is
able to exercise control. The Company controls an
investee if all three of the following elements are
present: power over the investee, exposure, or rights,
to variable returns from the investee, and the ability to
use its power to affect those variable returns. Control is
reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate
that there may be a change in any of these elements of
control.

De-facto control exists in situations where the Company
has the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee without holding the majority of the voting
rights. In determining whether de-facto control exists,
the Company considers all relevant facts and
circumstances, including:

o The size of the Company'’s voting rights relative to
both the size and dispersion of other parties who
hold voting rights;

o Substantive potential voting rights held by the
Company and other parties who hold voting
rights;

o Other contractual arrangements; and
o Historic patterns in voting attendance.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at costs less
impairment losses, if any. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Kingston Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

()

Goodwill

Where the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent assets or liabilities, if any, exceed the
aggregate of the fair value of consideration paid, the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree, the excess amount is recognised in profit or
loss on the acquisition date, after the reassessment.

Goodwill is measured at costs less impairment losses,
if any. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
arising from an acquisition is allocated to each of the
relevant cash-generating units that are expected to be
benefited from the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-
generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of
assets that generates cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets. A cash-generating unit to which the
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, by comparing its carrying amount against its
recoverable amount (see Note 4(i) for the definition of
recoverable amount), and whenever there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial
year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment before the end
of that financial year. When the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro-
rata on the basis of the carrying amount to each asset
in the unit. However, the loss allocated to each asset
will not reduce the individual asset’s carrying amount to
below its fair value less cost of disposal (if measurable)
or its value in use (if determinable), whichever is the
higher amount. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised in profit or loss and is not reversed in the
subsequent periods.
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NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRR

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4 FESTHBER®
(continued)
(¢) Goodwill (continued) (c) BEw

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of value in use calculation of the relevant
cash generating units to which goodwill has been
allocated derived from the most recent budget plan
approved by the management. The preparation of
budget plan requires the management to exercise
significant judgement and estimation uncertainty to
estimate the future cash flows expected to be derived
from the relevant cash-generating units discounted to
their respective present value by using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects the current market
assessments of time value of money and risks specific
to the relevant cash-generating units in the value in use
calculation.

Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold land and buildings held for own use are
stated at revaluation amount less accumulated
depreciation. Fair value of leasehold land and buildings
is determined at the end of each reporting periods by
an independent qualified professional valuer.
Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity to
ensure that the carrying amount of the leasehold land
and buildings does not differ materially from which
would be determined by using the fair values at the end
of each reporting periods.

Changes arising on the revaluation of leasehold land
and buildings are recognised in other comprehensive
income and are accumulated separately in equity under
the heading of property revaluation reserve. The
exceptions from the above accounting treatment are
listed as follows:

(a) when a deficit arises on revaluation of leasehold
land and buildings, it will be charged to profit or
loss to the extent that it exceeds the carrying
amount already recognised in the property
revaluation reserve in respect of the revaluation
performed earlier on the same leasehold land and
buildings immediately prior to the revaluation; and
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(continued)
(d) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(d) Y% -BERRERHE®

(b) when a surplus arises on revaluation of leasehold
land and buildings, it will be credited to profit or
loss to the extent that a deficit arises on
revaluation of leasehold land and buildings in
respect of the revaluation performed earlier on the
same leasehold land and buildings which had
been previously charged to other comprehensive
income and thereafter to the property revaluation
reserve.

Upon the disposal of leasehold land and buildings, the
relevant portion of the property revaluation reserve
realised in respect of the revaluation performed earlier
on the leasehold land and buildings is released from
the property revaluation reserve to retained earnings on
the date of disposal of the leasehold land and
buildings.

Other categories of property, plant and equipment are
stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. The costs of
property, plant and equipment included its purchase
price and expenditures that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the property, plant
and equipment will flow to the Group and the costs of
the property, plant and equipment can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance
expenditures are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

140

(d)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off their costs or revaluation amount, net of
expected residual value over their estimated useful
lives on a straight-line basis. The useful lives, residual
value and depreciated method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
periods. The useful lives of different categories of
property, plant and equipment are listed as follows:

— Leasehold land is depreciated over the
unexpired term of lease of the leasehold land

— Buildings situated on the leasehold land are
depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired
term of lease of the leasehold land and the
estimated useful lives of the buildings, being
no more than 50 years after the completion date
of construction

— Right-of-use assets represent the leased office
premises in Hong Kong are depredated over
a lease term of 3 years (see Note 4(e) for
detailed accounting policies)

—  Leasehold improvement, furniture,
fixture and equipment

—  Motor vehicles

—  Yacht

10%-50%

20%-33%
10%

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment is the difference between the net
sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the item of
property, plant and equipment, and is recognised in
profit or loss on date of disposal of the item.

If any leasehold land and buildings becomes an
investment property because of its intention of use has
been changed as evidenced by the end of its intention
as owner-occupation, any difference between the
carrying amount and the fair value of that leasehold
land and buildings at the date of change of intention of
use is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in the equity. On the date of
subsequent sales or retirement of the leasehold land
and buildings, the relevant property revaluation reserve
will be transferred directly to retained earnings.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(e) Leasing

(i) Accounting policies applied from 1 April 2019

(a)

Accounting as a lessee

At the inception date of a contract, the
Group assesses whether the contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract, or part of the
contract, that conveys the right to use an
asset (the underlying asset) for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. A
contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time
when the customer, throughout the period of
use, has both: (a) the right to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits
from the use of the identified asset; and (b)
the right to direct the use of the identified
asset.

For a contract that contains a lease
component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, a lessee
shall allocate the consideration in the
contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the
lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components,
unless the lessee apply the practical
expedient which allows the lessee to elect,
by class of underlying asset, not to separate
non-lease components from lease
components, and instead account for each
lease component and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease
component.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

142

(continued)

(e) Leasing (continued)
(i) Accounting policies applied from 1 April 2019

(continued)

(a)

Accounting as a lessee (continued)

The Group has separated the non-lease
components from the lease components on
the basis of their relative stand-alone prices.

All leases (irrespective of they are operating
leases or finance leases) are required to be
capitalised in the consolidated statement of
financial position as right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities, but accounting policy
choices exist for an entity to choose not to
capitalise: (i) leases which are short-term
leases; and/or (ii) leases for which the
underlying asset is of low-value. The Group
has elected not to recognise right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for low-value
assets and leases for which at the
commencement date have a lease term less
than 12 months and do not contain a
purchase option. The lease payments
associated with those leases have been
expensed on straight-line basis over the
lease term.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(e) Leasing (continued)
(i) Accounting policies applied from 1 April 2019

(continued)

(@)

Accounting as a lessee (continued)
Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use asset should be recognised
at cost and would comprise: (i) the amount
of the initial measurement of the lease
liability (see below for the accounting policy
to account for lease liability); (ii) any lease
payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease
incentives received; (iii) any initial direct
costs incurred by the lessee; and (iv) an
estimate of costs to be incurred by the
lessee in dismantling and removing the
underlying asset to the condition required
by the terms and conditions of the lease
contracts, unless those costs are incurred to
produce inventories. Except for right-of-use
asset that meets the definition of a class of
property, plant and equipment to which the
Group applies the revaluation model, the
Group measures the right-of-use assets
applying a cost model. Under the cost
model, the Group measures the right-to-use
assets at costs, less any accumulated
deprecation and any impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liability. The right-of-use asset is
deprecated over the shorter of the asset’s
useful life and the lease term on a straight-
line basis. For right-of-use asset that meets
the definition of a leasehold land and
buildings held for own use, they are carried
at fair value.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

144

(continued)

(e) Leasing (continued)
(i) Accounting policies applied from 1 April 2019

(continued)

(a)

Accounting as a lessee (continued)
Right-of-use asset (continued)

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings
that were held for rental or capital
appreciation purpose would continue to be
accounted for under HKAS 40 and would be
carried at fair value. For leasehold land and
buildings which is held for own use would
continue to be accounted for under HKAS
16 and would be carried at fair value under
the revaluation model. For the payments of
property interests which includes both
leasehold land and buildings elements, the
entire property is presented as property,
plant and equipment of the Group when the
aforesaid payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the leasehold land and
buildings elements since its acquisition.

Other than the above right-of-use assets,
the Group also has leased a number of
properties under tenancy agreements which
the Group exercises its judgement and
determines that it is a separate class of
asset apart from the leasehold land and
buildings which is held for own use. As a
result, the right-of-use assets arising from
the leased properties under tenancy
agreements are carried at depreciated cost.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(e) Leasing (continued)
(i) Accounting policies applied from 1 April 2019

(continued)

(a)

Accounting as a lessee (continued)

Lease liability

The lease liability should be recognised at
the present value of the lease payments that
are not paid at the date of commencement
of the lease. The lease payments shall be
discounted by using the interest rate implicit
in the lease, if that rate can be readily
determined. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group shall use the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate as an alternative.

The following payments for the right-to-use
the underlying asset during the lease term
that are not paid at the commencement date
of the lease are considered to be lease
payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease
incentives receivable; (ii) variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate,
initially measured by using the index the
rate as at commencement date of the lease;
(i) amounts expected to be payable by the
lessee under residual value guarantees; (iv)
the exercise price of a purchase option if
the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise
that option; and (v) payments of penalties
for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the lessee exercising an option to
terminate the lease.
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146

(continued)

(e) Leasing (continued)
(i) Accounting policies applied from 1 April 2019
(continued)

(a)

Accounting as a lessee (continued)

Lease liability (continued)

Subsequent to the commencement date of
the lease, the Group shall measure the lease
liability by: (i) increasing the carrying
amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability; (ii) reducing the carrying amount to
reflect the lease payments made; and (iii)
remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect
any reassessment or lease modifications,
e.g. a change in future lease payments
arising from change in an index or a rate, a
change in the lease term, a change in the
in-substance fixed lease payments or a
change in assessment to purchase the
underlying asset.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities and
makes a corresponding adjustment to the
related right-of-use assets whenever: (i) the
lease term has changed or there is a
change in the assessment of exercise of a
purchase option, in which case the related
lease liability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments by using a
revised discount rate at the date of
reassessment; and (ii) the lease payments
change due to changes in market rental
rates following a market rent review, in
which cases the related lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments by using the initial discount
rate.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(e) Leasing (continued)
(i) Accounting policies applied from 1 April 2019

(continued)

(a)

Accounting as a lessee (continued)

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification
as a separate lease if: (i) the modification
increases the scope of the lease by adding
the right-to-use one or more underlying
assets; and (ii) the consideration for
the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any
appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone
price to reflect the circumstances of a
particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not
accounted for as a separate lease, the
Group remeasures the lease liability based
on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the lease modification.

Taxation

For the purposes of measuring the deferred
tax for leasing transactions in which the
Group recognises the right-of-use assets
and the related lease liabilities, the Group
firstly determines whether the tax deductions
are attributable to the right-of-use assets or
the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease
liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
“Income Taxes” requirements to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities separately.
Temporary differences relating to right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities are not
recognised at initial recognition and over the
lease terms due to the application of the
initial recognition exemption.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

148

(continued)

(e) Leasing (continued)
(i) Accounting policies applied from 1 April 2019

(continued)

(b)

Accounting as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it
determines at the lease inception whether
each of the lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a
finance lease if it transfers substantially all
of the risks and rewards incidental to the
ownership of an underlying asset to the
lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is
classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-
lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each of the
components on a relative stand-alone price
basis.

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the relevant lease term. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on the straight-
line basis over the lease term.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(e) Leasing (continued)
(i) Accounting policies applied from 1 April 2019

(continued)

(b)

Accounting as a lessor (continued)

The Group has leased out minor area of its
leasehold land and buildings to a number of
tenants as the lessor of operating leases.
When the Group acts as an intermediate
lessor by leasing out its leasehold land and
buildings to tenants, the Group is required
to classify the sublease arrangement as a
finance lease or an operating lease with
reference to the right-of-use asset arising
from the head lease, instead of only with
reference to the underlying asset. If the
head lease is a short-term lease to which
the Group applies the exemption criteria,
then the Group classifies the sublease as an
operating lease.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a modification to an
operating lease as a new lease from the
effective date of the modification in terms of
considering any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the original lease as
part of the lease payments for the new
lease.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(e) Leasing (continued)
Accounting policies applied until 31 March

150

(i)

2019

In the comparative period, leases are classified
as finance leases whenever the terms of the
leases transfer substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

(a)

(b)

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the relevant lease term. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

The total rentals payable under the
operating leases are recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the lease
term unless there is another systematic
basis which is more representative of the
time pattern in which the economic benefit
arising from the leased asset is consumed.
Lease incentives received are recognised
as an integrated part of the total rental
expenses over the lease term, unless there
is another systematic basis which is more
representative of the time pattern in which
the economic benefit arising from the leased
asset is consumed.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(e)

U]

Leasing (continued)
(ii) Accounting policies applied until 31 March
2019 (continued)
(b) The Group as lessee (continued)

Leasehold land and buildings

When a lease includes both leasehold land
and buildings elements, the Group assesses
the classification of each elements as a
finance lease or an operating lease
separately based on the assessment
whether all of the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of each elements
have been substantially transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases, in which case, the
entire lease is classified as an operating
lease. As a result, the leasehold land and
buildings elements are considered
collectively given that the payments of
property interests cannot be allocated
reliably between the leasehold land and
buildings elements in proportion to the
relative fair values since its acquisition and
the entire leasehold land and buildings
elements are classified as property, plant
and equipment under revaluation model.

Inventories

Inventories represents food and beverage and hotel
operating suppliers used in the hotel located in Macau.
They are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition. Cost is calculated
using the first-in first-out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.
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(continued)

(g) Financial instruments

U

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is
initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to
its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without
a significant financing component is initially
measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is,
the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention
in the market place.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are two
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised cost. Financial
assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest rate method.
Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment losses, if any, are
recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.
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(continued)

(g) Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Financial assets (continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

Fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”): Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVOCI. Debt investments at FVOCI
are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest
income calculated using the effective interest rate
method, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment losses, if any, are recognised in profit
or loss. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income. On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.

Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"):
Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets
held for trading, financial assets designated upon
initial recognition at FVTPL, or financial assets
mandatorily required to be measured at fair value.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term. Financial assets
with cash flows that are not solely payments of
principal and interest are classified and measured
at FVTPL, irrespective of the business model.
Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments
to be classified at amortised cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income, as
described above, debt instruments may be
designated at FVTPL on initial recognition if doing
so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an
accounting mismatch.
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(continued)

(g) Financial instruments (continued)

154

U

(i)

Financial assets (continued)

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that
is not held for trading, the Group could
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes
in the investment's FVOCI. This election is made
on an investment-by-investment basis. Equity
investments at FVOCI are measured at fair value.
Dividend income are recognised in profit or loss
unless the dividend income clearly represents a
recovery of part of the cost of the investments.
Other net gains and losses are recognised in
other comprehensive income and are not
reclassified to profit or loss. All other equity
instruments are classified as FVTPL, whereby
changes in fair value, dividends and interest
income are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for
expected credit loss (“ECL”") on trade receivables
and other categories of financial assets measured
at amortised cost. The ECLs are measured on
either of the following bases: (1) 12 months ECLs:
these are the ECLs that result from possible
default events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are
ECLs that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument.
The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the
difference between all of contractual cash flows
that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and all of the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(g) Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)
The Group has elected to measure loss
allowances for trade receivables using HKFRS 9
simplified approach and has calculated ECLs
based on lifetime ECLs. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on
the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to
the debtors and the economic environment.

For other categories of financial assets measured
at amortised cost, the ECLs are based on the
12-months ECLs. However, when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the loss allowances will be based on
the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the
Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information analysis,
based on the Group’s historical experience and
informed credit assessment and including
forward-looking information.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

° failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument’s
external or internal credit rating (if available);

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor; and
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(continued)

(g) Financial instruments (continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)

° existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial assets,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit
risk is performed on either an individual basis or a
collective basis. When the assessment is
performed on a collective basis, the financial
assets are grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics, such as past due status and
credit risk ratings.

The Group rebutted the presumption of default
under the ECL model mainly for trade receivables
and other categories of financial assets measured
at amortised cost, which are past due over 90
days based on the positive repayment records for
those customers or counterparties having a
continuous business with the Group. They are
assessed either collectively based on provision
matrix for trade receivables or individually for
other categories of financial assets measured at
amortised cost with reference to the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors
and the economic environment.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(g) Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)
The Group considers a financial asset to be
credit-impaired when: (i) the borrower is unlikely
to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held); or (ii) the
financial asset is more than 180 days past due; or
(iii) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the counterparty; or (iv) a breach of contract,
such as a default or past due event, or (v) the
lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
counterparty a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider; or (vi) it is
becoming probable that the counterparty will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or (vii) the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

ECLs are remeasured at the end of each reporting
periods in order to reflect changes in the financial
assets’ credit risk since their initial recognition.
Any changes in the ECL amounts that is
recognised as provisions or reversals of loss
allowances in profit loss. The Group recognises a
provision or reversal of loss allowances for all
categories of financial assets at amortised cost
with a corresponding adjustment to its carrying
amount through the usage of loss allowances
account.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial
assets is calculated based on the amortised cost
(i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset. For non credit-
impaired financial assets, interest income is
calculated based on the gross carrying amount of
the financial assets.
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(continued)

(g) Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

(iif)

Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)
Write off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is
written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This
is generally the case when the Group determines
that the debtor does not have assets or sources
of income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts subject to the written
off. Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a reversal
of loss allowances in profit or loss in the period in
which the recovery occurs.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at amortised
costs are initially measured at fair value, net of
directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
trade and other payables, amounts due to
shareholders, loan from a related company,
subordinated loans, bank loans and lease
liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method. The
related interest expense is recognised in profit or
loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(g) Financial instruments (continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
or payments through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the future cash flows in
relation to the financial asset expire or when the
financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity
instruments to a creditor to settle a financial
liability in whole or in part as a result of
renegotiating the terms of that liability, the equity
instruments issued are the consideration paid and
are recognised initially and measured at their fair
value on the date when the financial liability or
part thereof is extinguished. If the fair value of the
equity instruments issued cannot be reliably
measured, the equity instruments are measured
to reflect the fair value of the financial liability
extinguished. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability or part thereof
extinguished and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
the settlement occurs.
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(continued)
(g) Financial instruments (continued)

160

(vii) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount is reported in the
consolidated statement of financial position if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amount and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

(h) Cash and cash equivalents

(i)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash at bank
and on hand, deposits held at call with banks and other
financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in nominal value, within three months of
maturity since its acquisition. Cash and cash
equivalents are subject to ECL assessment in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note

4(g)(ii).

Impairment of non-financial assets (other
than goodwill)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets,
including property, plant and equipment under cost
model, goodwill (see Note 4(c)), right-of-use assets
(applicable from 1 April 2019) and investments in
subsidiaries, to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use) of a non-
financial asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the non-financial asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised as an expense immediately, unless
the relevant non-financial asset is carried at a revalued
amount under another HKFRS, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease
under that HKFRS.
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(continued)

(¥

1)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other
than goodwill) (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the non-financial asset is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, to the
extent that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the non-financial asset in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately, unless the relevant non-financial asset is
carried at a revalued amount under another HKFRS, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation increase under that HKFRS.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash
flows expected to be derived from the relevant non-
financial asset or cash generating units discounted to
their respective present value by using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects the current market
assessments of time value of money and risks specific
to the relevant non-financial asset or cash generating
units.

Employee benefits

(a) Short term employee benefits
Short term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits) including
salaries, discretionary bonus, annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
scheme and the cost of non-monetary benefits
that are expected to be settled wholly before
twelve months after the end of the annual
reporting period in which the employees render
the related services. The related salaries and
other benefits are recognised in profit or loss
when the employees render the related services.
When the payments are deferred to the settled
and the effect of time value of money is material,
it should be stated at the present value.
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NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRR

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4 FESTHEER®
(continued)
(i) Employee benefits (continued) () EE®A @

Defined contribution retirement scheme

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
scheme (the “MPF scheme”) under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for its employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement scheme administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme,
both employer and employees are required to
make contributions to the MPF scheme based on
a certain percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and only the proportion of the employer’s
contribution is charged to profit or loss when it is
payable in accordance with the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately by the independent trustees. The
Group’s employer contribution will vest fully with
the employees contribution when it is contributed
to the MPF scheme.

For its employees employed under the jurisdiction
of Macau were members of the Social Security
Fund operated by the Social Security System in
Macau. The Group was required to contribute a
certain percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries to the Social Security Fund per month
based on their employment terms and are
charged to profit or loss when they are payable in
accordance with the Social Security System in
Macau.
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NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B mRME

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4 FEESTTBEXR®
(continued)
(i) Employee benefits (continued) () EETEAw

(c) Share-based payments

When the employees (including directors) of the
Group receive remuneration in form of share-based
payment transactions regarding to the employees
(including directors) of the Group render their
services as consideration are recognised as equity
instruments. Details of background and accounting
treatment of share-based payment transactions are
set out in Notes 4(k) and 34.

(d) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services with equity-settled transactions
is measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at
the grant date. Share-based payments to parties other
than employees and those providing similar services with
equity-settled transactions are measured at the fair value
of the goods or services received by those parties, unless
the fair value cannot be estimated reliably. If the Group
cannot estimate reliably the fair value of the goods or
services received by those parties, the Group is required
to measure the fair value with reference to the fair value
of the equity instruments granted to those parties.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(k)

164

Share-based payments (continued)

For share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme, the fair value of the services rendered in
exchange for the share options granted is recognised
as expense in profit or loss and credited to share-
based payment reserve in the equity. The total amount
to be expensed over the vesting period is determined
with reference to the fair value of the share options
granted at the grant date when all of vesting conditions
are to be satisfied. At the end of each reporting
periods, the Group revises its estimates for the number
of share options that are expected to be exercised
based on any non-marketing performance and service
conditions indicated when the share options were
granted. The Group recognises the impact of the
revision of the original estimates, if any, in profit or loss,
and a corresponding adjustment to the share-based
payment reserve over the remaining vesting period.
The accumulated expense will not be adjusted if it fails
to achieve any market vesting condition.

In certain situation when the employees may provide
services in advance of the grant date, and therefore,
the fair value at the grant date will be estimated for
recognising the expense in profit or loss during the
period between the commencement period of services
to be rendered and the grant date.

Where any terms and conditions of the share options
granted are modified before they vest, the increase in
the fair value of the share options will be measured
immediately before and after the modification and
recognised in profit or loss over the remaining vesting
period.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in the share-based
payment reserve will be transferred to the share
premium account within the equity. The proceeds
received, net of any directly attributable transaction
costs, are credited to share capital and share premium
account within the equity. When the share options are
forfeited or are still not yet exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in the share-based
payment reserve will be released directly to the
retained earnings within the equity.
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NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B mRME

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

U

Income tax
Taxation for the year represents the sum of current tax
and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation for
financial reporting purposes as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss because it
excludes items of income or expense that are non-
taxable or non-deductible for tax purposes and is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred
tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at
the tax rates appropriate to the expected manner in
which the carrying amount of the asset or liability is
realised or settled that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any of the reduction is reversed
to the extent when it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not be
reversed in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRR

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4 FEESTBER®
(continued)
() Income tax (continued) () e

Taxation are recognised in profit or loss except for
when they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxation are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or
when they relate to items recognised directly in equity
in which case the taxation are also recognised directly
in equity.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which is probable that it will result in an outflow
of economic benefits that can be reliably estimated.
Where the effect of time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the
existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Kingston Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2020

BRI R IBa MR - A SHRER
Hith 2 E WA FER ZEE BRI
Sho FERER T AIEHITREME
EAARER - i E B RN g
RZEBER  EHBART  BIEN
EERNERRER -

BBERIREE

MAREREEEMHMAEHITEE
SHEERME - ARl s S RAErl 521l
AEZEBMER L - BB HEE
e ABEREREE  WEERE
BZEEEX QIBBRETEER
FHXZHREIE -

WA REBARH G BNz - KEBD
BER SEfhE - WEERIBERKAR
& R & 2 AT B E R
Broh e nEEEEZFERZELERT
BAE—IANA FHREMH AT
BRABEMMERIRABHRE - R
H AR g 2 AT REMEE DR AIRRSD o



NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B mRME

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4 FESTBER®

(continued)
(n) Revenue recognition

(n) W=FER

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
sales-related taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or
service may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the goods or service is transferred over
time if the Group’s performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract
by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the goods or service.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n)

Revenue recognition (continued)

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer a significant benefit of
financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amounts receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception.
Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to the
Group, revenue recognised under that contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For
contracts where the period between the payment and
the transfer of the promised goods or services is one
year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15 “Revenue” (“HKFRS
15”).

(i) Securities brokerage services

The Group provides brokerage and dealing
services of listed securities and futures contracts
to its clients. Securities brokerage income is
recognised at a point in time on the execution
date of trade an agreed commission rate of
transaction amount of the trade executed. The
Group also provides custodian and handling
services of securities and futures clients’
accounts. The related custodian and handing
charge is recognised at a point in time on the
execution date of trade or the date when the
relevant services are rendered to its clients.

(ii) Underwriting and placements services

The Group provides underwriting and placements
services of listed securities to its clients for fund
raising activities in the recognised stock
exchanges and financial products arrangement
services. Underwriting and placements income is
recognised at a point in time at an agreed
commission rate when the relevant underwriting
and placements or financial products
arrangement services are completed in
accordance with the agreed terms and conditions
of the services agreement or mandate letter
entered between the Group and its clients.
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NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B mRME

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n) Revenue recognition (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Corporate finance advisory services

The Group provides corporate finance advisory
services on strategic matters to its clients,
including mergers and acquisitions, capital
restructuring and other corporate finance advisory
matters. The management considers that all of the
services promised in a particular services
agreement, being a corporate finance advisor, are
highly interdependent and interrelated as a single
performance obligation and there is a presence of
legally enforceable right to payment for the
performance of the promised services completed
in terms of issuing debit notes to its clients up to
date in accordance with the agreed terms and
conditions of the services agreement entered
between the Group and its clients. As a result,
corporate finance advisory service income is
recognised over time based on the stage of
completion of the promised services rendered.

Hotel operations

The management determines that for the services
agreements signed with hotel guests in respect of
the provisions of hotel room services, there may
be one or two performance obligations, which
include the provisions of hotel room and free
breakfast service to the hotel guests. For the hotel
room services, the management determines that
the customers simultaneously receive and
consume the benefits from the hotel room
services and thus the management concludes
that the hotel room services income should be
recognised overtime. For the provision of free
breakfast service, the management determines
that the customers receive the free breakfast
service when it was delivered to the customers
and thus the free breakfast services income is
recognised at a point in time when the free
breakfast is provided to the customers. Sales
invoices are issued when the customers checked
out and payments are required to be settled at
the same time.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

170

(continued)

(n) Revenue recognition (continued)

)

(vi)

Food and beverage services

The Group operates restaurants and casino bars
for selling food and beverages in the hotel.
Revenue from sales of food and beverages is
recognised at a point in time when food and
beverage is sold to the customers. There is only
one performance obligation. Sales invoices are
issued when the customers finished their meal
and payments are required to be settled at the
same time.

Services provided to a gaming operator
Revenue from services provided for gaming
operations in mass market halls, electronic
gaming halls and VIP rooms in respect of the
operating performance from the gaming operator
is recognised over time when the performance
obligations are satisfied when the gaming
operator simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits from the relevant services rendered
to the gaming operator in Macau under the
services agreement signed with the gaming
operator. The Group has a legally enforceable
right to receive those services income received
based on the net monthly gaming wins of the
casinos received from the gaming operator when
the relevant services are rendered.

The management considers that the Group acts
as a principal for the relevant services provided to
the gaming operator as the Group is primarily
responsible to provide the relevant services to the
gaming operator and control the relevant services
to be rendered by the Group before the relevant
services are transferred to the gaming operator.
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NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n) Revenue recognition (continued)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Securities investment income

Investment income from trading of listed securities
through recognised stock market is recognised
on the execution date of trade when the sale and
purchase agreement of trading of listed securities
is entered with its clients. Dividend income from
securities investment is recognised when the
Group’s right to receive the dividend payment is
established.

Rental income

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the relevant lease term.

The Group has leased out minor area of its
leasehold land and buildings to a number of
tenants as the lessor of operating leases. When
the Group acts as an intermediate lessor by
leasing out its leasehold land and buildings to
tenants, rental income from these sublease
arrangements is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the relevant lease term.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method. Interest income is recognised as it
accrues using the effective interest method. For
financial assets measured at amortised cost that
are not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate
is applied to the gross carrying amount of the
asset. For credit-impaired financial assets, the
effective interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount, net of loss
allowance) of the asset.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(o) Foreign currencies

172

Transactions entered into by group entities in
currencies other than the currency of the primary
economic environment in which they operate (the
“functional currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling
when the transactions occur. Foreign currency
monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the
rates ruling at the end of reporting period. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary assets and liabilities, and on the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
assets and liabilities carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss for the period except for differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary assets and
liabilities in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income, in which
case, the exchange differences are also recognised in
other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, income and expenses from the
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the year, in which case,
the rates approximating to those ruling when the
transactions took place are used. All assets and
liabilities of foreign operations are translated at the rate
ruling at the end of reporting period. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as
exchange fluctuation reserve (attributable to non-
controlling interests as appropriate). Exchange
differences recognised in profit or loss of group entities’
separate financial statements on the translation of long-
term monetary assets and liabilities forming part of the
Group’s net investment in the foreign operation
concerned are reclassified to other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity as exchange
fluctuation reserve (attributable to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4 FEESTTBEXR®
(continued)
(o) Foreign currencies (continued) (o) ¥

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
exchange differences recognised in the exchange
fluctuation reserve relating to that operation up to the
date of disposal are reclassified to profit or loss as part
of the profit or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign
operation on or after 1 April 2005 are treated as assets
and liabilities of that foreign operation and translated at
the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of reporting
period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in
the exchange fluctuation reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost
of those assets. Income earned on temporary
investments of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on those assets is deducted from
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they are incurred.

Related parties
(i) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(a) has control or joint control over the Group;

(b) has significant influence over the Group; or

(c) is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Company’s parent.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1174

(continued)

(q) Related parties (continued)
(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(a)

The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (i).

A person identified in (i)(a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

Kingston Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2020

4

EEBR

(9) BEEAL @

(i)

fid (£ R M5B

\
I

i‘(‘ﬁt
mf}
i
]

SUE A -

WRAEAEEARHE

(a)

ZEBNMAKEBR —
BB (BIEERR] - M
BRrAIMRAEMBLRARE
HEE)

—1l‘§‘§37%7:

BALTHAEL

—’ilZIﬂZ,\Z
HAELME s

azﬁjﬁté‘%lz&a)

‘ﬂﬂfﬁ}

R
T
o

\>JDLN
A

b H

wa
° M0 WE W ER

i

N
I> &=
W g
P> &8
%D}E
°
5
ol
W
N
N

fi
Vo o
| W
o |11
i i

fi&
m N
|1l o)

I

%R B
N e g
X

o Dk

ey

“Eh

N

>_

H
o

\
s

-
kol

A
- e

H [\

'N%
#h
B omo B

o
NG
=
R
I
=N
Ho|
=K
o
+

o mo oA

2 E N
3 Bt i
o

i) Y8 P 38 Bl A
|JEJZJ‘%I§H¥%‘J °

Ry a) B @A ALHE
BEEAXE HR/EE
(ZEEZERA) Z2aH
EEAB -

i

1

IJIE

FAEBERKE
WZIKEIjZZK%I!
ARHEFEERAER

° _I _I ‘ﬂﬂlii}
k

DY



NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBmRME

17 A =

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(a)

(r)

(s)

Related parties (continuea)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

(iy  that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s

spouse or domestic partner.

Client trust bank balances

The Group maintains segregated trust accounts with
authorised financial institutions to hold clients’ monies
arising from the normal course of business of dealing in
securities and futures contracts, margin financing. The
Group has classified the clients’ monies as cash and
bank balances held on behalf of customers under the
current assets and recognised the corresponding trade
payables to the clients under the current liabilities, both
are disclosed, in the consolidated statement of financial
positions as the Group is allowed to retain some or all
of the interest income from the clients’ monies
deposited as well as it is liable for from loss or
misappropriation of clients’ monies. Under the
Securities and Futures (Client Money) Rules of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571), the
Group is not allowed to use or dispose of the clients’
monies to settle its own financial obligations.

Fiduciary activities

Apart from the clients’ monies maintained by the Group,
the Group also provides securities brokerage, futures
brokerage, margin and IPO financing services to
customers and the Group acts, in a fiduciary capacity,
which results in holding or placing of assets on behalf
of its customers. These assets and any gains or losses
arising thereon are not included in the consolidated
financial statements as the Group has no contractual
rights to these assets and its gains or losses under the
fiduciary activities.

4

TEEHEE

(9) BEEAL @

(r)

(s)

EAAL IR RAEERRNEZE
BIRHGTREZBALTHRZBA
ITREZRGKE B

(y ZBATZTFRZEEENEEFE
(=R

(i) ZBRALZEBHFAEHEZF
ik

ZEALRERBRAELE
FHA -

(iif)

BEFERRITERR
AEERRBACREERRBILET
RFE - UWFERESIEANES
RETRESZ RETGBRETELZ
EPRE - ARERKUEFRPHEAD
BARBEER TREFPKAZRE
KMERTTHESR - YRR E) B EREREIE
AEFXNzESRENER  mEH
REEAMBERRKRFEE - REA/K
SEEERBBOUEHMAFESTF
REZHBWA - AARFFPFRIA L
TR RHIMAE LEE - REFA
EPIFEENMERF LB EHRPIIETE
HFRME(EPFE) R AEET
BEANEETFRANBITERE
BfE-

ZEER
BRAREIBA TP KA AEHE
TRaEFREHESEL PEEL -
REZRBERAAEERERS - M
AEBEUZEFNITE  EMRKE
EFRAAREEE - RFEENMM
EEEEaY TEEERS VKR
=7 REASASEHRTEERA
EREXRB2BEWESHER -

SHUEBEMERAR
—EoTEER

175



NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[\\/ \

4

176

e M BHRR

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(t) Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to both
directors and key management of the Company
(together as “Chief Operating Decision Marker”), who is
responsible to monitor the results individually for
making decisions of resources allocation and
performance assessment of the operating segments. It
has been identified as the Executive Directors and key
management of the Company to make those strategic
decisions.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the
directors of the Company are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

In addition to disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, other key sources estimation uncertainty
that have a significant risk of resulting a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts at assets and liabilities within the
next financial period are as follows:
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5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTA'NTY (continued)

(M)

Application of expected credit loss model
The directors of the Company estimate the loss
allowances of financial assets at amortised cost,
including advances to customers in margin financing,
and trade and other receivables, based on their
respective credit risk assessment. The loss allowance
is measured at the difference between the carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows with the consideration of expected credit loss of
the respective financial assets. The assessment of
credit risk and estimated future cash flows of the
respective financial assets involves significant
judgement and estimation uncertainty. When the actual
cash flows is less than the expected cash flows
projection, impairment loss may arise in profit or loss.
The information about the application of expected
credit loss model of financial asset is disclosed in the
respective notes.

The Group’s credit risk department is responsible for
developing and maintaining the measurement process
of loss allowances of financial assets, including the
monitoring of credit risk, forward looking information
and general economic conditions, reviewing the key
assumptions and methodologies of measuring the loss
allowances; and ensuring that the Group has policies
and procedures in place to maintain appropriate
expected credit loss model used to assess and
measure the loss allowances of financial assets.

The Group regularly engages with external experts at the
end of each reporting periods, who use internal and
external information to generate different scenarios, of
forecast for assisting the management to assess and
measure the loss allowances of financial assets. The
internal and external information, include historical credit
loss experience of the Group and economic data and
forecasts published by the government bodies and
monetary authorities extracted by the external experts.
Accordingly, when measuring the loss allowances, the
management uses reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue
cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information analysis, based on the Group’s
historical experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information. The management
takes into account of future movements of different
economic data and how it will affect among each other
when generating different scenarios of forecasts.
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5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTA'NTY (continued)

178

(M)

(i)

Application of expected credit loss model
(continued)

Probability of default constitutes a key input in
measuring loss allowances of financial assets, which is
the estimations of likelihood of default over a given time
horizon, such calculation of the probability of default is
based on reasonable and supportable statistical rating
models selected by the management. These statistical
rating models are based on market data, as well as
internal data comprising of quantitative and qualitative
information analysis, including historical credit loss
experience, assumptions and expectations of future
conditions. The management collects this information
and adjust the data to reflect the probability-weighted
forward- looking information to be adopted in the
calculation of the probability of default.

In assessing the lifetime expected credit loss on credit-
impaired financial assets, the Group performs the
assessment based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors, such as financial background,
general economic conditions and forecast of future
conditions of debtors with significant judgements
applied. The management also reviews the market
value of securities pledged at collateral received from
debtors in determining the loss allowances of financial
assets. These key assumptions and methodologies
used for estimating the amount and timing of future
cash flows are reviewed regularly by the management
to reduce any material differences between loss
allowances and actual credit loss experience.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
The management determines the estimated useful lives
and related depreciation expenses for the Group’s
property, plant and equipment based on the historical
experience and the expected usage of the property,
plant and equipment with similar nature and functions.
The management also takes into account and will revise
the depreciation expenses where the useful lives
changed from those previously estimated, or whether it
will further write off or write down its carrying amounts
as if there is any technological obsolescence, changes
in the market demand or service outputs has been
reduced significantly to abandon or sell the assets.
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5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTA'NTY (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Fair value estimation of leasehold land and
buildings

The fair value of leasehold land and buildings is
determined at the end of each reporting periods by an
independent qualified professional valuer by using the
income capitalisation approach whereby the key inputs
of the fair value estimations are income derived from
hotel and casino operations in relation to daily room
rates and monthly casino performance are capitalised
at appropriate capitalisation rates by taking into
account of rental income potential, nature of the
property and prevailing market condition of the
property. This methodology is based upon the
estimations of future results and a set of key
assumptions of income and expenses of the property
and future economic conditions. The fair value of the
property reflects,among other things, rental income
from the current operating lease arrangements and key
assumptions about rental income from future operating
lease arrangements in the light of changes of future
market conditions.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of value in use of cash-generating units to
which goodwill has been allocated for the business
combination. The value in use calculation derived from
the most recent budget plan approved by the
management requires the management to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating units and a suitable discount rate and future
revenue growth rate to calculate the present value for
the impairment assessment. Impairment indicator of
goodwill may exist when the carrying amount is less
than the recoverable amount, which is the higher of fair
value less cost of disposal and value in use of cash-
generating units.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 5 FESTHHERMAETIEERE

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION ZEERER @)

UNCERTA'NTY (continued)

(iv) Impairment of goodwill (continued) (iv) BERE®
The management also takes into account on the past REECERBEEFEMBECEER
performance and expectations of market development TR IE KRR LB R - EIEE N
by identifying any specific risks that is relevant to the BRERE T EEEEEESR AR
underlying business of the goodwill when determining BErTRBREEBEIRBLNEMBSERE
appropriate future revenue growth rates and discount ZHE o ZEEBABRELMGETEE
rate incorporated in the value in use calculations. These HERMEIRE  ETER - 5 R
significant assumptions and estimation uncertainty IR RIS E N [E A T HEE N -

reflect the management best predictions but involve
inherent uncertainties, which is outside the control of
the management.

(v) Impairment of non-financial assets (other (v) FEMEE(BEUIMN) 2BE

than goodwill)

If a triggering event occurs indicating that the carrying WEBEEREEHETIECREEZE
amount of non-financial asset may not be recoverable, EEJsEEEWD - A HEEE
impairment assessment of the carrying amount of that HEETREG - BESHEEE
asset will be performed. Triggering events include EMERNREAYE  EBHRER
significant adverse changes of market value of an BEREN AT AER 2 AESEMF -
asset, changes of business or regulatory environment, HZEEH 2 R BREEEBEREE
or certain legal events against the Group. The RNHAERFEAGT I EEEZ - UE
interpretation of such events requires significant ERBEEF@EEMF -

judgement and estimation uncertainty from the
management with respect to whether such an event
has occurred.

Upon the occurrence of a triggering event, the carrying AR EEHRN @R IEREE
amount of non-financial asset is reviewed to assess ZHREE AFHEHATKRESEES
whether its recoverable amount declined below its EUREERNEEREE - AJKREEREA
carrying amount. The recoverable amount is the TEHRERFEREEMESE 2T RR
present value of estimated future cash flows expected HEREFHRRE BSNEEERER
to arise from the future use of the asset, plus residual ZRIBEE - M ke E£zEONEE
value upon the disposal of the asset. Where the HE " A2BEIABEEE UWFEE
recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, Mo E A E S %E -

impairment loss is recognised to write down the assets
to the extent of its recoverable amount.

The impairment assessment is performed based on the WERHE THIRRNIRIB &M E D ITHETT o
discounted cash flow analysis. The analysis relies on DITERBAR KR R K EE K RTEA
certain factors, such as forecast of future performance ASGERBRIR REE THE - HxE
and long-term growth rate and selection of discount FEARBREZFER T EIEEER
rate. If these forecast and assumption prove to be REEmMEa - A gE/EE —SHUR
inaccurate or the actual usage of the asset change, sy B MUR & E 2 BREE ©

further write down or reversal of write down of the
carrying amount of the assets may be required.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(vi) Income taxes and deferred taxes
The Group is mainly subject to taxation in the tax
jurisdictions of Macau and Hong Kong. Significant
judgement is required in determining an anticipated
amount of provision of taxation and timing of the related
tax payments. There are transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
arising from the ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such difference
will have impact on the provision for taxation in the
period when such determination is made.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Regarding to the Group’s financial reporting process to the
Chief Operating Decision Maker, the Group is broadly
classified into three operating segments, namely: (i) financial
services segments; (ii) hotel and gaming segments; and (iii)
securities investment segment. Under the three operating
segments, there are in total of seven operating activities
based on the categories of products or services provided in
Hong Kong and Macau region.

The classification of operating segments are determined by
the Chief Operating Decision Maker to monitor the results
individually for making decisions of resources allocation and
performance assessment of the operating segments.
Financial information of the operating segments is
disaggregated into segment revenue, segment assets,
segment liabilities and geographical segment information.

Inter-segment revenue is based on similar terms and
conditions of sales agreements entered with external
customers.
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SEGMENT |NFORMAT|ON (continued)

Financial services segments:

—  Securities brokerage, underwriting and placements,
which is the provision of brokerage, underwriting and
placements services of listed securities in the
recognised stock exchanges.

— Margin and initial public offering (“IPO”) financing,
which is the provision of credit facilities to margin
clients.

—  Other financial services mainly include the provision of
corporate finance advisory and futures brokerage
services in the recognised stock exchanges.

Hotel and gaming segments:
—  Hotel operations, which is the provision of hotel room
and free breakfast services to hotel guests.

— Food and beverage, which is the operation of
restaurants and casino bars located in hotels.

— Gaming, which is the provision of services to casinos
run by the license holder, namely Sociedade de Jogos
de Macau, S.A (“SJM”) located in hotels.

Securities investment segment:
— Trading of listed securities through the recognised
stock exchanges.

Operating segment result is evaluated based on adjusted
earnings before interest, income tax, depreciation and
amortisation (“adjusted EBITDA”). Interest income and
expenses and certain corporate income and expenses,
including depreciation of property, plant and equipment,
taxation, gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment,
write off of property, plant and equipment and write off of
intangible assets, corporate staff costs, exchange gains,
sundry income and central administrative expenses, which
are not included in the result of operating segments as they
are managed by the central function units, who control the
working capital of the Group.
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NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6 a *Eﬁ*il-“
Operating segment assets comprise of all assets owned by EBRDBEERTEAEBBEZEELE
the Group except for financial assets at fair value through XD EIEEEEL 2R AT ESTT AEM
other comprehensive income and corporate assets, which PERAZ CREENARIEERIN o 7%
are not directly attributable to the operating segments. DEEEREAEERECTERE  HEE
Operating segment liabilities comprise of all liabilities owed BofBIEEEEE ZEMNBRRFIER AT E
by the Group except for amounts due to shareholders and BRI o

corporate liabilities, which are not directly attributable to the
operating segments.

The following tables represent segment information of the TEREVIAEESIREEZE_S_TF R
Group for the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019: T-NF=ZA=+—HILFEZDEEL :
For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE—E-_FF=-HA=1+—HIFE

Financial services segment Hotel and gaming segment
SREHAR BERBYAR

Securities

brokerage,
underwriting Margin Other Securities
and and IPO financial Hotel  Food and investment

placements  financing services Subtotal operations  beverage i Subtotal segment
BEEL . REER
BER  ERDE  HtteR RER BERE
EE  BERE R hit EREE B B% it Pk @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER TiEx TiEx TiEn TiEn

Segment revenue 2 ENE
External customers SR 52,954 2,012,156 10,933 2,076,043 149,511 26,582 382,281 558,374 - 2634417
Inter-segment AR = = - - 57,308 - 11,055 68,358 - 68,358
52,054 2,012,156 10933 2076043 206,814 26582 393336 626732 - 2702775
Adjusted earnings before SREATAL B 7B
interest, income tax, depreciation ~ REHAMBF ([ KHHE -
and amortisation (‘EBITDA") BB FERBHHEA)) 50313 558,345 (4557) 604,101 88847  (11037) 120558 197,468 31910 833479
Segment assets FREE 28,486,013 2,397,276 44,270 423,600 3,262,146 138,374 31,886,533
Segment liabilities AEEE 5,713,994 235,208 8,061 62,836 306,105 - 6,020,099
Capital expenditure™ BRZ 36,391 2,876 532 487 3,895 - 40,286
* Capital expenditure represents the additions of property, plant * BT HIENF 18T BBREDNE  BE
and equipment as disclosed on Note 18. Rk o
2NEEMEEBRAD 1 8 3
T FFY #&
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6 oEER®
For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE-FE—-NF=ZA=+—HILFE

Hotel and gaming segment

Securities
brokerage,
underwriting Margin Other Securities
and and IPO financial Hotel Food and investment
placements financing services Subtotal  operations beverage Gaming segment
L& HER Nt B 3% it j
HK$1000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$1000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL TAL b TAL ) THL TALT TAL
Segment revenue AERE
External customers HEER 152,056 2,168,514 44,498 2,365,068 188,635 21,730 457,7% 674,160 - 3039228
Inter-segment HER - - - - 58,610 - 8,708 67,318 - 67,318
152,056 2,168,514 44,498 2,365,068 247,245 21,730 466,503 741,478 - 3,106,546
Adjusted EBITDA ERBAHAS HE -
HERBHHER 143,133 1,283,961 27,220 1,454,314 129,522 (9,761) 167,376 287,137 (25,450) 1,716,001
Segment assets PREE 31,453,765 2,665,076 415,664 547308 3,628,048 168,366 35,250,179
Segment liabilities SEAR 9,006,639 242,083 10478 68,052 320,583 - 9327222
Capital expenditure BAXH - 3405 532 5,000 8,937 - 8,937
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6 SEGMENT |NFORMAT|ON (continued) 6 ﬁiﬁﬁ*ﬂ'“‘
Reconciliations of segment revenue, adjusted PEWRE  KFABRFFE - HE -
EBITDA, segment assets and segment liabilities FERBHENERN  2BEERDSE
BEZHER
2020 2019
—E-BH —ZT-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET THIT
Segment revenue o 2,702,775 3,106,546
Less: Inter-segment revenue A DR E (68,358) (67,318)
Total revenue W45 2,634,417 3,039,228
Adjusted EBITDA RFBERAE - BiE -
FERBHEAZT 833,479 1,716,001
Other income =N 22,832 4,846
Interest income B A 680 2,615
Exchange gains, net b 5 U e F R 176 700
Corporate staff costs NaE) B TR (37,102) (17,354)
Central administrative expenses RTINS (45,011) (74,156)
Depreciation of property, plant and W - BERREITE
equipment (150,931) (103,071)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME - WFE &&E 2 W
equipment 5,460 -
Write off of property, plant and equipment WIEYE - BB NEE (609) -
Write off of intangible assets MEEmEEE = (266,157)
Finance costs BhE R (39,148) (32,760)
Taxation BIE (86,664) (220,744)
Profit for the year FEREF 503,162 1,009,920
Segment assets PREE 31,886,533 35,250,179
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFFAE M EZEmWA
other comprehensive income L ERMEE 140 140
Corporate assets NEIEE 19,223 42,597
Total assets EEHAE 31,905,896 35,292,916
Segment liabilities PEAER 6,020,099 9,327,222
Amounts due to shareholders FET IR R T8 4,104,523 4,372,264
Corporate liabilities NEIEE 8,421 47,790
Total liabilities EEHE 10,133,043 13,747,276




NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BHRR

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical segment information
The Group’s financial services and securities investment
segments are located in Hong Kong and the hotel and
gaming segments are located in Macau.

The Group’s non-current assets located in different
geographical locations are as follows:

/\*Eﬁ*ﬁl_
HES ﬁﬁﬂ

7l

AEBEZEBERHRESREDBURE
7B B RIER 5 BRI AR -

REBERBEEMNIA T NEME

2020 2019

—E_=F —E-NF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHT THIT

Hong Kong &5 11,088,440 10,997,389
Macau SEPY 2,946,330 3,043,156
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 14,034,770 14,040,545

Note: The total non-current assets exclude statutory deposits for
financial services business.

Information about major customers

Revenue from a customer contributing over 10% of the
Group’s total revenue is solely derived from the hotel and
gaming segments during the year is as follows:

Wiat B EERETEREBREREFEZE

TEE o

FTEEFFER
RKE—BEFPZWREAEB R EEIB
10% ' BRAFNEERIELSE - F1B5 0
T

2020 2019
—g-%F T NF

HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THAT

SIM pded

382,281 457,795
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A B ERR I

7 REVENUE

Financial services business:
— securities brokerage, underwriting

T BRI HA
— ESERL  BIEMEE

2020
—B-FF

HK$°000
FRT

2019
—NF
HK$'000
TAT

and placements 52,954 152,056
— margin and IPO financing —RESRERAFAEERE 2,012,156 2,168,514
— other financial services — Hih &g RAS 10,933 44,498
2,076,043 2,365,068

Hotel and gaming business: BIE RERER
— hotel room and other rental income —BEEEREMBES KA 149,511 188,635
— food and beverage — B & EE 26,582 27,730
— gaming revenue — ERWE 382,281 457,795
558,374 674,160
Total revenue S48 %8 2,634,417 3,039,228

e teen 18]
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REVEN U E (continued)

Disaggregation of the Group’s revenue during the year is as

follows:

7 WHE@
NEBRFRZWZED

2020
—

HK$°000
FET

T :

2019
—NEF
HK$'000
TAT

Revenue from contracts with customers — BEB I #5RE EB| S 1557 & E
within the scope of HKFRS 15: A2 BP &N
— securities brokerage, underwriting — BHLL - BEMEEE
and placements 52,954 152,056
— other financial services — Ht & g AR 10,933 44,498
— hotel room and other rental income —BEEE;EMAES WA 149,511 188,635
— food and beverage — RmMER 26,582 27,730
— gaming revenue — B 382,281 457,795
622,261 870,714
Revenue from other sources not within TBREBM SRS ERE 155
the scope of HKFRS 15: 1 E R 8 EH AR 2 Uk
— margin and IPO financing — RESRERAFARERE 2,012,156 2,168,514
Total revenue Pl g 2,634,417 3,039,228
Timing of revenue recognition from BFE A NS RER R
contracts with customers:
— at a point in time — RNE 2 79,536 179,786
— transferred over time — R —EREMRER 542,725 690,928
622,261 870,714

1 88 Kingston Financial Group Limited

Annual Report 2020



NUTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBmRME

8 OTHERINCOME 8 HfWA
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
Custodian and handling charge AERFEE 11,829 19,991
Dividend income SR ON 1,205 567
Bad debts recovery U @] 22 Bk 35 104
Gain on disposal of property, plantand ~ HEWE - BE MkRE 2 WS
equipment 5,460 -
Reversal of over-accrued lease expenses, B[Ol BzEEETHER S « JF58
net 11,407 -
Sundry income HETE WA 11,390 4,941
41,326 25,603
9 STAFF COSTS 9 BIFAK
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TFET
Staff costs (including directors’ BIWRA(BRIEESNE (ML 16))
remuneration (Note 16))
— salaries and other benefits — Fre LEMET 252,207 252,009
— contributions to defined contribution — TREEFCRIREEIE R (M)
retirement scheme (Note) 1,293 1,318
253,500 253,327
Note: Details of the defined contribution retirement scheme in Hong Btat - &8 KR PTE B H R IKE 2] .2 515 R KT
Kong and Macau are disclosed in Note 33. L3355 o
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10 FINANCE COSTS

Interest expenses on amount due to

e — R IR R Z M B

10 BMEKA

2020 2019

—EC-BF —E-NF

HK$°000
FET

HK$'000
THAT

a shareholder 35,350 32,760
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEBGEMEMEZ 3,798 -
39,148 32,760

11 TAXATION

BiIE

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Current tax: BNEATRIA -
— Hong Kong Profits Tax — BENE 105,184 239,473
— Macau Complementary Tax — RFIFSHRH 1,016 3,541
— Over provision in respect of prior years — i@1F & EHRLEEE (12,409) (16,291)
93,791 226,723
Deferred tax (Note 35) EERIIE (FY7E35)
— Macau Complementary Tax — BPIFTS AR (7,127) (5,979)
86,664 220,744
(a) Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the (@) BEBFEUEIREEHE165%(=ZF
statutory tax rate of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) of the taxable —NF 16.5%) BLAF & ERF = 5

profit for the year.
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REMBmRME

11 TAXATION (continued) 11 ﬁlﬁ ()

(b)

Macau Complementary Tax has been provided at the
statutory tax rate of 12% (2019:12%) of the taxable
profit for the year. Regarding to two wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Company, namely Good Start Group
Limited and Target All Investments Limited, which have
received tax notices issued by the Macau Financial
Services Bureau as detailed in Note 45, no respective
tax provision has been made for both years. The related
tax payments were classified as tax recoverable under
the current assets in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at
the statutory tax rates in the respective tax jurisdictions.

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to profit
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit

(b)

SRPIFT SRR EIREER E12% (=
T—NF 12%) AT E ERFEF)
ETIRTE o SN EE45 PR - AR
AIFE T ME 2 & W E 2 5 Good Start
Group Limited & E H 1% & B R A R
ERMMBBEEL ZIHRBAE
I # kP E S AT IR B B TR A -
HEB SRS T BRRARDEAER
E)EETE NI EIRITE o

REMBDEEREE ZHIATREHR
HADEER EERREH -

FAMRBAEGE B KEM2EEK
;SR ARRBRDE R SRR T -

or loss and other comprehensive income is as follows:

2020 2019
—E_ZF —h&E
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET T
Profit before taxation M 55 BT % Al 589,826 1,230,664
Tax expenses calculated at the statutory HAEHRE16.5%TE
tax rate of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) Z BIAR X
—E—F :16. 5%) 97,321 203,060
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMBIAEREZEZEZ
operating in other jurisdictions RPN FTE THZ?”E‘“ (7,387) (8,243)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses for P HIRAS 2 s &
tax purposes 68,711 107,399
Tax effect of non-taxable income for BERBRA Z B2
tax purposes (59,124) (64,908)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERRIGEIE oIS & 769 -
Tax effect of temporary difference AERERFEER
not recognised RIS E (884) 225
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses @Jﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁiﬁﬁu 2 TG 1R
previously not recognised RIS E (261) (17)
Over provision in respect of prior years B FEBERE (12,409) (16,291)
Others HAb (72) (481)
Taxation for the year FRFIE 86,664 220,744

EHNELREBEFR QA
“EROTFER
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12 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation for the year is arrived at after charging

12

BR Bt Al i A
4 P B TR FIE 0 T5IHA -

as follows:
2020 2019
—E-BH —NE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Auditor's remuneration A& 2,838 2,977
Marketing, advertising and i BEREEMYT
promotion expenses 26,523 76,685
Total minimum lease payments for leases #cRIBIEE B ST ERIE 1750 1A
previously classified as operating leases A&KLHEZHE ZEAE
under HKAS 17 (Note) SR aaEE (e ) = 35,470
Short-term lease expenses EARERY 15,757 -
Provision of impairment losses on trade  :HRB 5 N EMEWER 2
and other receivables REEE 475 226
Write off of property, plant and equipment #4512 - BE KR8 E 609
Directors’ remuneration (Note 16) Ex5We (Wit 16) 81,141 95,717

Note: The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 by using the modified
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balance as at
1 April 2019 to recognise all of the right-of-use assets relating to
leases that was previously classified as operating leases under
HKAS 17 at the carrying amount equal to the related lease
liabilities, adjusted by any prepaid or accrued lease payments by
applying HKFRS 16.C8(b)(ii) transition provision. After the initial
recognition of right-of-use assets, the Group, as a lessee, is
required to recognise the depreciation of right-of-use assets,
instead of the previous accounting policy of recognising rental
expenses incurred under the operating leases on a straight-line
basis over the relevant lease terms. Under this approach, the
comparative information presented in the prior year of 2019 has
not been restated and continues to be reported under HKAS 17.

13 DIVIDENDS

No interim dividend was declared for the six months ended
30 September 2019 and 2018.

The board of directors of the Company has recommended the
payment of a final dividend of HK1 cent (2019: HK1.5 cents)
per share for the year ended 31 March 2020, amounting to
approximately HK$173,645,000 (2019: approximately
HK$260,467,000).

The final dividend of 2019 (2019: the final dividend of 2018),
amounting to approximately HK$260,467,000 (2019:
approximately HK$347,290,000) was paid during the year.
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REMBmRME

14 EARNINGS PER SHARE 14 EREF
2020 2019
—_ ? —_ ﬂi _jli
HK cents HK cents
Al P
Basic earnings per share BRERREF 2.90 5.77
Diluted earnings per share FIEE R 2.90 5.77
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) BERELRZER

The basic earnings which is the profit for the year FAEFASRERBNAACERR
attributable to owners of the Company and weighted MENARBIHER AEIEFERERN) &

average number of shares used in the calculation of AR DN BN T -

basic earnings per share during the year are as follows:

2020
—

HK$’000
FET

Profit for the year attributable to owners of — ARQ T HH AFENL

the Company F N A 503,062 1,

2019
—NE
HK$'000
TAT

001,927

Weighted average number of ordinary shares & i@ % hnfE 158 13,614,480,666 13,614,480,666
Weighted average number of non-redeemable 7~ 8] & @ 7] # i 48 5 i%
convertible preference shares il R 3,750,000,000 3,750,000,000

Total weighted average number of shares SEERERANMAZ

used in the calculation of basic earnings A& 13 kg5 2 8
per share 17,364,480,666 17,364,480,666
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) EREBERER
Diluted earnings per share is equal to the basic HREZE-ZT-_TFR_T-IF=
earnings per share as there was no dilutive potential A=T—HALFEIEFTEITE
shares to be issued for the years ended 31 March 2020 EEER G WEREERFNHEGR
and 2019. BERBNIESE -

EHNELREBEFR QA
“EROTFER
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15 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 15 HttZ2mEmWBA

2020
—E-EE

=g

Before After Before After

taxation Taxation  taxation taxation  Taxation taxation
Bl BE Bi#& A I itk
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000
FET  FET  FEx  TET  FET FER

Surplus on revaluation of ERAELIHRIEFZ

leasehold land and buildings B 9,111 (1,093) 8,018 289,273 (34,713) 254,560
Change in fair value of financial KA TFEFFARBE2ERA

assets at fair value through LEMEEZATEE

other comprehensive income - - - (270) - (270)

9,111 (1,093) 8,018 289,003 (34,713) 254,290

There is no reclassification adjustment relating to the THEEHE T _TFE_ZET—NLF=A
components of other comprehensive income for the years =T —HLEFEEMEERAHBKE S HE
ended 31 March 2020 and 2019. ZEHDBERAE -
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16 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 16 %%@Hé
An analysis of remuneration paid and payable to the directors HE_Z-_ZFR-_ZT—NF=ZA=+—H
of the Company for the years ended 31 March 2020 and IHFE  BENNENAATES ZBE 5T
2019 is as follows: NN

Contributions
Salaries, to defined
allowances contribution
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary retirement 2020

fee in kind bonus scheme Total

d - 2H REMFBK ZB-ZF

EZHe RENAE HiEwa #;JZL\TA &t
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TERT TEx TERT TER TAT

Executive Directors HiTES
Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui RABEE - 16,425 10,000 - 26,425
Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah FAERT - 24,225 20,000 18 44,243
Mr. Chu, Kingston Chun Ho KEERE - 4,307 1,248 54 5,609
Mr. Ho Chi Ho WEREE = 2,879 1,246 18 4,143
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHTES
Dr. Wong Yun Kuen (Note) HEEEL () 99 - - - 99
Mr. Chiu Sin Nang, Kenny (Note) WERLE(HE) 142 - - - 142
Mr. Lau Man Tak BNEgL 240 - - - 240
Ms. Lo, Miu Sheung Betty BB 240 = - - 240
721 47,836 32,494 90 81,141
Note: Dr. Wong Yun Kuen was retired as an Independent Non- it - RZZFE—HNWENA-+NHE H EEEEL
executive Director and Mr. Chiu Sin Nang, Kenny was RITBUIEHITEE MBS LEEST
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director on 29 (FABE T IEMTESE o
August 2019.
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16 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 16 ESME =

Contributions
Salaries, to defined
allowances contribution
Directors’ and benefitsin  Discretionary retirement 2019

fee ' bonus scheme Total

& ! T)\L1\ “ET-NE

EEHE RENH @ WIBTEA A A&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
BT THAL AL TAL T

Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui FAREE - 15,925 15,184 - 31,109
Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah FRENL - 23,909 30,000 18 53,927
Mr. Chu, Kingston Chun Ho KEERE - 4,046 1,269 54 5,369
Mr. Ho Chi Ho EREE - 2,742 1,832 18 4,592
Independent Non-executive Directors BYKHTES
Dr. Wong Yun Kuen ERERL 240 - - - 240
Mr. Lau Man Tak BiE 240 _ _ _ 240
Ms. Lo, Miu Sheung Betty BRI 240 - _ _ 240
720 46,622 48,285 90 95,717
During the year, the salaries allowances and benefits in kind FR - BENSENEFS R NREYRRETY
paid or payable was in connection with the management of HANRESEEAEBEELER  MARQ
affairs of the Group by the directors of the Company and FEETENENRERETNNEG 2T
there was no arrangement under which a director of the —ZE—NF  HRA) o
Company waived or agreed to waive any remuneration (2019:
Same).
During the year, no remuneration was paid or payable to any FR - ER AR TR E S S 3k FE B
directors of the Company as an inducement to join the Group & EARENBAESR 2 KE B wHE
or as compensation for loss of office (2019: Nil). —E—HEE|E) o
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16 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 16 EEME

The remuneration shown represented remuneration received
from the Group by these directors of the Company in their
capacity as employee to the Group and/or in their capacity
as directors of the Company.

The amount of discretionary bonus was determined based on
the individual’s performance during the year after the review
and approval from the Remuneration Committee of the
Company.

During the year, the Group does not pay any consideration to
any third party for making available of the directors’ services
(2019: Nil).

As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, no loans, quasi-loans and
other dealing arrangements in favour of directors of the
Company, controlled bodies corporate by and connected
entities with the directors of the Company.

Save for those disclosed in Note 47, there are no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Group was a party and in
which a director of the of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year (2019: Nil).

IR EREARRIRFEFTUAAKERE
R/ SR RBREE 2 5B EEH S -

HISEASEDEARFFHFMEESEML
AR - ERFAFBIALZRRMET °

FR - AEEA B ESE SRS M EEMA
F=NXMNEARE(ZF—NF: 8) -

NZE_TER=_T-NF=A=+—H0"
BENARRES ARAREEZEEER
BEEBAYRACER  EEREHEME
B o

BRETEE47 AR EEE N REBERFRKIEF
WA ELERAERE BRI BARE
EEERIAAEAREARGE XK VE
ARG RERAH(ZZE—NF:8)-
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17 THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
During the year, among the five highest paid individuals, 4
(2019: 3) are directors of the Company, whose remuneration
is disclosed in Note 16. The emoluments paid or payable in
respect of the remaining 1 (2019: 2) highest paid individuals
during the year are as follows:

17 AEESFMAL

FA AEEReFMALH WH(Z=F
—NF: ZR)BREARFES  BFE2EH M
ERMF16HE FRENENEG—
H(ZE—NF: MA)EEFALTZHE
T

2020 2019

—E-EF —T—NF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Salaries and other benefits e REHMET 3,750 10,374
Contributions to defined contribution REHFGRAGTEIZHE

retirement scheme 18 36

3,768 10,410

The emoluments of the above individuals paid or payable
during the year is within the following band:

FREAHEN LA T Z2MEN FATE
:

2020 2019

—E_EHF —E-NF

Number of Number of

person person

AZ

HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 78 7T £ 4,000,000 7T 1 -
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 /& 7T £ 5,500,000 7T = 2

During the year, no emoluments was paid or payable to any
of the five individuals with the highest emoluments as an
inducement to join the Group or as compensation for loss of
office (2019: Nil).

1 98 Kingston Financial Group Limited
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18 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

18 MI% BENRRHE

Leasehold Leasehold
land and improvement,
buildings furniture,
held for Right-of- fixture and Motor
ownuse  useassets equlpment vehicles
KRR
HELH
RgF ERRLE ; HE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL BT TAL
Cost or revaluation: ﬁM:ﬁEﬁ;
At1Apri 2018 RZZ-\EMA-A 2813120 - 42359 5139 25,730 3,267,582
Additions %T?g - - 8937 - 8,937
Disposals e - - (1) - - (1)
Adjustment on revaluation BftHE 200,650 - - - - 200,650
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NE=ZR=1-H 3,013,770 - 432529 5139 25,730 3,477,168
Representing: &
Cost A - - 432529 5139 25,730 463,398
Revaluation s 3,013,770 - - - - 3,013,770
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NF=ZA=1-H 3,013,770 - 432529 5139 25,730 3,477,168
Impact of initial adoption of HKFRS 16 & RIRMEAB G 5228
(Note 2.1) 216%2FEWH21) - 97,286 - - - 97,286
Additions hE - - 40,286 - - 40,286
Disposals e - - (2,066) (482) (25,618) (28,166)
Write off i - - (14,468) - - (14,468)
Adjustment on revaluation BERE (89,190) - - - - (89,190)
At 31 March 2020 R-Z-2F=F=1+-H 2,924,580 97,286 456,281 4,657 112 3,482,916
Representing: R&:
Cost A - 97,286 456,281 4,657 112 558,336
Revaluation L 2,924,580 - - - - 2,924,580
At 31 March 2020 s ey e 2,924,580 97,286 456,281 4,657 112 3,482,916
Accumulated depreciation: ZiE:
At 1 April 2018 RZZ-N\EEA-A - - 389,789 4415 24,654 418,858
Charge for the year FRMG 88,623 - 13,160 27 1071 103,071
Adjustment on revaluation BERE (88,623) - - - - (88,623)
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NE=A=1-H - - 402,949 4632 25,725 433,306
Charge for the year ERIB 98,301 34,849 17,561 217 3 150,931
Disposals & - - (1,148) (482) (25,618) (27,248)
Eliminated on written off IS EztEag = - (13,859) - - (13,859)
Adjustment on revaluation SffRE (98,301) - - - - (98,301)
At 31 March 2020 e - 34,849 405,503 4,367 110 444,829
Net book value: REE?@
At 31 March 2020 ZEIEF-A=+-H 2,924,580 62,437 50,778 290 2 3,038,087
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NF=A=+-H 3,013,770 - 29,580 507 5 3,043,862

EHNELREBEFR QA
“EROTFER
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18 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18 Y% - BMERRZRHE®

(continued)

Right-of-use assets

Upon the initial adoption of HKFRS 16 at 1 April 2019, one of
the Group’s leased office premises in Hong Kong under a
non-cancellable lease contract, with a lease term of 3 years,
which was recognised as right-of-use assets of
approximately HK$97,286,000. The lease contract was
previously classified as operating lease under HKAS 17 and
carried at depreciated cost.

The Group does not have any options to renew or terminate
the lease contract and no lease incentive was received from
the lessor when the lease contract was entered.

The analysis of expenses in relation to the existing operating
lease arrangements in profit or loss is as follows.

FEHEEE
MN-Z—NEMA—BERFENE BT HR
HERIFE1655% - AEBRBEHEEHAEIF
ZAAIBEAEANERSHEZ P —MH
MAEYEERER AEER A 97,286,000
TEREEE HEANBTERESES
EREI7THEOEACEHE  WRITEK
RHIER ©

AEBBEERSEIKRILEMEESY
i HE AR E & QI E4 FERE
&5

RBmTRREEERELEAR A Y
AT

2020 2019
—E-FF ZE-NEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

Depreciation expenses of
right-of-use assets

Interest expenses on lease liabilities

Short-term lease expenses

Total minimum lease payments for
leases previously classified as
operating lease under HKAS 17 B L

RHHEERX

EREEENERX
HEREZHEAX

FTAMRBEE B GRS
RREHECHEZRIEHE

FH7 TR

34,849 -
3,798 -
15,757 -

1758548

= 35,470

The total cash outflow for leases for the year was
approximately HK$35,308,000. Details of the maturity
analysis of lease liabilities are set out in Note 32.

2[]" Kingston Financial Group Limited
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

Leasehold land and buildings

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings held for own use
in Macau was revalued as at 31 March 2020 and 2019. The
valuation fair value estimation was carried out by AA Property
Services Limited, an independent qualified professional
valuer, who holds recognised professional qualifications and
possesses sufficient experience in both location and nature
of the leasehold land and buildings being valued. The
management has adequate extent of discussions with the
valuer on the key assumptions and methodologies when the
valuation is performed at the end of each reporting periods.

The following table gives information about how the fair value
of leasehold land and buildings is determined, in particular,
the valuation techniques, key inputs and significant
unobservable inputs used. Given that the extent of
adjustments of fair value and the key inputs used in the fair
value estimations is not directly observable from the external

18 ¥% - BERSK®E @

HETHREF
AEBERRFIFFERZEEL W REFTR
—ECEER_FE-NF A=+ HET
Efh - 2 EMFHBIAEREXE LA
REMEEFRBERABET  ARMGENR
BERAIEEEN  WHEMGEEELMRE
FHREMHMEETERAREER - £
WERRETHER  EREEAEMS M
EREREMITEETRD W °

TREIMAEETHE L NEFT 2 AFE

ZEM(LEEMER ZEERMN - E28H
ABEBLEANABREGARE) - HRE

ERAEE BRI ENSERBRAT
BZHABBERAFERTAAZEZ2HA
g -

property market available to the Group.

Fair value
hierarchy

AVPEER

Valuation technique(s)
and key input(s)

RERTREEGALE

Significant unobservable inputs

EXTUBEHAHE

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value
THREBABER
AVEZBE

As at 31 March 2020

R-E-ZF=A=1+—-H

Properties in Macau

LAnE/ES

Level 3

E=H3

Income capitalisation approach

The key inputs are:

Q)
@
©)

Capitalisation rates;
Daily room rates; and
Monthly casino performance

WABTERE

IBHAEER

(1
@
©)

FEREEEE; K
BEERRS

Capitalisation rates, taking into account of
the capitalisation of rental income potential,
nature of the property, and prevailing
market condition, from approximately 2% to
approximately 13%.

Bt A RABNZBRERER - 1)
EMERRATN - BREREBNTH2%
E#13% °

Daily room rates from approximately
HK$623 to approximately HK$653 in
average for the base level.
AEREEGRAS TN TLH623BTEN
653 AT °

Monthly casino performance from
approximately HK$2.83 million to
approximately HK$15.18 million in average.
%8 ARG TN T42,830,0008TE
#115,180,000 % T

EHNELREBEFR QA

The higher the capitalisation rate,
the lower the fair value.

BREAZME  ATEYE -

The higher the daily room rate, the
higher the fair value.

FEERESHS  ATELS

°

The higher the monthly casino
performance, the higher the fair
value.

BSEARELES  RTELS -
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18 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)
Leasehold land and buildings (continuea)

18 ¥  BMERRE»
HELHRIETF @)

Fair value Valuation technique(s)
hierarchy and key input(s)

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value
TAREGABEE

AV EZBR

Significant unobservable inputs

AFESER  HERNRIRAARE EXRTABEHAYE

As at 31 March 2019
R-ZE-NE=A=+—H

Income capitalisation approach Capitalisation rates, taking into account of ~ The higher the capitalisation rate,
the capitalisation of rental income potential,  the lower the fair value.
nature of the property, and prevailing BrEAZYE  DTEME-
(1) Capitalisation rates; market condition, from approximately 2% to
(2) Daily room rates; and approximately 12%.
(3) Monthly casino performance & &t RIESWMNEH 2 BRERIER - 1
EMERRTTN - BREFEANTFH2%
WABRERE E412% °

Properties in Macau  Level 3
RFE EZ&A
The key inputs are:

TEHAREA:

(1) BREARX,

@ EESEMAL R
() HEEAEE

Daily room rates from approximately
HK$674 to approximately HK$676 in
average for the base level.
EAXEBRESTANTHET4BELER
676/87T °

The higher the daily room rate, the
higher the fair value.
FEEEHEsHE  ATEMS -

Monthly casino performance from The higher the monthly casino
approximately HK$3.44 million to performance, the higher the fair
approximately HK$16.65 million in average.  value.
BHBREETHNTHI4400008TE HEBRAZENS  ATEES
#)16,650,000 /7T, ©

AFEEHER

Fair value estimation processes

When the Group estimates the fair value of its leasehold land
and buildings, it firstly uses market observable data to the
extent when it is available for Level 1 fair value estimation.
Where Level 1 key inputs are not available, the Group
therefore engaged with an independent qualified professional
valuer to perform the valuation. The management works
closely with the valuer to establish and determine the
appropriate valuation technique and key inputs for Level 3
fair value estimation. The Group firstly considers and adopts
Level 2 key inputs when it can be derived from market
observable prices from the external property market. When
Level 2 key inputs are not available, the Group will adopt
valuation technique that include Level 3 key inputs. When
there is a material change of valuation technique, the causes
of fluctuations will be reported to the directors of the
Company.

2[]2 Kingston Financial Group Limited
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18 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
Leasehold land and buildings (continuea)
Fair value estimation processes (continued)
No changes of valuation technique and key inputs of
leasehold land and buildings for both years.

The fair value estimation of leasehold land and buildings is
based on the highest and best use, which did not differ from
its actual usage for both years.

The reconciliation of the balance of Level 3 fair value
estimation is as follows:

18

ME - BERSKE@

HELTHRETF @)
AFEMGEBE®)

RREFEE - HE L MEF 2 [HERIM R
FEHASIRITELS -

MELREFZAFEMBTDERNKSK
mMRERREL  BERMEFE 2ER

F=MB A HEMGFT 2 GEEREERNT

2020 2019

—ECBH —=-nF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

At 1 April R A—H 3,013,770 2,813,120

Depreciation expenses TERX (98,301) (88,623)
Surplus on revaluation of EHEBEELIHMREFY

leasehold land and buildings (Note 15) Btk (KiaE15) 9,111 289,273

At 31 March MR=A=+—H 2,924,580 3,013,770

During the year, the gross amount of surplus on revaluation of
leasehold land and buildings was approximately HK$9,111,000
(2019: approximately HK$289,273,000). After considered the
relevant tax impact, approximately HK$8,018,000 (2019:
approximately HK$254,560,000) was recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the property
revaluation reserve during the year.

At 31 March 2020 and 2019, the Group pledged its leasehold
land and buildings held for own use, with carrying amounts of
approximately HK$2,100,000,000 (2019: approximately
HK$2,300,000,000) to secure bank loans of the Group as
disclosed in Note 31.

Had the leasehold land and properties held for own use been
carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any, the carrying amounts
would have been approximately HK$1,154,109,000 (2019:
approximately HK$1,193,015,000).

FR - EHHELHWREFABBENE
9,111,000 ( = T — 7 F: #
289,273,000 7L ) - £ & BB H 5‘??;.
%+ 498,018,000/ (= & — N, F -
254 560,00078 7T) A AL Jﬂz%@ﬂ&zm@
A E BB R -

B FEIIMBERE R F R
—E-NAFZA=1+—H8 AEEEHAE
B P IRTTE SRR E{E492,100,000,000
BT (ZZ—NAF : 42,300,000,0007% 7T )
ZHEIFERHEE L MET -

REFEBAZHELHEYRRAARR

SHTE R EFHREEE (08) 58 - RIRE
{EE#) A 1,154,109,0005 7T ( Z T — L4 -

%71,193,015,000% 7T °

EHNELREBEFR QA
“EROTFER
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e M BHRR

GOODWILL

Carrying amount BREE

At 1 April and 31 March

REUA—BER=RA=1t—H

19 BE

2020 2019

HK$'000
TAT

HK$ 000
FET

10,996,683 10,996,683

The carrying amount of goodwill relating to the cash-
generating units, including the provisions of securities
dealings, underwriting and placements, margin and IPO
financing and corporate finance advisory services to its clients,
are approximately HK$3,628,905,000, HK$7,148,237,000 and
HK$219,541,000 (2019: approximately HK$3,628,905,000,
HK$7,148,237,000 and HK$219,541,000) respectively. For the
purposes of impairment assessment of goodwill, the
recoverable amounts of the relevant cash-generating units
was determined based on value in use calculations, covering
a detailed 5-year (2019: 5-year) budget plan approved by the
management, plus an extrapolated cash flow projections, by
applying a steady growth rate of 3% (2019: 3%) subsequent to
the 5-year plan, with a pre-tax discount rate of approximately
8.34% (2019: approximately 10.72%).

As at 31 March 2020, the directors of the Company
performed impairment assessment of goodwill,
the recoverable amounts of the relevant cash-generating
units, including the provisions of securities dealings,
underwriting and placements, margin and IPO financing and
corporate finance advisory services to its clients are
approximately HK$3,995,175,000, HK$35,239,067,000 and
HK$439,880,000 (2019: approximately HK$4,152,520,000,
HK$24,819,004,000 and HK$430,342,000) respectively. As
at 31 March 2020 and 2019, all of the recoverable amount
exceeds the carrying amounts.

Kingston Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2020

ReELESEN(PERERFPRERSRZS
BERRE RESNEXNAREBEEFEN
MEFBBERRE) 2EmEREEDFIL
/%3,628,905,000078 7T * 7,148,237,0000 7
gL K219,541,0008 L( ZE — L F : &
3,628,905,000# 7T ~ 7,148,237,000 % 7T &
219,541,000 7T) - St B RETEME -
RS EEEMN 2 JRESEIREAE
BEitE  REEETEEIEZFRSFH(Z
T—NF 55 BETE %numtw
BT E AR T ER3I% (T — N F
%)%&Iﬁﬁzfﬁﬁu.b%ﬁi Al muﬁﬁf,%%’w%
8.34% —NF : 4910.72%) °

RZZ_ZTF=A=1+—H8 ARFAIEZEED
MEEEITRET - Wﬁfﬁiﬁﬁﬁu(ﬁ
BRAERFIREES B RECE R
aﬁé&%ﬁ/&sﬂé’é%%ﬂﬁu&ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁ
BR7) 2 ATk [E1 € 58 5 B 49 4 3,995,175,000
7 7T~ 35,239,067,00078 T & 439,880,000
B (ZE—LF : £94,152,520,000/8 7T
24,819,004,000 7% 7T & 430,342,000 % 7T ) ©
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19 GOODWILL (continued) 19 @]‘ﬂiw

The key assumptions used in the budget plan are:

(i)  the future revenue growth rate were estimated ranging
from 0% to 14%, 0% to 11% and 0% to 12% (2019: 3%
to 9%, 3% to 7% and 3% to 8%) per annum for the
relevant cash-generating units of securities dealings,
underwriting and placements, margin and IPO financing
and corporate finance advisory services respectively
throughout the 5-year (2019: 5-year) budget plan. Cash
flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated by
using a steady growth rate of 3% (2019: 3%).

(i)  the gross profit margin will be maintained at its current
levels throughout the 5-year (2019: 5-year) budget
plan.

The management’s key assumptions have been determined
based on its past performance and expectations for the
future market development. The discount rates used are pre-
tax and reflect specific risks related to the relevant business
engaged by the Group.

Apart from the considerations in determining the value in use
of the cash-generating units, the management is not currently
aware of any other probable changes that would necessitate
any changes of its key inputs used in the budget plan.

The directors of the Company concluded that the cash-
generating units demonstrate sufficient level of future
cashflows that can justify the carrying amount of the goodwill.
Accordingly, no impairment loss of goodwill was recognised
for both years.

BEtSIFrMEERRWT

(i) MEFEH(ZZ—hF:54H)EE:
BN BHERS  BHEEEE  RE
ENERALAHBEEME AR ENE
BRERBEBEEEEEN 2 RE
H&%Eiﬁ“ﬂ%ﬁ“ﬁ\m%%:ﬁt
14% 0% 2 11% R 0% E12%( = &
—NF N TF3%EI% 3% ET% K
3% ZE8%) c AFHB RS RERE
FRRERIBHEE(ZZT—NF : 3%) °

(iy FHMEERSFEH(ZZ—NF :5F
) EEAEIRN E%&%iﬁ*ﬁmﬂ?

FREY TERRNERAERARERR
5B R TR - B PR AT TR AN bt
% A RBA R B FIER R 2
AR -

RETHReELFEUEREEZEERE
S BEERFI AN BEAMEMETER
BEAEFRAZ I ER AR ANESR
éb o

AARESBH L ERARSELENAT
EHRFIBERERKEMERDIEATIEDE
S2RHAE - B AMEFETEERGE
FEEE ©
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20 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20 BLEE
HK$’000
FER

Cost: B
At 1 April 2018 RZFE—N\FHEA—H 322,685
Write off s (322,685)
At 31 March 2019 and 2020 R-ZE-NER T _TF=F=+—H -
Accumulated amortisation: Sty
At 1 April 2018 RZE-NFHA—H 56,528
Write off i gH (56,528)
At 31 March 2019 and 2020 R-CE-NFR-_ZT_ZEF=HA=+—H -
Net book value: REE;‘%{E :
At 31 March 2020 R-ZE_ZF=A=+—H -
At 31 March 2019 RZZE—NF=A=+—H -
The intangible assets represented the costs of 15 subsurface E A ERETIG 155 TEET 0] &
mineral permits acquired, which were subsequently R - BRI B EBRERBE_T—+F
transferred into leases during the financial year ended 31 “A=TBULYVBFEERERES -
March 2017.
The 15 permits were initially granted by the local government INER M 75 BT HEREfE AR BUR & gL IR E
bodies in Canada, the Saskatchewan Ministry of Energy and TREBCRBEARFAE GBS BN ZE
Resources, currently known as the Ministry of the Economy ZNFRE15MFTAF - UBERERMNZ
of Saskatchewan, in 2008 to prospect for subsurface mining REHTEEUE A Elk Point 8453149 3,989.95
in Elk Point, Saskatchewan, Canada, with a total area of EHRB M T EE ©

approximately 3,989.95 square kilometres.

The intangible asset is amortised on a straight-line basis over EREEBWENRIREGENE G
its estimated useful life of 24 years since it was acquired. FRE I 24 F NS -

On 14 September 2018, the Group received a notice from the RZZE-N\FNAA+THEBE - NEEEERL
Ministry of the Economy of Saskatchewan, regarding to the REBRELESN 2B NAAMFHEES
cancellation of all 15 subsurface mineral leases and 150 TREERR - At - AEEREZEZ
accordingly, the Group had fully written-off the carrying T-NF=ZA=Z+—HIEFEEBEMBER
amount of approximately HK$266,157,000 during the year H{E#) 266,157,000 T °

ended 31 March 2019.

2[]6 Kingston Financial Group Limited
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21 INVENTORIES 21 B8
2020 2019
—_ ? —_ ﬂi :?_jli
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TET
Food and beverage and ma M ARRH A ROB JE 48 B

hotel operating supplies 2,447 2,488

22 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 22 BAFEFABRZEREE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2020 2019
= —TF

HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT TAT

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong and  REA F 2 RANE 5 M IFRE

certificates of deposit, at market value ZhE 138,374 168,366
Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through BRAVEFABRZ eREEATEZDE
profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as designated RF R EMEERIEENIESER

upon the initial recognition of financial assets.

As at 31 March 2020, the certificates of deposit with an RZZEZZEF=A=+—0 EHLEYD
aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$93,980,000 93,980,000/ 7L (=& — J14F : #993,930,000
(2019: approximately HK$93,930,000) pledged as securities BIL) 2 R E D IRE AN 31 FTEE R
collaterals on the Group’s bank loans as disclosed in Note SERITERCBFLEMR

31.
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23 ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS IN MARGIN
FINANCING

Directors of subsidiaries and their

23 MFFBARE

2020 2019
—g=8F T NF

HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT THAT

MBARZEEREBEAL

associates 50,601 85
Other margin financing customers HEMREBESRERFS 18,403,799 19,237,718
18,454,400 19,237,803

Less: Loss allowances W EIERE (2,108,752) (985,761)
16,345,648 18,252,042

The movements of loss allowances on advances to
customers in margin financing during the year are as follows:

FAREFPENRECHE ZBREEE
LU

2020 2019

HK$ 000 HK$'000

F#ET THIT

At 1 April RIMA—H 985,761 506,350
Provision of loss allowances sHREBEME 1,122,991 479,411
At 31 March R=A=+—H 2,108,752 985,761

At 31 March 2020 and 2019, advances to customers in margin
financing are repayable on demand and carried interest rates
at an average of Hong Kong Dollar Prime rate (“Prime rate”)
plus 3%. Margin clients are required to pledge their securities
collateral to the Group, in order to obtain credit facilities for
securities trading in the recognised stock exchanges. The
amount of credit facilities granted to them is determined by the
discounted market value of securities in accordance with
margin lending policies set by the Group’s management,
which maintains a list of approved securities for margin
lending at a specified loan-to-collateral ratio.

2[]8 Kingston Financial Group Limited
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24

B BmARM T

ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS IN MARGIN 23 NEFENRITHME @

FlNANClNG (continued)

At 31 March 2020, total market value of securities pledged
as collateral in respect of the loan granted to margin
clients was approximately HK$38,473,670,000 (31 March
2019: approximately HK$59,474,842,000). Among the
securities pledged as collateral, there was approximately
HK$3,117,000,000 (2019: approximately HK$6,748,981,000)
provided by margin clients to secure bank loans as disclosed
in Note 31.

No ageing analysis is disclosed for advances to customers in
margin financing as, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, an ageing analysis is not meaningful in view of the
business nature of margin financing.

R_E_ZF=F=+—8 " tEARIRE

EFEHERZERBERZEERESEME
4)7/438,473,670,0008 t(ZE—NF=H
=+—H : 459,474,842,000% 7t ) - I 1E
Bz BEFESSF - 493,117,000,000
BIT(ZZ—NF : 46,748,981,000/5 7T)
ThAMESIMEERRES TP IRMH R
BER1TER -

$’AET§$‘? 7% %F(%E’fé%ﬂiéfZ%ﬁ%'Ii{

ﬂfﬂ% i\mﬁﬁzﬁﬁu" 7fﬁ

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24 B RHEMEWERRR
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
Trade receivables from financial KERBREIEL
services segments B 5 EUWERR 22,737 80,039
Trade receivables from hotel and REBIERIER SR
gaming segments B 5 MR R 58,466 64,027
81,203 144,066
Other receivables, deposits and Hitn e i=3 - e &
prepayments TR IR 21,204 68,913
102,407 212,979

No ageing analysis is disclosed for trade receivables from
financial services segment as, in the opinion of the directors
of the Company, an ageing analysis is not meaningful in view
of the business nature of dealing in securities and futures
contracts, margin financing and corporate finance advisory
services.

ARREERR ERNEEEHFLHES
%’U REE %raﬂéi%&m%ﬁﬁkﬁﬁf’%ﬁ“zﬁﬁ

Ei;}:@ir‘ﬂﬁﬁﬁx’\* %JEHKEE ZEEEIA
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24 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (coniinved) 24 BE N E#EURBERN 2
Trade receivables from financial services KEEREBRELSE2E S EWERA
segments

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

—ECBF —E-NF
=H=+—H =A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx FHETT
Trade receivables arising from BERZXSHEEBKBRE
the ordinary course of business of EEzBSEIRIRR :
dealing in securities:
— Cash clients —REEP 2,674 4,913
— Clearing House — &EERT 3,296 62,315
— Brokers and dealers — BERZ 5 113 638
6,083 67,866
Trade receivables arising from BEEHRESHABEBRAIR
the ordinary course of business of EEZBESEIKIRR
dealing in futures contracts:
— Clearing house — BEER 10,720 7,754
Trade receivables arising from REUTRIEHBER AR
the ordinary course of business in the EEZE SRR -
provision of:
— Corporate finance advisory services ~— — {b ¥ B8 1 BRI AR TS 6,570 4,830
Total trade receivables, g 5 EWR AR - HIRESE
before loss allowances B A 23,373 80,450
Less: Loss allowances W EERE (636) (411)
Total trade receivables, B S W RREE
after loss allowances MR EEERE R 22,737 80,039
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24 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
Trade receivables from financial services
segments (continued)

The movements of loss allowances on trade receivables from
financial services segments during the year are as follows:

24 EFRHEMEBWIRR =
RESEMEBEHEI B 2ESBURK =)

FTREBRLE D2 E SRR 2 B8
HEEHMT

2020 2019

—E-SE —T—NF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHT T

At 1 April REA—H 411 185
Provision of loss allowances SR ERE 225 226
At 31 March R=A=+—H 636 411

The settlement terms of trade receivables attributable to
dealing in securities are one or two days after trade date,
and those of trade receivables attributable to dealing in
futures contracts are one day after trade date. All of trade
receivables from cash clients are not past due at the end of
reporting periods, which the management believes that no
material loss allowances was recognised in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant increase in
credit quality for both years.

Trade receivables from clearing houses, brokers, dealers
and corporate finance clients are classified as current assets
as they are expected to be settled within one year from the
end of reporting period.

Trading limits are set for different categories of customers.
The Group seeks to maintain stringent control over the trade
receivables in order to minimise credit risk arising from these
customers. Overdue balances of trade receivables are
regularly monitored by the management and followed up for
the settlement when necessary.

EFXHRIEE S RUERRANR 5 AR
—EMAAREN MEEREEGNEHEES
FEMEBRRAIZANZ 5 R EE — B RER - Ff
BREXPZEZHRUEFNEHRERRL
ERH - BEEMRE ARMEFEREEE
RAWMBEIEIN - B R SRR
EREXREBEER -

EER R RIBREERETPZE
SRR D BRRBEE - YHREHE
BRI E HIRR —FAEN -

AEBERTFABERNEFPFRAEXHRE A
NBREEESREERER - BREZEFETP
ZEERBRBERE BEEETHERHE

FEW BR B A R - WA F 2R REE N

IEP

SHUEBEMERAR
—EoTEER
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24 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (coninves)y 24 B SR EHMEWERRF @

Trade receivables from hotel and gaming REBEERBEIE2EZERWERR
segments

The Group generally allows an average credit period of 30 REB-—RETRBERBYDEEF30H
days to its customers arising from the hotel and gaming ZFHEEH - U TAESREKREZN RS
segments. The following is an ageing analysis of trade HAR 7 BRER D AT -

receivables at the end of reporting period:

2020 2019

HK$ 000 HK$'000

FET THIT

0-30 days 02 30H 53,575 59,931
31-60 days 312 60H 850 1,852
61-90 days 612 90H 3,733 75
Over 90 days 90HM k 24,244 25,855
82,402 87,713
Less: Loss allowances o EERE (23,936) (23,686)
58,466 64,027

The movements of loss allowances on trade receivables from FRBE RIS 082 B 5 UK KR 18

hotel and gaming segments during the year are as follows: 2 BB -

2020 2019

HK$ 000 HK$'000

F#ET THIT

At 1 April RIMA—H 23,686 23,686
Provision of loss allowances TR E RS 250 -
At 31 March RZA=+—H 23,936 23,686

21 2 Kingston Financial Group Limited
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continueq)
Other receivables

The movements of loss allowances on other receivables
during the year are as follows:

24

B 5 RHEMEWERR =)
Hfth FE KT R X
FREMBKERZ BRREEHNT -

2020 2019

—ECEF —heE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

At 1 April and 31 March REA—BE=A=+—H 290 290
In respect of other receivables, the Group regularly monitors REMELIRRME - AEBIREXFHF

the credit risk exposures based on the historical repayment
records and loss experience of the counterparties. At the end
of reporting period, the credit risk of other receivables has
not increased significantly since its initial recognition and the
loss allowances of other receivables was measured at
12-month ECL calculation and no further division of loss
allowances was recognised for both years.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES HELD ON
BEHALF OF CUSTOMERS

The Group maintains segregated trust accounts with
authorised financial institutions to hold clients” monies arising
from the normal course of business of dealing in securities
and futures contract, margin financing. The Group has
classified the clients’ monies as cash and bank balances
held on behalf of customers under the current assets and
recognised the corresponding trade payables (Note 27) to
the clients under the current liabilities, both are disclosed in
the consolidated statement of financial position, as the Group
is allowed to retain some or all of the interest income from the
clients’ monies deposited as well as it is liable for any loss or
misappropriation of clients’ monies. Under the Securities and
Futures (Client Money) Rules of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Cap.571), the Group is not allowed to use or
dispose of the clients’ monies to settle its own financial
obligations.

25

Zﬂfi%?ﬂuaﬁ‘&%?@ & i E BB TZT

c RIEHR - HittBURHZEER
Q%ﬂﬁéﬁ@%%?ﬁlﬁ%ﬁ%iﬂﬂ ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁf’éﬂﬂl

Rz BREEERI2EABREESE
AP 814 2 I 48 HE — P W AR S 1R

Chin—

e

REFERAZREERRITA

REBERRA] EEIERRELETRP
LAK?EBA&%&HJ%“"A%@EE CRESHE

—MREBBEPEECEPHIE - AEH
H%Et%%)f'?kl NEARBEERTRER
BFEZHRe METTHES  URRSBERER
HEREF SN 2B S EMER(MEE27)
MEHANGERBRARAEE - REAXR
SEEAERBLOXEMAFERPHKIBEZ
FEWA - WA E P I8 2 (E B K
HELEE - BREEEEMESNTEFSFR

n\l:l ﬁ%

HEROIETESME (FPHIE) KA
AEETNSERARER PHREANETHEY
BRI -

EHNELREBEFR QA
“EROTFER
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26 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

26 RERREFEER

2020 2019

HK$ 000 HK$'000

FET TFET

Time deposits FHAITFH 16,450 639,121
Cash at banks and in hand RITNFBERE 176,468 447,402
192,918 1,086,523

Cash at banks bears floating interest rates based on daily
bank deposit interest rates announced by the relevant bank
authorities. Time deposits are made for a period ranging from
1 day to 3 months (2019: 1 day to 3 months) depending on
the cash requirements of the Group. The carrying amounts of
cash and cash equivalent is approximate to fair value due to
short-term fair value maturity.

27 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

KEEBMRBDEL

Trade payables from financial

Ei‘?%ﬂﬂ#ﬁ52?&%‘?@%%%*5?%&%?7%%%

Rt 2 B RIRITERFEFE - EFRZ

FRENF1EEIEANE (N5

E3EA) RFAKEZRESFRM

E ° fﬁ%&fﬁé\f}fﬁlﬁﬁ ZIREEEEL QT
B85 - THREHAFED MM -

27 ESRHEMEMERER

2020
—E-FF

2019
—T—NF
HK$000
FHET

HK$°000
FRT

services segments B 5 EMNER 870,492 1,479,285
Trade payables from hotel and REBEREEHEZ

gaming segments B S EMNRER 16,298 15,705

886,790 1,494,990

Other payables and accruals HihENBRER N ETER 103,437 162,550

990,227 1,657,540

Kingston Financial Group Limited
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27 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 27 ,%157 &E{&Eﬁ{qﬂﬁ%k“‘

Trade payables from financial services segments

RETHRES B 2E R BARR

2020
—

HK$°000

Trade payables arising from the
ordinary course of business
of dealing in securities:

2B HREMER

FERT

>R 5 H %%ﬁ% BREEL

— Cash clients —HE®PF 323,505 464,423
— Margin clients — REBEEP 528,049 998,381
851,554 1,462,804
Dividend payable to clients R B PIRE 4,503 2
Trade payables arising from the HEANRZATERBREESL
ordinary course of business of ZE SN
dealing in futures contracts:
— Clients = 14,435 16,419
Trade payables arising from the RFEAT&IEH %%ﬁ& BEES
ordinary course of business in the 2B S EMNER
provision of:
— Corporate finance advisory services ~— — 1> % B 7% B8 R AR 7% - 60
870,492 1,479,285

The settlement terms of trade payables attributable to dealing
in securities are one or two days after trade date, and those
of trade payables attributable to dealing in futures contracts
are one day after trade date.

No ageing analysis is disclosed for trade payables from
financial services segment as, in the opinion of the directors
of the Company, an ageing analysis is not meaningful in view
of the business nature of dealing in securities and futures
contracts, margin financing and corporate finance advisory
services.

As at 31 March 2020, included in trade payables of
approximately HK846,344,000 (2019: approximately
HK$1,371,749,000) was payable to clients and authorised
financial institutions in respect of trust and segregated bank
balances received and held on behalf of clients and
authorised financial institutions arising from the normal
course of business of dealing in securities and futures
contracts and margin financing as disclosed in Note 25.

AR SEEESEMBRERENRR S B H%E
—iWEW%H MEBEHREAHNERES
FERTBRRAIZEN R 5 B E1E — EWEH

ARBEERA EHREBMEANR
2 {%Miw;ﬁ&mﬁﬂﬁkgﬁﬁﬁfﬁ%ziﬁ
HE - RESTAESE  RUERESH
RIED B B RNRRZ BREC DT

RZZEZZF=—A=+—H BFEMEXR
BEENEFPEATBHEBRIY
846,344,000 w( = T — AL F£: 4
1W1M9mm®ﬂ W HITE 25 FT BB R
BENHHEAHRGURRESRME 2 — K
%%@&EPﬁgﬁﬁu/ﬂ@m&%uﬁzﬂx&h
BZEE MBI RITA

e teea 215



NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BHRR

27 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continuea)
Trade payables from hotel and gaming segments
The suppliers generally grant an average credit period
ranging from 30 to 60 days to the Group arising from the
hotel and gaming segments. The following is an ageing
analysis of trade payables at the end of reporting period:

27 B REMEAERR =
REBEREXDEZE 7 BMARR
BB R —RBUEE RIS S EG T AREN
FIOEE0AZ THEEH - ATAESE
(R R B S5 AR 2 SR B T -

2020 2019

=T-8F —F-NF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

0-30 days 0Z=30H 14,051 9,680
31-60 days 31E260H 1,692 3,208
61-90 days 61E290H 170 380
Over 90 days Q0 HM E 385 2,437
16,298 15,705

28 AMOUNTS DUE TO SHAREHOLDERS

28 BEARRE

2020 2019
—EB-BF —TNEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Hitat FET FHT
Better Sino Limited EBEBRAA (a) 1,190,000 1,190,000
Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah THREL LT (b) 3,204,523 3,472,264
4,394,523 4,662,264

Notes: Bisr

(a) As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, the amount due to a
shareholder, Better Sino Limited, which is unsecured, non-
interest bearing and repayable on demand.

(b)  Asat 31 March 2020, among the total balance of amount due to
a shareholder, Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah, the balance of
approximately HK$1,010,000,000, which is unsecured, interest
bearing at 3.5% (2019: 3% to 3.5%) per annum and repayable
on the third anniversary year when the loan was extended at 31
March 2020, i.e. on or before 31 March 2023 (2019: on or
before 31 March 2020). The loan is subject to review at anytime
and the lender’s overriding right of withdrawal and immediate
repayment on demand for both years. The remaining balance of
approximately HK$2,194,523,000 (2019: approximately
HK$2,462,264,000) is unsecured, interest bearing at 3.5%
(2019: 3% to 3.5%) per annum and repayable on demand.

21 ﬁ Kingston Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2020

(a) R-E-_FER-_F-AFE=H=+—H
JEN —ERREEFR A A2 HERAEL
# o T EREEESEE -

b) RZF-ZZFF-A=+4—H EBHF—FZK
REHEL T ZHBEEBAER BHL
1,010,000,000% 7T = 45 68 BAER T« LAF
FIE3EE(ZF—NF: FFEIEZ35
B ERREFR - E-—TFE=H=+—
HEEREZE=ZRFF(AIZE==F=H
=+ —HEZH(ZE—NEF: —FE-FEF
ZA=+—HEZE))EE - ZE A BE
B - 2R E A K EE ZHEH
FEAREANIGIZERERZ EE LT - #R5E
#92,194,623,000;& ;T ( = F — L F | 4
2,462,264,000 & 7T ) Rll 73 FE 18 17 « LA 4F F
KISE(ZF—NF : FFIEKIEZ3.5/EF)
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29 LOAN FROM A RELATED COMPANY

29 RE—XBEE

DNRE

2020 2019

—_ ? — ﬂi _jli

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

At 1 April RIUA—H 4,033,342 7,142,999

Additions NE 2,803,914 3,877,986

Repayments BN (4,123,110) (6,987,643)

At 31 March R=A=+—H 2,714,146 4,033,342
As at 31 March 2020, the loan from a related company is due RZBE-_BF=ZA=+—"H kB —K@EE

to Kingston Finance Limited, which is controlled by the NEEFTHEMNS T LB S AR AT IE

directors and shareholders of the Company, Mrs. Chu Yuet ENGIEE:EWNGI 35 Y iliézih

Wah. The loan is unsecured, interest bearing at 3.5% (2019: o BB AEEI  IREFNRKISE(—

2% to 3.5%) per annum and repayable on demand. E—NE  EFRI2EZIH5E ) ENAERE

ER{EE -

30 SUBORDINATED LOANS 30 BEER
Drawdown
date 2020 2019
$2HR A 4 —g-%fF —hE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT AT
Loan from Mr. Lee Wai Man 30 Jan 2004 Prime rate +1% 250,000 250,000
KREZENEEZER —ETF BEEFE
—A=+H b1 E
20 Feb 2004 1.5% 150,000 150,000
—ETETNF 158
—HA=+H
Revolving loan from Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah 24 May 2010 1.5% 300,000 300,000
REFAEZT ZERENR —E-TF 152
AAZ+IHA
700,000 700,000

EHNELREBEFR QA
“EROTFER
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30 SUBORD'NATED LOANS (continued) 30 fﬁ{gﬁ%ﬂw
As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, the subordinated loans are RZEZEFR-ZFT-—NF=A=+—8"
unsecured, interest-bearing ranged from 1.5% to Prime rate BEEFRABEEN - IENFENRISESR
plus 1% per annum and repayable on demand. HEEMNESIMEZHNEFEREBEREK
BE -

The Group is required to comply at all times with the REEBEMEMREETESEGFES7T1E
Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules of the HERHEEHE T EE LY (MEEE)
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap.571). All of the HE - FIEREERMERBANEESE®
subordinated loan agreements are approved by the ExFEe([FeEe ) ItE  MEMZEIE
Securities and Futures Commission (the “SFC”) and any BHZEREER DR R NG BRE
repayment or changes of terms and conditions of these Eoff WERZEeZLE —@AAE@EA
subordinated loan agreements has to be approved by the e

SFC with one month written notice to the SFC.

31 BANK LOANS 31 RITER
2020 2019
—EB-®F —_TNF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
KaE THET FET
Secured bank loans: BEMRITER
— Money market loans and — EEHIEERNRERER
revolving loans (a) 600,000 1,300,000
— Term loans — THIE® (b) 450,000 1,120,000
1,050,000 2,420,000
Repayable: 8% -
— Within one year — —FR 630,000 1,420,000
— More than one year, — —FEETEBBAME
but not exceeding two years 50,000 120,000
— More than two years, — MFEETBRARAT
but not exceeding five years 370,000 440,000
— After five years — hF& - 440,000

1,050,000 2,420,000

Less: Portion classified as current B B AERSEEZHES

liabilities (630,000) (1,420,000)
Portion classified as non-current NEAEERBEE IS
liabilities 420,000 1,000,000

21 8 Kingston Financial Group Limited
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31 BANK LOANS (continued)

Notes:

(a) As at 31 March 2020, the money market loans and revolving
loans are secured by marketable securities of approximately
HK$3, 117,000,000 (2019: approximately HK$6,748,981,000)
provided by margin clients and certificates of deposit of
approximately HK$93,980,000 (2019: approximately
HK$93,930,000) as disclosed in Notes 22 and 23. During the
year, the money market loans and revolving loans bear floating
interest rates ranging from approximately 1.16% to 5.41%
(2019: approximately 0.81% to 4.35%) per annum.

(b) As at 31 March 2020, the term loans of approximately
HK$450,000,000 (2019: approximately HK$1,120,000,000)
bear floating interest rates ranging from approximately 2.94%
to 4.53% (2019: approximately 2.86% to 3.32%) per annum
and secured by:

a. property mortgage of leasehold land and buildings, with
a carrying amount of approximately HK$2,100,000,000
as at 31 March 2020 (2019: approximately
HK$2,300,000,000);

b. shares of two subsidiaries of the Company;

cC. corporate guarantee provided by a subsidiary of the
Company;

a. a charge of bank accounts provided by two subsidiaries
of the Company; and

e. a charge over income and receivables arising from the
business operations of two subsidiaries of the Company,
which engage in the principal activities of hotel and
gaming segments.

As at 31 March 2020, the effective interest rate of bank loans
is 3.5% (2019: 3.0%) per annum and the Group has not
breached any of the covenants of the underlying banking
facilities required any bank has an unconditional right to
demand the repayment of bank loans at any time on its own
discretion.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group was offered banking
facilities of approximately HK$6,400,000,000 (2019:
approximately HK$6,400,000,000) and the Group had utilised
the banking facilities of approximately HK$5,350,000,000
(2019: approximately HK$3,980,000,000) as bank loans.

31 RWITER @

(a) R-ZEZFF-ZF=+—H EETEE
FRBRE T W 5L 22 J 23 AT #f 55 1R 75
ﬁ%ﬁﬁfﬁ#z 45 i 5493,117,000,000 %
TT(ZZFE—NE | #)6,748981,000/% ) F
1B {8 #793,980,000 /Bt ( —E—NF 4
93,930,000 7T ) 2 17 R EIELR © FA -
EMTEERREREERIZFEFFEN
FHITA6[EZ 541/ E(=F—NF : #70.81
JEZ4.35[F):t 5 °

(b)) R-ZF-ZFF=ZF= + A - EE@E?%U’]
450,000,000/% ;o( = £ — W F 4
1,120,000,000% 7T ) 1% /% B) F F| E 70 F 49
294[EZ 463/ (= F—F : #]1286/EZ
3.32/F);it.E + W THEIEIEHELR -

a R-ZFE-TF-A=+—H K@E
#) /&2,100,000,0005 T ( = FE— A
4F : #72,300,000,000,% )2 HE 1+
1 RIEF Y E LSS

b, ARAMFHE R AZ AL

c. ARE]—FKKE R Al H 2 1 Al
R

d. EHARAMFHE R ARG 2 RIT
PR

6. BEWEARAMIEZREETERIEFR
DHRZ [T 2 I 7 EAE T E A
RIEWARS, -

N_E-FTF=A=1+—H RITERZE
BEFNEAEISE(ZZE—NEF: SOF>'$
= E I R R AR TRVE 2 {25 - B
ERITH B EBGTRERREEREER
IRITER -

NZE-FF=F=+—0 AEEERR
1781 & 496,400,000,0008 L (ZZE— L5 :
#76,400,000,0007870) + A% E B B AR
1T E 495,350,000,0008 0 (= ZF — L5 :
#73,980,000,000 8 7C) fEBIRITE K ©
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32 LEASE LIABILITIES

The following table shows the total remaining future minimum
lease payments under a non-cancellable lease contract,

32 HERME
TRETHR-Z—AFNA-AR-ZE-F
FZA=+—8 TUHBBESHETH

being the Group’s lease liabilities at the date of initial

BARREHENRER(ANAEERTS

adoption of HKFRS 16 at 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020, N BB REENE16EERAZHE
which were fall due as follows: afE)  FEHBROT

31 March 2020 1 April 2019
Present value Present value
of minimum  Total minimum of minimum ~ Total minimum
lease payments lease payments lease payments  lease payments
BEHAE BEHE ®EHEE ®EHE
ARAE NREHE NHRRE s
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TEx TR
Within one year —FR 35,859 36,689 34,481 35,308
More than one year, but not —FRETEBEME
exceeding two years 29,917 31,954 62,805 68,643
65,776 68,643 97,286 103,951
Less: Total future interest expenses ¥, © RIRFI SR 4258 (2,867) (6,665)
Present value of lease liabilities HEARBRE 65,776 97,286
The reconciliation of lease liabilities recognised in the E 30] FERNE B ﬁﬂ‘%i&i‘?ﬁﬁu ) 16%7 HH
consolidated statement of financial position from the date of — W FNA—HE-_Z_ZTF=A

initial adoption of HKFRS 16 at 1
is as follows:

April 2019 to 31 March 2020

:+ E'B/\\%ﬂ'\:l
BRI -

MBARAKRERCHERRE

HK$'000

TATT

At 1 April 2019 R-ZFE—NFHEHA—H 97,286
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEBBZMEMXE 3,798
Repayments on lease liabilities EEHEEAaE (35,308)
At 31 March 2020 R-ZZE-TF=A=+—H 65,776

Kingston Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2020

220



NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBmRME

32

33

LEASE LlABlLlTlES (continued)

The present value of future lease payments are analysed as
follows:

32 HEESEB W

AREENFRESTWT

31 March 1 April

2020 2019

—F-%F —TNF

=HA=+—H mA—H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Current liabilities mEAE 35,859 34,481
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 29,917 62,805
65,776 97,286

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme
(“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for its employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement scheme administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, both employer and
employee are required to make contributions to the MPF
scheme based on 5% of the employee’s basic salaries,
subject to a cap of basic salaries of HK$30,000 per month
effective from 1 June 2014 onwards. Contributions to the
MPF scheme are vested without conditions and payable in
accordance with the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance. The assets in the MPF Scheme are held
separately by the independent trustees. The Group’s
employer contribution will vest fully with the employees’
contribution when it is contributed to the MPF Scheme.

For its employees employed under the jurisdiction of Macau
were members of the Social Security Fund operated by the
Social Security System in Macau. The Group was required to
contribute a certain percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries to the Social Security Fund per month based on their
employment terms when they are payable in accordance
with the Social Security System in Macau.
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The original share option scheme adopted on 7 June 2004
expired on 6 June 2014. At the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 20 August 2013, shareholders of the
Company have approved the adoption of a new share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”).

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide the
Company with a flexible and effective means of incentivising,
rewarding, remunerating, compensating, and/or providing
benefits to participants. To determine the eligibility of the
participant, the board of directors of the Company may offer
to grant an option to any participant who has contribution to
the Group.

For share options granted under the Share Option Scheme
are subject to such terms and conditions as it may be
determined by the board of directors of the Company at its
absolute discretion and specified in the offer of a share
option. The terms and conditions may include: (i) vesting
conditions which must be satisfied before a share option
holder’s option shall become vested and capable of being
exercised; and (ii) the board of directors of the Company
may, in its absolute discretion, specify performance
conditions that must be achieved before a share option can
be exercised, and/or the minimum period for which a share
option must be held before it can be exercised.

The total numbers of shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all share options to be granted under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme adopted by the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the aggregate of the shares of the Company
in issue on the date of adoption. Share options lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option scheme adopted by the Company will
not be counted for the purpose of calculating the 10% limit.
The Company may renew this 10% limit with shareholders’
approval provided that such renewal may not exceed 10% of
the shares in the Company in issue at the date of the
shareholders’ approval. For share option previously granted
under any other share option scheme adopted by the
Company, including those outstanding, cancelled and
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the relevant scheme,
or exercised share options will not be counted for the
purpose of calculating the renewed limit.
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(continued)

The board of directors of the Company may, with the
approval of the shareholders of the Company, grant share
options in excess of the 10% limit to participants specifically
identified. In such situation, the Company will send a circular
to the shareholders of the Company containing a generic
description of the specified participants who may be granted
such share options, the number and terms of such share
options to be grated and the purpose of granting such share
options to the specified participants with an explanation of
how the terms of the share options will serve the purpose.
The total number of shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding share options to be
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option
Scheme and all outstanding share options granted and yet to
be exercised under any other share option scheme adopted
by the Company shall not exceed 30% of the shares of the
Company in issue from time to time. No share option may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes adopted by the Company if this will result in
the limit being exceeded.

Unless approved by the shareholders of the Company in a
general meeting (with such participant and his associates
abstaining from voting), which the Company will send a
circular to the shareholders of the Company and the circular
must disclose the identity of the participant, the number and
terms of the share options to be granted (and previously
granted to such participant), the total number of shares of the
Company already issued and to be issued upon the exercise
of the share options granted to each participant (including
both exercised and unexercised share options) under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
adopted by the Company in any 12-month period must not
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at the
approval date.
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(continued)

The period within which the share options must be exercised
will be specified by the Company at the time of grant. This
period must expire no later than 10 years from the date of
grant of the share options. The exercise of share options may
also be subject to any conditions imposed by the Company
at the date of grant.

The subscription price for the shares of the Company to be
issued upon exercise of the share options shall be no less
than the highest of: (i) the closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on the date of
grant; (ii) the average closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of the share of the Company on the
date of grant. The subscription price will be approved by the
board of directors of the Company at its absolute discretion
when the option is offered and notified to the participants.

For the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, the Company
had no share option being granted, outstanding, lapsed or
cancelled pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.
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35 DEFERRED TAXATION 35
The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position and the
movements thereon during the year are as follows:

ESET R
ER - REAMBRARERZELHES
AR RAZBMT :

Revaluation
of leasehold
land and
buildings

HETHR
BFZEM
HK$'000
TR

At 1 April 2018 RZE—-N\FmA—H (192,901)
Charge to other FFAEAL R EWA

comprehensive income (34,713)
Credit to profit or loss FFABRE 5,979
At 31 March 2019 R-E—AE=A=+—8 (221,635)
Charge to other SFAEMEEKRA

comprehensive income (1,093)
Credit to profit or loss FFABEE 7,127
At 31 March 2020 RZEZZEF=A=+—H (215,601)

At 31 March 2020, the Group had unused tax losses of
approximately HK$125,267,000 (2019: approximately
HK$120,725,000) available for offsetting against its future
taxable profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
by the Group in respect of the unused tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams for both years. The
unrecognised unused tax losses may be carried forward for
a period of:

MR-Z-_TF=ZA=+—8  AEEAE
WA RBERBE ZMN 2z REARIEEIB
49 A125,267,00008 (= T — L F: 4
120,725,000/8 7T ) AR EETE R M EFE
ZARBEFIR - RSB EG AR AR
HEERREEHREEE - KERRBEHR
THEE AR T 5 A48 -

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$'000
FRT TAT

Indefinitely IR HA

125,267 120,604
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36 SHARE CAPITAL 36 MR
2020 2019
it et 33 —FNF
Amount Amount
Number of |

shares HK$'000

Number of g

shares HK$°000

Ordinary shares of HK$0.02

ROHE

TR

R #E TR

each
Authorised: EEMRA
At 1 April 2019/2018 and R-Z—-hE/
31 March 2020/2019 -NFmA-BRK
kS 2 4
“Z-AF=ZA=t—H 24,750,000,000 495,000  24,750,000,000 495,000
Issued and fully paid: BERITRARKA
At 1 April 2019/2018 and RZE-NE/ ZZ-N\F
31 March 2020/2019 EH AR=—Z-TE/
-NE=ZA=+—H 13,614,480,666 272,290  13,614,480,666 272,290
Non-redeemable convertible &R E{E0.02 /B2
preference shares of AL A AR ELR
HK$0.02 each
Authorised: EEMBRA
At 1 April 2019/2018 and R-Z—h&E/
31 March 2020/2019 -NEmA-B K
—E-FE/
—E-AFE=A=1+—H 5,250,000,000 105,000 5,250,000,000 105,000
Issued and fully paid: BERITRARKAK
At 1 April 2019/2018 and RZE-NE/ ZZ-N\F
31 March 2020/2019 EH Ak=Z=TF/
-NE=ZA=+—H 3,750,000,000 75,000 3,750,000,000 75,000
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36 SHARE CAP'TAL (continued) 36 HJXIZIKM

Non-redeemable convertible preference shares
Each of the non-redeemable convertible preference share
shall confer, in cease of any dividend or distribution being
declared and paid by the Company to the holders of the
ordinary shares of the Company, on the holder thereof, is the
same entitlement of dividend or distribution as the holder of
the number of ordinary shares of the Company into which
such non-redeemable convertible preference share may be
converted upon the exercise of conversion rights attached
thereto.

Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that all of group
companies will be able to continue as a going concern in
order to provide returns for shareholders while maximising
the benefits of other stakeholders through the optimisation of
the capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The capital structure of the Group consists of: (i) net debts,
including amounts due to shareholders, loan from a related
company, bank loans, subordinated loans and lease
liabilities, less cash and bank balances in general accounts;
and (ii) total equity attributable to owners of the Company,
including share capital as ordinary shares and non-
redeemable convertible preference shares, and various
reserves. The directors of the Company review the capital
structure regularly. As part of this review, the director of the
Company considers the cost and the risks associated with
each class of the capital to allow the Group to operate
effectively in the marketplace and sustain the future
development of the business.

Based on the recommendation of the directors of the
Company, the Group will maintain or adjust its capital
structure through the payment of dividends to shareholders,
new share issues, return capital to shareholders, issue of
new debt or redemption of existing debt.

THEETRRELR
EARARIEARNAREREFAEATIRK
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36 SHARE CAP'TAL (continued)

Capital Risk Management (continued)

The Group monitors its capital structure by using gearing
ratio, which is net debts divided by total equity attributable to
owners of the Company. Net debts including amounts due to
shareholders, loan from a related company, bank loans,
subordinated loans and lease liabilities, less cash and bank
balances in general accounts. The gearing ratio at the end of
reporting period is as follows:

36 A

EXRBEE®)

AEBHAEERBLXR(AERFEERA

NEEB ANELERERR) BT HERERE -

Fﬂ‘%%gﬁ’\ﬂ]ﬁfﬁﬂﬁﬁmlﬁ RE—FKEE
RAIZEF - BITEFK  BEEZFAEESR

BR—REF ZIRE RIRTT4 8 - FOIREE]

RZBEEBELERINT ¢

2020 2019

—E-EF —NEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Net debts B %5 8,731,527 10,729,083
Total equity attributable to owners of RAREEA AEIhHEZS AT

the Company 21,772,853 21,522,041

Gearing ratio BEBELE 0.40 0.50

Several subsidiaries of the Group (the “Regulated REEZHXMWB AR ([ZREMBAR]) B

Subsidiaries”) are registered with the SFC for the regulated HEEEZHAETONBESTM - RE

activities they engage in. The Regulated Subsidiaries are WEARBETESEPESEEFSL LB

subject to liquid capital requirements under the Securities
and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (the “SF(FR)R”) of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571). Under the
SF(FR)R, the Regulated Subsidiaries must maintain their
liquid capital, being calculated by the assets and liabilities
adjusted as determined by the SF(FR)R, in excess of the
statutory floor requirement or 5% of the total adjusted
liabilities, whichever is higher. The required information is
filed with the SFC on a regular basis and the Group has fully
complied with those requirements for both years.
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37 RESERVES 37 w#fE
The carrying amounts of the Group's reserves and the AEBRAFEN F—FEZHESE@ME
movements thereon for the current and prior years are FHEEHENEII2EZEEERZEFHRE
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity Bl o
on page 112.

Share Capital

The Company

ARF

premium
account

R
HK$'000
FA7

Contributed
surplus

BBk
HK$'000
TAT

redemption
reserve
EXEE
#E
HK$'000
T

Retained
earnings

RERF
HK$'000
TR

Total

EH
HK$'000
TAT

At 1 April 2018 R-F—/\FHNA—A 11,739,980 69,332 466 432917 12,242,695
Profit for the year FREF - - - 228,073 228,073
Dividend paid (Note 13) B A& (FifFE13) - - - (347,290)  (347,290)
At 31 March 2019 —-NE=ZA=+—H 11,739,980 69,332 466 313,700 12,123,478
Profit for the year FREF - - - 343,334 343,334
Dividend paid (Note 13) 255 (FiizE13) - - - (260,467)  (260,467)
At 31 March 2020 “E-TEZA=+—H 11,739,980 69,332 466 396,567 12,206,345

(a) The share premium account represents the excess of

proceeds received over the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued, less share issue expenses.

The contributed surplus represents the difference
between the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued and the value of net assets of the underlying
subsidiaries acquired in the prior financial year. Under
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, a company may
not declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution
out of contributed surplus, if there are reasonable
grounds for believing that: (i) the Company is, or will
after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they
become due; and (ii) the realisable value of the
Company’s assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital
and share premium account.

(a) EOREREARRDEIAE

REE

BRI EE 2 28 (NRERD
BITH) o

B BERIEA QB FTETRO @ER
F-MBFEERRBERANBLARE
EFEMERZZR REBRE
—NAN—FREE WEAEEEM
& (VAR AREHH IR ZEND
BEIPAE: RHANRBEEZA
SHEESRAKERHEEE  B#1T
AR K B in s B Rk 2 4818 - Rl A E]

PEERFIOKMEE - 38 B MR LR
MEH:II 7K °

EHNELREBEFR QA
“EROTFER
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RESERVES (continued) 37 ﬁ%'f% (%)

(c) Capital redemption reserve arises from the reduction of (c) EBAREREFHEATTHATELRRMDM
the nominal value of the issued share capital of the BIRARE B BEITIRAZEEMESE ©
Company upon the cancellation of the repurchased
shares.

(d) Property revaluation reserve represents surplus or (d) MESHEHEEIEELEEHEE 1 LIE
deficit on revaluation of leasehold land and buildings. FELAGEA -

(e) FVOCI reserve represents change in fair value arising on (e) EAFEFAEMEPEWAREIEE
the revaluation of financial assets at fair value through HZAFEFAEMEZEKAZ SR
other comprehensive income. BEEEZATEE

(fy  Exchange fluctuation reserve represents the foreign () ERFBREBEPBRESHARBG GINE
exchange differences arising from the translation of B2 EBENBEBRGEEA R ZIRITHE
assets and liabilities of foreign operations at the rate RIGE AR ANT2HEEEL ZIES
ruling at the end of reporting period into the EH e
presentation currency of the Company at the end of
reporting period.

(g) Retained earnings represents the accumulated net (90 RBAFNIESTHREFENERER
profit recognised in profit or loss of each financial ZEEAFEE o
years.

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 38 FERER

On 24 December 2019, the Group completed the acquisition RZZE—AF+-_A=-+MABE » KEEZK

of the remaining 20% equity interests in Golden New Times WEESTHR28FEE L T 20% I -

28 Club, which primarily engaged in provision of services to EeMBR28EES X ZRNEMEMA

casinos in hotels located in Macau. Pursuant to the sale and JREBEIGIRMIRIS - BIEEEHZE  BERE

purchase agreement, the cash consideration is 43,500,000 7T - ANEEE [ FEE R R E

HK$3,500,000. The Group paid HK$20,000,000 as dividend X 720,000,000 TT1E R A% B o W ST

to the non-controlling shareholder. Upon the completion of % AREBR T TFEF=-A=+—B4E

the acquisition, the Group has no non-controlling interest as JEIEG RS ©

at 31 March 2020.

This transaction is accounted for as an equity transaction FERWIBRZH AR SHEIEITAEHEZ 2 RES
with the non-controlling interests during the year as follows: 5 #FamT

HK$'000

FET

Consideration paid for remaining 20% equity interest BLERT 20% BeiE 2 ERNR(E 3,500

Net assets attributable to remaining 20% equity interest 88 T~ 20% A& 2 15 & 2= 7 F A (3,699)

Increase in equity attributable to owners of the Company — Z<A %A A FE(G 251 hn
(included in retained earnings) (GrARBEF) (199)
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39 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

39 ANDFZBMBARREK

THE COMPANY

2020 2019
—EEHF —E-NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Mt et FET TFET

Non-current asset kRBEE

Investments in subsidiaries NHB AT Z%E 40 16,095,380 16,699,722
Current assets REEE

Other receivables, deposits and HEIER - Ze &

repayments TR IR 13,650 23,049
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG e 1,000,053 997,551
Cash and bank balances e RIBITHES 5,999 4,368
1,019,702 1,024,968

Current liabilities REBAE

Other payable and accruals Hib e R N BT E 4,394 5,000

Amounts due to shareholders TER IR R TR I8 4,104,523 4,372,264

Bank loans RITEK 30,000 85,317

Tax payable FEIFRIE 2,530 3,292

4,141,447 4,465,873

Net current liabilities REBEEFEHE (3,121,745) (3,440,905)
Total asset less current liabilities BEERRBAR 12,973,635 13,258,817
Non-current liabilities kRBERE

Bank loans RITEK 420,000 788,049
Total liabilities EEEEE 4,561,447 5,253,922
Net assets EEFE 12,553,635 12,470,768
Capital and reserves BEXRFEE

Share capital — ordinary shares PR — LBk 36 272,290 272,290

Share capital — non-redeemable IR — T EE

convertible preference shares AT AR B S A 36 75,000 75,000

Reserves i 37 12,206,345 12,123,478

Total equity EREE 12,553,635 12,470,768
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40 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 40 RMBRARIZIRE
The following list only contains the particulars of subsidiaries TREZWNIFEBEZEREFBGESEE  BE
of the Company, which principally affects the consolidated BB ARRNBRARFE B TXREE
results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The class of shares FEERESN - PR EER BT @R -
held is ordinary shares, unless otherwise stated in the below
table.

Proportion of ownership interest

BRERRLA
Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ registered/issued  Group’s Held
registration and and paid up share effective bythe Heldbya
Name of company operation capital interest Company subsidiary  Principal activities
FMAL R it/ BROTR x58 xA8  HWEAR
NAEH me HERAFE BiRER =20 B TEEH
Bebright Limited British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 100% 100% - Investment holding
BEABRAT] EBRAHS (E RERR
Futuremind Holdings British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Limited RBRAHE 1%7T REEMR
GR Casa Real Holdings British Virgin Islands ~ US$5 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Limited EBRAHS 5%TT RERR
GR Casa Real Company Macau MOP100,000 100% - 100%  Operating Casa Real
Limited Hotel
SRS BEEBRAT B 100,00032F9 7T RESZLBEE
Glory State Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% - Investment holding
BB 18T RERR
Golden Resorts Group Hotel - Macau MOP100,000 100% - 100%  Operating Grandview
Investment Limited Hotel
AeRBEEREBBAR  EM 100,000 27 BEBREE
Goventure Finance Limited”  British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 100% 100% - Provision of services to casinos
RERURE iE3 run by SIM
RBEE B RERY
Next Champion Limited British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 100% 100% - Investment holding
RERUES E RERR

232 Kingston Financial Group Limited
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40

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)

Name of company

NAEH

New Times Entertainment
Limited @

FRRREERAT

Golden New Times Club @

BeHERERS®

Golden New Times 28
Club®
HERIHN2B8EEE
Target All Investments
Limited *
EHREERAR

Good Start Group Limited

Crystal Sea Group Limited *

Noble Brand Limited *

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
operation
AR/ ERR
Beny

Macau

AP

Macau
B

British Virgin Islands
ABRAHS

British Virgin Islands
RBRAHS

British Virgin Islands
RERUES

British Virgin Islands
RBRAHS

Particulars of
registered/issued
and paid up
share capital
i/ ERTR
HRREFHE

MOP100,000
100,000
HK$32,500,000

32,500,000 7C

MOP10,000,000
10,000,000 2F97T

US$1
e

US$1
1%L

US$1

1%

US$1
e

40 RHBLATZ2KRE®

Proportion of ownership interest

BRERERLA

Held

by the
Company
FAH
B

Group’s
effective
interest
r58
BRER

Held by a
subsidiary
WEAF
52}

Principal activities

TEEH

100%  Provision of services to casinos
run by SIM

FIREEE 2 B RARY

100% -

Provision of services to casinos
run by SIM
MABLE 7 BISRERE

100% - 100%

Provision of services to casinos
run by SUM
MRBLE  BISRERY

100% - 100%

100% - Provision of services to casinos
run by SIM

FIREEE 2 B RERY

100%

Provision of services to casinos
run by SIM
MRBLE 7 BISRERE

100% 100% -

100% 100% - Investment holding and
operating Golden Times
Club in hotel

REERRABEESE
BEeRREEE

100%

100% - Trading of listed securities

BE W&

LS pERMAERAR
—ETFER
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40 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 40 RMIBAR2KRE @

Proportion of ownership interest

BERERRLA
Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ registered/issued  Group’s Held
registration and and paid up effective bythe Heldbya
Name of company operation share capital interest Company subsidiary  Principal activities
SRR/ BER it/ BROR r&E xRF  HWEAR
NEER EEh BRRAGFE BRER 5E BE IEEER
Right Business Limited* British Virgin Islands ~ US$100 100% 100% - Investment holding
BEERAR ZBERAES 100%7T REER
Kingston Securities Limited  Hong Kong HK$5,000,000,000 100% - 100%  Dealing and advising
eHEEHFERA BE 5,000,000,000 % 7 in securities and
margin financing
FHR P LB
UEREEHE
Kingston Futures L‘\mi ed Hong Kong HK$15,000,000 100% - 100%  Dealingin fu tures contracts
EHSHEERA A 15,000,000 77¢ HEANR
Kingston Corporate Hong Kong HK$11,000,000 100% - 100%  Provision of corporate finance
Finance Limited B5 11,000,000 7 advisory services
ERE LR ] YN R BERRS
Kingston Asset Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 100% - 100%  Provision of asset management
Management Limited BB 5,000,000/ 7T services
ENEEEERRRAA RUEEEERYE
Canada United Potash Canada CAD50,000,100 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Limited nex 50,000,100 17T KARR
# Companies operate principally in Hong Kong instead of their # FEGEBEMIASTEH MK 27
respective places of incorporation or establishment. HEEEZ R A] e
5 Companies operate principally in Macau instead of their g FEERIMIFAST G2 MK ek 7
respective places of incorporation or establishment. HEEEZ R A] e
e Golden New Times 28 Club and Golden New Times Club are e HEHR8EEERECHEREZS
registered in Macau as business enterprises under the control HRBPIETLREELFE  WAHFTEAR
of and were operated by New Times Entertainment Limited. BERN AIESRACE o
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REMBmRME

41 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED M =RE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

The tables below detail changes in the Group’s financial

BemERME

TERAMAEERETHAELSRAG L

liabilities arising from its financing activities, including both
cash and non-cash movements. For those financial liabilities
arising from financing activities are for which cash flows
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from

financing activities:

g BEASNERE
EXTRABENREAED
MERE)NAEELKR

28 - WEEBH
@ (HRFES

= IEEE/}\LE%%EP ol

ARETDMELRSREZSRAE

Amounts Loan from
Dividend due to arelated Subordinated Lease
Bank loans payable shareholders company loans liabilities
RE-K
EfRE EARRHE BEARER BEER HESE
(Note 29) (Noie 30) Note 32)
( (Hiit) (Hit29) (Hiit30) )
HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 $°000 HK$’000
TER TAT TAT TAT TET TER
At 31 March 2019 RZZE-hF
=A=+-H 2,420,000 - 4,662,264 4,033,342 700,000 -
Impact of initial adoption of NERBERITBRE
HKFRS 16 (Note 2.1) ERFE 16 E
(Hizk2.1) - - - - - 97,286
At 1 April 2019 “I-NEMA-R 2,420,000 - 4862264 4,033,342 700,000 97,266
Advance from a related company —ZREE R AIBF - - - 2,803,914 - -
Repayment to a related company  [A—Z @& A RER - - - (4123,110) - -
Proceeds from bank loans BOERMETE 11,710,549 = — — = =
Repayments of bank loans BBBTER (13,080,549) - - - - -
Repayments to shareholders ARRER = = (267,741) - - -
Dividend paid BARS - (280,467) - - - -
Interest paid BHAIE = = (35,350) - - -
Repayments of interest portion ~ EEREEEFEED
on lease liabilities - - - - - (3,798)
Repayments of principal portion  EBHE&ELSTH
on lease liabilities - - - - - (31,510)
Total changes from financing BERGRELDEE
cash flows (1,370,000  (280,467)  (303,091) (1,319,196 = (35,308)
Non-cash transactions: *HL%5H
Dividend declared EE/EEHQE\ - 260,467 - - - -
Dividend for a non-controlling m—&IEERRRR RS
shareholder - 20,000 - = = =
Finance costs BERA - - 35,350 - - 3,798
At 31 March 2020 RZIB-ZE=F=+-H 1,050,000 - 4,394,523 2,714,146 700,000 65,776
2NEEMEEBRAR

“EROTFER
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41 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 41
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continuea)

GERERERMT @

Amounts
due to
shareholders

Dividend
payable

Bank loans

EARE  ERREZE
(Note 28)
(frz228)
HK$'000
FAL

Loan from
arelated
company

HK$ 00
TR

Subordinated
loans
BEER
(Note 30)

At 1 April 2018 RZE-N\E¥WA-A 2,350,000 - 4,219,911 7,142,999 700,000
Advance from a related company —FEERTZH - - 3,877,986 -
Repayment to a related company A-FBERAER - - - (6,987,643) -
Proceeds from bank loans BITERABHA 17,828,800 - - - -
Repayments of bank loans BEBTER (17,758,800) - - - -
Advances from shareholders LA - - 442 353 - -
Dividend paid BARE - (347,290) - - -
Interest paid BRFIE - (32,760) - -
Total changes from financing cash flows ~ BIEBERELEEE 70,000 (347,290) 409,593 (3,109,657) -
Non-cash transactions: FHERH

Dividend declared BEERKRE 347,290 - -
Finance costs BEKK - 32,760 - -
At 31 March 2019 RZE-nE=A=+-H 2,420,000 - 4,662,264 4,033,342 700,000
Note: The carrying amount of dividend payable is included in trade Wit R-F-_FFR _F-NF=ZA=+—AH"

and other payables as at 31 March 2020 and 2019. FEIRE 2 AREEGF A E 5 KA M IE [

He
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42 OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 42 HETHEEHESHAE
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
The following tables present details of the Group’s financial TEREVNWAEBEFEEZEHEENRS R
assets and financial liabilities that are subject to offsetting, BEZFHE ﬁﬁﬁ%pﬁﬁ?&éﬂfﬁ{ i‘$
restricted by the enforceable master netting arrangement or EEHEEBTREEFGE AR EBEE])
similar agreement between the Group and Hong Kong 2B 7 A ea S TT 2 4R R A B 2 HE sk KE
Securities Clearing Company Limited (“HKSCC”). WhaER &l o

Financial assets subject to offsetting
TFEHZEREE
Related amounts not offset in the
consolidated statement of
financial position
BERGEHBRRREH
d i

Gross amount  Netamount
of recognised of financial
financial assets
liabilities offset presented

Gross in the in the
amountof  consolidated  consolidated Financial
recognised  statement of statement  instruments Cash
financial financial of financial other than collateral
assets position position cash collateral received Net amount
R&& A
BRRRR  BBRRAR  REERR
BEIEH  EHERI  2fized o BkHRE
EEAE <SRAEER EERE $MIA il BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000
TAT THL TATL TiEx TAL TATL

At 31 March 2020: RZE-%F
=ZR=t- E'
Net amount of frade receivables ENEBHEE 7 &
due from HKSCC e aaﬁa 41576 (44,280) 3,296 - - 3,296
At 31 March 2019: R=B-1%
ZR=t+-8:
Net amount of trade receivables EWEALEEE S
due from HKSCC W T 119,285 (56,970) 62,315 - - 62,315
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e M BHRR

42 OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 42 BETHEERSBMERE®w
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continueq)

Financial liabilities subject to offsetting
IFEEZERAR
Related amounts not offset in the
consolidated statement of
financial position
BERGLUBRARES
ZHHeHE

Grossamount  Net amount
of recognised of financial
financial liabilities
assets offset presented

Gross in the in the
amountof  consolidated  consolidated Financial
recognised statement statement instruments Cash
financial of financial of financial other than collateral
liabilities position position cash collateral received Net amount
R&& iy
BERRR  HBRRR BeHAm
BEICH  EHERI 25|z &R Moz ghEs
BREE LREELE BEFE £RIA i BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THEL BT THEx T THT

At 31 March 2020: R-B-%f
=ZR=t+-R:
Net amount of trade payables ~ ERNEBEEZ B
due to HKSCC ERRTFE 44,280 (44,280) - - - -
At 31 March 2019: R=B-N§
=ZA=t+-R:
Net amount of frade payables ~ [ENEBLEEZE 5
due to HKSCC ENRENFE 56,970 (66,970) - - - -
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REMBmRME

42 OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 42 EHHeMEEHESMAEE®
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continued)
The tables below reconcile the carrying amounts of trade and THRAEAENNEBR LGS EARRNEKITR2Y AR
other receivables and trade and other payables at the end of ESHREH MNEMEWIRIEE 5 & E M E
reporting period as presented in the Group’s consolidated EE 7 BRI {E 2 HER -

statement of financial position:

2020 2019

—B-EF —E-NF

Trade and other receivables HK$’000 HK$'000

B S RHEMEWRR FHET THIT
Net amount of trade receivables JEREBEREE

due from HKSCC FRUNBR K F 58 3,296 62,315

Trade and other receivables not within ~ NEH IR EEE ~

the scope of offsetting disclosure B 5 R Ho A AR R 99,111 150,664
Trade and other receivables as RE AR RATIEEE 2

disclosed in the consolidated B 5 N E b U AR TR

statement of financial position 102,407 212,979

2020 2019

Trade and other payables HK$’000 HK$'000
B2 REMESIRR FET FET
Net amount of trade payables ENEEEE

due to HKSCC B S5 REMNRFFRE = -

Trade and other payables not within NI IRERE
the scope of offsetting disclosure B 5 MEAREAIRK 990,227 1,657,540

Trade and other payables as disclosed 4 &R ARAHE
in the consolidated statement of B 5 N EM IR
financial position 990,227 1,657,540

e teen 239



NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRR

43 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 43 HERRER
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) EMIEER
The carrying amounts of Group’s financial instruments RZE_ZFR-_FT—NF=HAH
as at 31 March 2020 and 2019 are as follows. Refer to =t+t—H AEEeRMITACZEAE

240

Note 4(g) for explanations how the category of financial
instruments affect their subsequent measurement for

both years.

MT - Bem T AERMAZEMRME
FREZHERFEZRE
49) ©

A2 R

2020 2019
—EEHF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Financial assets: ERBE
— At fair value through other — BRRAFER AH A
comprehensive income FEUA 140 140
— At fair value through profit or loss — BRAFER AR 138,374 168,366
— At amortised cost — JREESE A AR
— Advances to customers — MEFRMRECHE
in margin financing 16,345,648 18,252,042
— Trade and other receivables — B REAMER
R 97,546 120,141
— Cash and bank balances — RS RIBRTTES 1,039,262 2,458,272
17,482,456 20,830,455
Financial liabilities: TEAE:
— At amortised cost — JRE IR AN
— Trade and other payables — B 5 NEMERAIRR 990,227 1,530,258
— Amounts due to shareholders — [E AR 8 4,394,523 4,662,264
— Loan from a related company —KH fafﬁﬁﬂaﬁﬁ 2,714,146 4,033,342
— Subordinated loans —BEER 700,000 700,000
— Bank loans — RITER 1,050,000 2,420,000
— Lease liabilities —HEBE 65,776 -
9,914,672 13,345,864
Note: The fair value of financial instruments measured at i RZE=ZZFFR-_F—NF=H

amortised cost are approximate to their carrying
amounts as at 31 March 2020 and 2019.
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B BmARM T

43 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group’s activities are exposed to a variety of
financial risks, including market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management policies focus on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seek to minimise any potential
adverse impacts on the Group’s financial position and
financial performance. The risk management policies
are carried out by the senior management of the Group
under the approval by the directors of the Company.

i. Market risk

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates principally in Hong Kong and
Macau and exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising from foreign currency other than the
functional currency of the respective business
operations, primarily with respect to Renminbi
(“RMB”), United States Dollars ("USD”), and
Singapore Dollars (*SGD”). Foreign exchange risk
arises from sales and purchase transactions and
recognised assets and liabilities.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign
currency denominated financial instruments as at
31 March 2020 and 2019 were as follows:

Eﬁﬁ@@%fi (&)
(b) HEEKREEEEREK

Liabilities

&fE

2020

_7_

qﬁ —7

HK$°000
FET

usD
RMB
SGD

ey
AR
FANE T

45

1,777

108

AEBZEBEAXZAEMBERRE - 8
%ﬁ%ﬂ&%ﬁﬁ%ﬂ@~ﬂ$@@
&FMH 2)  EEER MRS E SR

c AEEZERR ﬁaﬁﬁ%%$
%@@ﬁ%2$ﬂﬁﬁ& T30
HWASBUP SRR R IERE ZEM
BETHFE AEBaREEER
RABESHETERRREIRBUR ©

i. WHEERR
& 2
REETEREBRRFKLE

B WARE S EKHLE 26
B AN Z SN BE A 2 TE R
B TESRAREITAR

¥ 1) ET([3ERTT)) BT
(FFrmsoTl) - EXRBRKREE
BEXHREHAEELAR -

E+ B $%IM%%%EZ
TERTAEZREEDT

Assets

BE
2020
—E-BF
HK$’000
FE T

2019

—NF
HK$'000
TAT

2019
—NhE
HK$'000
TAT

45 1,535 3,700
4,017 11,943 7,119
200 458 887

EHNELREBEFR QA
“EROTFER
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43 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

BRRREE

BREREEEERBE®

(i) Market risk (continued) (i) ™ERRGE
Foreign exchange risk (continued) & 5 [ (48)
The Group does not have foreign currency R E A0 2 HNEES SR R

hedging policy. However, the management
regularly monitors the foreign exchange exposure
in terms of controlling the level of foreign currency
receipts and payments to ensure the net exposure
of foreign exchange risk is kept to an acceptable
level from time to time and will consider to use
financial derivatives for hedging significant foreign
currency exposure when it is necessary.

The management does not expect any significant
movements in the foreign exchange rate of USD
to HKD and SGD to HKD in accordance with the
historical exchange rate movements. The Group
is mainly exposed to the possible fluctuation of
exchange rate of RMB to HKD.

The following table indicates the possible change
in the Group’s profit or loss for the year in
response to possible changes of foreign
exchange rates to which the Group has significant

i EEEREE 9|\%Hﬁl3€7}<ﬂ?
SEEHERELRRE - AR
AT TE e e B 03 B A A5 T TN B
ARZKFE  IRNEFEREE
ERE/MITET A hERER
R -

RIBEEEXES  TEEEYN
ETLRBTTRF ML T ABTLZ
PE KA BB - AEH
BREIEAZARELBETZA
REEXRBTE -

TEIBARM 2 FRREE

%ﬁ@t&ﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁi
%X%xékAEMH ) i
2 A

exposure in RMB at the end of reporting period.

2020 2019
bt 223 —E-NF
Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease) (decrease) (decrease)
in foreign in profit in foreign in profit
exchange after tax exchange after tax
rates for the year rates for the year
FRRHE
ExLtH -~ ERENS EXEAS
(E&) (R2) (TF%)
% HK$’000 % HK$'000
% THET % FHET
Renminbi AR 4% 407 4% 124
(4%) (407) (4%) (124)
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43 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

(M)

Market risk (continued)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

It is assumed that the possible change of foreign
exchange rates had occurred at the end of
reporting period and had been applied to the
Group’s exposure to foreign exchange risk for
financial instruments existed at that date, and that
all other variables, in particular market interest
rates, remained constant. It is also assumed that
the pegged rate between the Hong Kong dollar
and the United States dollar would be materially
unaffected by any changes in the movement of
the United States dollar against other foreign
currencies. The analysis is performed on the
same basis as at 31 March 2019.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk arising
primarily from its advances to customers in
margin financing, bank deposits, bank loans and
subordinated loans carried at variable interest
rates. Bank loans and subordinated loans at
variable interest rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate
risk exposures respectively.

The Group did not use financial derivatives to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. The
management regularly monitors the Group’s
exposure on an ongoing basis.

At 31 March 2020, it is estimated that a general
increase/(decrease) of 100 basis points (2019:
100 basis points) of interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, the net interest rate risk
exposure would increase/(decrease) the Group’s
profit after tax and retained earnings of
approximately HK$134,508,000 (2019:
approximately HK$152,159,000).

43 BIEEBRERE @

(b)

BREBREREEERBE®@

() WEREE)
B 3 @ ()

ERRE XA EHEBNHRE R K
BHE - WERANRAEERZA
FABEZEBT AN YELR
w - AFTEEMER (RN
BMER) @ERHIE - R ITRR
BILARTT BBETARTE

FHIE TN RN 2 (AR

yg.—T-hE=A=+—A

Z M YRR AT -

AREEZFERREREEHREZY
AR BN RESR
RITERRIE
BEREL - FERITERRRE
BERSAEED HAZRER

EFNXEREATFENERER -

P IEST
W& - BITER -

AEBEWERASBMOTETAY
FEES N ERER - BEER
BEHERAKERZ ZAR -

N_EZERF=ZA=+—H " W
FlREEE R (TH) 1002
ZE—NF 1002 mAT
BEME ST E - TR F
KRERFERSAEE 2 BREE
i F AR BB B A A, G ) 49
134,508,000/8 7C (=& — JL4F -

#7152,159,000387T) °

SHUEBEMERAR
—EoTEER
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43 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

244

(M

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined by
assuming that the changes of market interest
rates had occurred at the end of reporting period
and had been applied to the Group’s exposure to
interest rate risk for financial instruments existed
at that date, and that all other variables, remained
constant. The analysis is performed on the same
basis as at 31 March 2019.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to price risks arising from
its equity securities investment (Note 22), and
investment funds, whose returns are linked to a
portfolio of securities listed in Hong Kong and
other stock markets of which can refer to the net
asset value of the investment funds respectively.

The Group’s equity securities investments are
listed in Hong Kong. Decisions to buy or sell are
based on daily monitoring of performance of
individual securities, as well as the Group’s
liquidity needs. Management monitors its
exposure by maintaining a portfolio of securities
with different risk profiles. In addition, the
investment fund selection has been chosen
based on their net asset value and growth
prospects on the basis of regular monitoring.
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(b) MEEREEREZREEK )
() TERE@
T 7 B (48)

FRESMBRERT SN ZEE RN
WEMREL  YORARAE

ERZEREZ SRIAREY
HERR - MAA LSRR

B —BNEZA=+-F
2 TR B AR R AT -

1B fe
AEEFZ 2 EBERRKEHEE
WENBBREMEEMS EH
ZBFIGEHRAEN T BRAEF
KE(WF22) RIEEES - I8
REESZEEFE

REBZRAEFBHFRENEE L
e EASUAE ZAETIRIES
HERENESFRTARAEE
MBECHEMEL - BERESH
BEsEEewETRRARREEZ
BRE - UEEGBER - o
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43 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

(M)

Market risk (continued)

Price risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity
for 10% (2019: 10%) change in the equity prices
of both equity securities and investment funds,
with all other variables held constant, and based
on their carrying amounts at the end of reporting
period. For the equity securities, the impact is
recognised in the retained earnings, which might
have impact on the profit or loss, whereas for the
investment funds, the impact is recognised in the
FVOCI reserve, which might have impact on the
other comprehensive income at the end of
reporting period.

2020 “ECEBF

Financial assets at far value BATEFABEREZ
through profit or loss SREE

Financial assets at fair value BATEF AR MR
through other comprehensive WAZERMEE
income

2019 —E-RF

Financial assets at far value BATESAERZ
through profit or loss CREE

Financial assets at fair value BATHEFAEMEE
through other comprehensive WAZ ©RVEE

income

MEERERE @

(b)

)

Increase/
(decrease) in
basis points

EEtH
(TEE)

10%

10%

10%

10%

BBEEE

BEERHEEK#)

iSRS ()

1EFE Rz (%)
Ti’%pﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁifw """"" %IZEHT
'''''' ZIERT - IRBEROARER
KZEEWED = N %&%ﬂ
BESBREEHN10%(ZZT—H
$-m%%2ﬂ@§faﬂx$§
%*%ﬁﬁ‘% BT ENRBEFE
7R %ﬂa SRR E - Tt
%ﬁéﬁ%u C B ENEA
FAEET A CE 2 WU T
R AR EREHR e
HA ©

Increase/
(decrease) in
net profit/(loss)
and retained
earnings
wF, (B51R)
FER
REER
wm/Cd)  #iRd)
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Increase/
(decrease) in
FvOCI
reserve
BRATESA
Hti 2
LON- 1

13,837 -

- 14

16,837 -

- 14
SHESREBMERD

245

:$_$¢¢¢&



NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IRAa

[\\/ \

B 75 ¥R 2k I

43 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

246

(ii)

Credit risk

The extent of the Group’s credit exposure is
represented by the aggregate balance of cash at
banks, advances to customers in margin
financing and trade and other receivables.
Management has restricted credit policy in place
to ensure that the credit risk exposure is
monitored on regular basis.

Before granting credit facilities to margin clients,
the Group implements internal credit assessment
process to assess the potential clients’ financial
background, credit quality and market value of
securities, and defines a certain level of credit
limits to margin clients, which are reviewed by the
management regularly. The Group obtains
securities collateral from margin clients in terms of
maintaining a list of approved securities for
margin lending, at a specified loan-to-collateral
ratio and force-sell action may be taken against
margin clients with overdue balance on case-by-
case basis performed daily to minimise the credit
risk exposure in respect of the margin clients.

In respect of trade and other receivables, the
management has delegated a team, who is
responsible for the determination of credit limits,
credit approval and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each trade debtor at the
end of each reporting periods to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable debts. Trade receivables from hotel
and gaming segments are due within 30 days.
Normally, the Group does not obtain securities
collateral from customers for all operating
segments.

Kingston Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2020

MEERER
(b) BERARESEEERBE®
(i) EEAR

AEEAZ 2 EERRIERITIR
T AEFBRNRESRENAR
B NEMRIK IR Z B o
%EFEEH§@ﬂFEﬁ
PAREIR E iSs R E B AR

EHHEERETRESEFZ
Al - AEEERARBEEF R
FUAFEEREERP MBS
R EEEEXKFSFTE XA
RESEPREATEERE
EREEREMEEEE R
Ao AEEBAE -REEER
BEARLEFETRESEE

RAEFBE  MRIESZEPK
HESEMG YRS HiZ(E

RIS R BBERYREL TS
SRS T8 - BB RIE
RELES 2 EHEAR -

RESRHEMERERNS &
BEDSZIT—EkE BEET
ZEREE EREEUARETH
fhESIRIR Fr - FEAR Bt U 1= 38 HA
BEIEHEUREITE) o boh - A&
EREREGAENSESER
AZ AR B 5E - ARER A
WEEEFHR R SREEE - B
ERBE B2 E S ERETR
%EWJ%O—%WE ﬁ%@
BRIBEEBOEZEFR
ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁmo



NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B mRME

43 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

(i)

Credit risk (continued)

The counterparties of all client trust bank
balances and the majority of bank balances are
deposited located in Hong Kong with sounded
financial institutions, in the opinion of the directors
of the Company, the credit risk of the Group’s
bank balances and client trust bank balances is
minimal.

The Group applies simplified approach to
measure loss allowances on trade receivables
arising from HKFRS 15 and general approach to
measure loss allowances on advances to
customers in margin financing and other
categories of financial assets at amortised cost.
Under the simplified approach, the Group
measures the loss allowances on the basis of
lifetime ECL assessment. Under the general
approach, the Group measures the loss
allowances firstly in a 12-months ECL assessment
(or lifetime ECL assessment if the term of the
asset is shorter), unless there has been a
significant in credit risk since initial recognition to
apply lifetime ECL assessment.

The management further assesses whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk for
exposures since initial recognition. If there has
been a significant increase in credit risk, the
related financial asset is either in Stage 2 or Stage
3 (see below for definition). In assessing whether
the credit risk of a financial asset has significantly
increased, the Group takes into account
qualitative and quantitative reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost of effort. This include
both quantitative and qualitative information
analysis, based on the Group’s historical
experience and informative credit assessment
and including forward-looking information.
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(b)
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43 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

248

(i)

Credit risk (continued)
Definition of Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 of
stages of default are as below:

Stage 1: Exposures where there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition and that are not credit-impaired upon
origination, the portion of the lifetime ECL
associated with the probability of default events
occurring within the next 12 months is
recognised.

The management regarded those margin clients
without actual shortfall (i.e. deficit between market
value of securities collaterals and margin loan
balance) or have actual shortfall in securities
collateral but the securities collateral is in good
quality and actively traded in the capital market.

Stage 2: Exposures where there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition but are not credit-impaired, a lifetime
ECL (i.e. reflecting the remaining lifetime of the
financial asset) is recognised.

The management regarded that those margin
clients with actual shortfall but the securities
collaterals are in poor quality, which is suspended
in trading in the capital market, but those margin
clients signed their repayment schedules with the
Group.

Kingston Financial Group Limited
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43 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

(i)

Credit risk (continued)

Stage 3: Exposures are assessed as credit-
impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that asset have occurred. For exposures
that have become credit-impaired, a lifetime ECL
is recognised and interest income is calculated
by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost, net of provision, rather than the
gross carrying amount from the beginning of the
subsequent reporting period.

The management regarded that those margin
clients with actual shortfall but the securities
collaterals is in poor quality, which is suspended
in trading in the recognised stock exchanges and
also the Group has lost contact with those margin
clients

The Group measures the loss allowances of trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated by using provision matrix.
According to the historical repayment records
and management loss experience, it does not
indicate that there is any significant loss pattern of
customers in different operating segments. The
calculation of loss allowances is based on the
past due status by grouping all of customers, who
shared a similar characteristics and economic
environment where they are located at the end of
reporting period.

43 BIEMREREw)
BREBREREEERBE @

(b)

(ii)
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43 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 43 B EEEE @

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BERARESEEERBE®

policies (continued)

(ii)  Credit risk (continued) (i) FERRE
The following table provides information about the TRIREBEERREIRAER
Group’s credit risk exposures and loss allowances ZZRWER 2 EERR KEE
of trade receivables as at the end of reporting Bz E R
period:
As at 31 March 2020 R-B-FHE=ZA=+—8

Gross
carrying  Expected Gross Loss
amount  credit loss carrying allowances
excluding  excluding  amount of for
Expected specific specific specific specific Total
credit trade trade trade trade loss
loss rate receivables receivables receivables receivables allowances

RHRE
REAE 33|
(FEE  (FBE HKEES  HEES
BHEE HTEZ  HEEZ BUERRz BURRz  BRBE
BEZ  EUWEX) BUER) REAE  BRER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT TAT TAT TER

0-30 days past due AH0Z30A 0.3% 71,428 (214) - - (214)
31-60 days past due BH31E60H 0.7% 1,100 ®) - - ®)
61-90 days past due BH61E£90H 1.4% 3,733 (52) - - (52)
Over 90 days past due BEI0 AN 16.1% 6,130 (O14) 23388 (23384)  (24,298)

82,391 (1188) 23384  (23384) (24572
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43 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
(ii) Credit risk (continued)
As at 31 March 2019

. Eﬁﬁ@@%fi (&)
(b) BEEREEEEREE®)

Gross
carrying
amount
excluding
specific
trade
receivables

Expected
credit loss
rate

HK$'000
B

EERR®)
R-ZBE—hAE=A=+—H

(ii)

Loss
allowances
for

specific
trade
receivables

@Gross
carrying
amount of
specific
trade
receivables

Expected
credit loss
excluding
specific
trade
receivables

Total
loss
allowances

HK$'000 HK$'000

TRL

0-30 days past due BHH0ZE30A 0.1% 137,719 (138) - - (138)
31-60 days past due B3I Z60H 0.5% 2,257 (1) - - (1)
61-90 days past due BH61E90H 1.2% 75 1) - - (1)
Over 90 days past due BH0AM £ 11.9% 4728 (563) 23,384 (23,384) (23,947

144,779 (713) 23,384 (23,384) (24,097
The expected credit loss rates are based on the BHEEEEBRENBEAM S

actual management loss experience over the past
financial years. These rates are adjusted to reflect
the difference between the characteristics and
economic environment of trade debtors during
the period when the historical data is extracted,
current conditions and future expectations over

the lifetime of trade receivables.

Analysis of the gross carrying amount of
advances to customers in margin financing as at

31 March 2020 and 2019 is as follows:

BEZEREEBRERET - %
EHREEABRARRESEBE
BBRHRE 5 @M A2 HREEL
BREEZER  BAEMR LY
B RWERRFIHA 2 RRE
Al e

RIEBE-ZTEN_T—HhF=A
=+—8 BRARFEBMNRE
BEZERmAESTOT

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F-BER SRR SF=ER et
HK’000 HK’'000 HK’000 HK’'000
THETT FHET THETT FHET

As at 31 March 2020 R-B-BHF
=A=+—8H 10,447,584 6,628,876 1,377,940 18,454,400

As at 31 March 2019 RZE—NF
=A=+—H 14,511,773 3,683,941 1,042,089 19,237,803

EHNELREBEFR QA
“EROTFER
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43 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuea) 43 KRR EE @
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BEEREARESEEERBX®

policies (continued)

(ii) Credit risk (continued) (ii)
Movements of loss allowances that has been
recognised for advances to customers in margin

EERE®)
E A AEFBMRE S B E E
RBBRBEBESHIOT

252

financing during the year are as follows:

Stage 1
Lifetime
ECL
E-MEE&

KARS
ERES
HK'000
57

Stage 2
Lifetime
ECL
BB
KXARH
REER
HK’000
7

Stage 3
Lifetime
ECL
EZRE
KXARH
REER
HK'000
AT

@t
HK$'000
TAT

At 1 April 2018 RZE-\FNA—A 9,863 - 496,487 506,350
Changes due to financial RRAZE-\FEA—-A
instruments recognised at BRALBIAESE
1 April 2018:
— Net remeasurement of ECL — BERRER  BH
without transfer of stage EEBRENTEFE 4,698 25,519 110,098 140,315
— Net remeasurement of ECL —AREERmEE 2 BH
arising from transfer of stage FEERENTEFE
(Note i) gD - 80,125 258,971 339,096
At 31 March 2019 and RZE-NE=A=1-H
1 April 2019 (Note ii) kZZ-NENA—-H
(PsEin) 14,561 105,644 865,556 985,761
Changes due to financial AR=E-NnEFmA—H
instruments recognised at EAemIAESE #
1 April 2019:
— Net remeasurement of ECL — BERRER 2, BH
without transfer of stage EEEEENTEFE (14,561) 631,869 36,658 653,966
— Net remeasurement of ECL — ARBRERmEE 2 BH
arising from transfer of stage EEBRENTEFE
(Note ) GE) - 112,656 356,369 469,025
At 31 March 2020 (Note ii) RZZ-ZF=A=+-H
(PizEii) - 850,169 1,258,583 2,108,752
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43 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Notes:

(i)

(i)

(ii)

At 31 March 2020, the gross carrying amount of
advances to customers in margin financing of
approximately HK$2,108,752,000 (2019:
approximately HK$971,200,000) was assessed
as credit-impaired under the Stage 2 and Stage 3
of the lifetime ECL. During the year, a total of
approximately HK$112,656,000 (2019:
approximately HK$80,125,000) of margin clients,
who classified as Stage 1 lifetime ECL at 31
March 2019 (2019: 31 March 2018), was
transferred to Stage 2 lifetime ECL and those who
classified as Stage 1 and Stage 2 lifetime ECL at
31 March 2019 (2019: 31 March 2018) of
approximately HK$356,369,000 (2019:
approximately HK$258,971,000) was transferred
to Stage 3 lifetime ECL.

In order to assess the ECL among different stages
of default, the management performed an
assessment based on their historical credit loss
experience, adjusted to factors that are specific to
the margin clients, general economic conditions
and forecast of future conditions at the end of
reporting period. The management also reviews
the fair value of pledged securities received from
the margin clients and monitors their assessment
regularly to reduce differences between loss
estimates and their actual loss experience.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each

trade

debtors. At 31 March 2020 and 2019, there

was no concentration of credit risk with respect to
the receivables, there was no customer is
responsible for more than 10% of the Group’s

trade

receivables and advances to customers in

margin financing.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s credit risk exposure arising from
advances to customers in margin financing and
trade and other receivables are disclosed in
Notes 23 and 24, respectively.

BEREERE e
(b) BEEKRE IEE ERBE @)
iy EERRE)
Bt
() RZFZFF=ZA=+—H"
BEFBIHRESFHEZRE
48 (8 #72,108,752,000,% 7T ( =
=T — J14F : 47971,200,000%

TC)IRIEE —FEER K 58 = P ER 7k
ATERIE B 185118 BH B =
ERE - FA RZFE—AF
ZHA=F+—A(=ZZE—NF: =
F-N\FZA=+—H)4E4
— BBk A FEH(Z %Eﬁsz
17% FeFFPEFE A
112,656,000,% m(_;:—jz*f
#980,125,000,57) BB E =
/Z éz;kﬂfé‘%@/:fgﬁa ﬁ’ﬁ/FA
71& ﬁ +—A(=
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F7Eﬁ%;f§§/54ﬁzﬂz B

INFHE - W EEERAT
féiwfzt EIE 1 A B B R T 1R
Fit Jed i3

AEEEHZEFERREIERXE
EHEBAERNBERTE - R
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43 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

254

policies (continued)
(iii) Liquidity risk

The Group’s regulated activities under the SFC
are subject to different statutory liquidity
requirements as prescribed in accordance with
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571).
The management closely monitors to the liquidity
gap to ensure that the Group maintains adequate
liquid capital to fund its daily operating expenses
and various commitments and to comply with the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571). As
part of the measurement is to safeguard the
minimum liquidity requirements, the Group has
maintained a balance between continuity of
funding and flexibility through the uses of the
shareholders’ loan, related company loan,
subordinated loan and banking facilities, in order
to meet its liquidity requirements in both short and
long terms.

Kingston Financial Group Limited
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43 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 43 B ERERE e

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MHERMEEEEZEREE#

policies (continued)

(iii) Liquidity risk (continued) (i) REBELERERE)
The following table details the remaining TRANAEBEETECREE
contractual maturities at the end of reporting REREHR 2 e D EmE
period of the Group’s non-derivative financial DIRBEHRMIBRESTE &
liabilities, which are based on the contractual FEHRBEHF R E (WA Z
undiscounted cash flows (including interest B ARESRE R RITHIE
payments computed using contractual rates or, if SAE)ZHNBENT UEAREER
floating, based on the current rates at the end of AEERNRz&F HHERE

reporting period) and the earliest date that the
Group can be required to pay:

202
I <)
Total Total
contractual Within contractual Within

Effective  Camying undiscounted oneyearor  Morethan  FEffective  Camying  undiscounted oneyearor — Morethen

interest rate amount cashflow ondemand  oneyear inferestrate amount cashflow ondemand  oneyear
aRARE  -EAg ; !
REAE BEE RERELE EEX  -ENE : R i —E)
HKS'000  HKS'000 HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$O000 ‘ ( HK$ 000
TEn TR THR THR TR AT T
Tadeandother  EFREMENED
payables - 990227 990,227 990,227 - - 153028 1530,268 1,530,258 -
Amountsdueto  BRREFE
shareholders 26% 4394523 4,506,681 4,506,681 - 23% 4662264 4768932 4768932 -
Loanfromarelted  RE-REE
company ARER 35% 2714146 2809141 2,809,141 - 35% 4033342 4114009 4114009 -
Subordinated loans % EEH 31% 700,000 1750 721,750 - 31% 700,000 721,750 721,750 -
Bank loans RIER 35% 1,050,000 1,161,951 651,123 510,628 30% 2420000 2064406 1460152 1204254
Lease liabilities BEEE 4.8% 65,776 68,643 36,689 31,954 - - - - -
9914672 10258393 9,715,611 542,782 13345864 13799305 12595101 1204254
TNETRHEBERER 255
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43 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(c) Fair value estimation

The fair values of financial instruments are determined
as follows:

the fair value of equity securities investments
classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss traded on active liquid markets is
determined with reference to quoted market
prices in the recognised stock exchange at the
end of reporting period. A market is regarded as
active and liquid if the quoted market prices are
readily and regularly available from a recognised
stock exchange, broker or regulatory agency,
which represent actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm’s length basis. As
at 31 March 2020 and 2019, the equity securities
investment is included in Level 1 of the fair value
measurement hierarchy (see below for definition);

the fair value of investment funds classified as
financial asset through other comprehensive
income is based on the net asset value of
investment funds with reference to recognised
stock exchanges at the end of reporting period.
As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, the investment
funds is included in Level 2 of the fair value
measurement hierarchy (see below for definition)
when it maximise the use of observable market
data when it is available and rely as little as
possible on entity specific estimations especially
when it is not traded in active and liquid market;
and

the fair value of other financial instruments are
determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted
cash flows by using prices or rates from
observable market transactions as input.
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43 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 43 BIEMREREw)

(d) Fair value hierarchy of financial instruments (d) €@MTENFERG
HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosure” requires EAMBMELEANETHR [T A -
the disclosure of financial instruments that are WIRE  UAFEHZZ2EMIEAZR
measured at fair value categorised by level of the BT AFEFERBEDIELHE

following fair value measurement hierarchy:

Level 1 — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active F—H/E — HEEEFEENEET
markets for identical assets or B HRB(RERARE) -
liabilities.

Level2 — inputs other than quoted prices FE_LZH — BEREBBEETERE—
included within Level 1 that are FRIREBTER 28A
observable for the asset or liability, g TwmeaE(EE
either directly (that is, as prices) or %) sk fe B (BN (B 4% R
indirectly (that is, derived from prices). PTHE)ERER -

Level 3 — inputs for the asset or liability that are F=HA — FEEEIEBEIHEAH
not based on observable market data BWIERAIER 2T
(that is, unobservable inputs). g (ANE LB = A H

g) -

The following table presents the Group’s financial TRINHBAEBR —_E-_FTFEN—

instruments that are measured at fair value as at 31 —NFE=A=+—HHUA $f§a+iz

March 2020 and 2019: LRI A :

At 31 March 2020 R=-B=-BF=ZA=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Total
E— A E_ A et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FERT TERT TERT
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value BEATEFABZZ
through profit or loss TREE 138,374 - 138,374
Financial assets at fair value BATEFAEMEERA
through other ERMEE
comprehensive income = 140 140

138,374 140 138,514

e teen 0]
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43 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(d) Fair value hierarchy of financial instruments
(continued)
At 31 March 2019

R EE e
(d &@MIEAFEZEHR@

R=-EBE-hE=A=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Total

Eo il £ZRA et

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TET T

Assets BE

Financial assets at fair value BATERA

through profit or loss Bamsem
BE 168,366 - 168,366

Financial assets at fair value BAFERTA

through other Hisn2EUA

comprehensive income CEMEE - 140 140
168,366 140 168,506

The fair value of investment funds classified as level 2
of the fair value measurement hierarchy is determined
by the net asset value indicated in the monthly
statement of the underlying investment funds as at 31
March 2020 and 2019 as there is no public market for
trading the investment funds. The fair value of
investment funds is positively correlated to the
underlying net asset value.

There are no transfers between different levels of fair
value measurement hierarchy for both years.
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44 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT

(a)

The Group has leased out minor area of its leasehold
land and building to a number of tenants as the lessor
of operating leases. The lease term of those tenants
committed to the Group are ranged from one to ten
years (2019: one to ten years) when the lease contracts
were signed. Rental income was recognised in a fixed
monthly interval, and no contingent rental income was
entitled to be received by the Group, with reference to
the lease contracts entered.

At 31 March 2020 and 2019, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivable under non-cancellable
operating lease contracts, which was fall due as
follows:

REHERIE

= ==}

(a)

AEBERKEHEZLHEA B
HNHrEETRNEFHETZ A
BHF - 2RFIHEAHNK  ZFHP
AREEAGZZBERNF—FE+
FAF(ZT-NF: —FE2+F)-
HERASAERBER MAEEE

ESBEF Y 2 HEA YU AT
WA -
—E_EFRF—-NF=ZA

I

= ZXEIBATT@@Z‘““E
EAH ETZ =S| éﬁqﬁlﬁﬂﬂﬂi\ﬁ' #

K5I EE 2 H

2020 2019

—E_EF —hF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHIT

Within one year —FR 11,545 11,749
More than one year, but not exceeding ZR—FBRBBME

two years 10,478 9,786
More than two years, but not exceeding %R RIE(ERFBIE=F

three years 10,438 10,274
More than three years, but not exceeding Z N =F{BARBBIUE

four years 1,731 10,385
More than four years, but not exceeding — ZFAPIF{B KiRE T F

five years = 1,731

34,192 43,925

The Group entered into non-cancellable operating
lease contracts in respect of its staff quarters,
warehouses and office premises with landlords and the
lease terms committed by the Group are ranged from
one to three years (2019: one to three years) when the
lease contracts were signed.

AEEREFEHREIES BER
PAEMET I REKERES
4 BERIVEANE  KEEES
ZHERAN T —FE2=F1%F(=Z2
—NF: —FE=F)-

EHNELREBEFR QA
“EROTFER
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44 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT (continued) 4 BEHERE =
(b)  (continued) (b) (#&)
The minimum lease payments recognised as expenses FRNERAR Y 7 HEBERBEWNOT :

during the year are as follows:

2020 2019
— ZENEF

HK$°000 HK$'000
FET THAT

Total minimum lease payments for leases  5cBiiRIE &S & 2R

previously classified as operating BT ROBAKERE Y

leases under HKAS 17 SEAEFIRLE - 35,470
Short-term lease expenses MHIHERY 15,757 -
At 31 March 2019, the Group had total future minimum RZE-NF=A=1+—H  ~&E
lease payables under non-cancellable operating lease RAAHEEEHESHNENZHE
contracts, which was falling due as follows: ENHEESAREN T HEEE

2019
—T—NF

HK$'000
THTT

Within one year —FR 37,048
More than one year, but not exceeding two years BiR—FERBRMRF 37,397
More than two years, but not exceeding three years — #B:BRFE{ERIBB=F 31,049
105,494
The future minimum lease payables under non- THHEGEEHESGHNE T RARKIE
cancellable operating lease contracts represented the HMEFRERASERETIES  BE
operating lease expenses payables by the Group in R ANEYERNIEEHERST
respect of staff quarters, warehouses and office EERYBAAREERBERBESE
premises, which was previously classified as operating L’%E'J% 17N BAKERERY - 8
lease expenses when it was incurred under HKAS 17. T-NFNHA—H#E  REKEM
From 1 April 2019 onwards, the future minimum lease %?klﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ‘f#e)ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%z
payments have been recognised as lease liabilities in GHBRERATEAE - 2EME
accordance with the Group’s accounting policies as set BEFFIBRMIFES2HE -
out in Note 4(e). Details of lease liabilities are disclosed
in Note 32.
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45 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT 45 FEERJAEE

LIABILITIES

2020 2019
—g-%F -TNF

HK$°000 HK$'000

Expenditure contracted for but not
provided for in respect of: X
— Property, plant and equipment

— W% - BE MR

FTRT TET

FTNFIRE ERTOEREE

2,395 14,770

The Company’s wholly owned subsidiary, namely Good Start
Group Limited, has received tax notices issued by the Macau
Financial Services Bureau dated 29 April 2014 and 18 May
2016 for assessing its Macau Complementary Tax payable
for the years of assessment 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012
respectively. The tax amounts per tax notices were
approximately HK$15,000,000, HK$20,000,000,
HK$24,000,000 and HK$25,400,000 respectively.

Another wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, namely
Target All Investments Limited, has received tax notices
issued by the Macau Financial Services Bureau dated 26
August 2015 and 24 October 2016 for assessing its Macau
Complementary Tax payable for the years of assessment
2011, 2012, 2013 and 2014 respectively. The tax amounts
per tax notices were approximately HK$1,300,000,
HK$1,000,000, HK$3,800,000 and HK$6,300,000
respectively.

The Group lodged objections to appeal against the aforesaid
notices according to stipulated appeal procedures. The
Review Committee of the Macau Financial Services Bureau
(the “Committee”) issued their decision to reject all appeals
by the Group in relation to the aforesaid Macau
Complementary Tax payable.

RN A 2 2B KB R R Good Start Group
Limited R 2B PI  B A8 A A =2
—mNEMA=-+HAAR=ZZE—X"ERAATN
HZi#@aE  FTERZTTNAF - =
T—Z2F T —FRZITZFRBEF
VZJEH/QFEJ% AT - BB IB A
£ ¥ E 5 Bl 4 A15,000,000/8 7T
20,000,0007% 7T * 24,000,000 7T M
25,400,000 7T ©

ARBS—REEWBAREHIREFRA
RIWERM BB AT —RF
NAZ+AREBE_E—XREF+A-_+WMNAZ
FHBNE FEER=ZT—F =2
——F  CE-ZFR-_T-NFREREFE
ZFEBPIFTIS TR o LRI RBAE -
FRIE 5 B4 A 1,300,000 7T + 1,000,000 7
JT ~ 3,800,000 % 7T }2. 6,300,000 7 T ©

AEBRIEE LR EFRE RE WL L@
HMEEL L - RPIBAEEEZES (X
Be ) FRERAREAKE AR L ER
FIPR IS TER 2 P A L3k
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COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LlABlLlTlES (continued)

After receiving the final decision of the Committee on their
rejection of the Group’s appeal, the Group made the tax
payments of an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$97,200,000 according to the stipulated regulation
requirement before making a further appeal via the court.
With regard to each of the Committee’s rejection of the
Group’s appeal, the Group separately submitted initial
petitions to the court on 9 December 2014 and 24 October
2016 for Good Start Group Limited and initial petitions to the
court on 10 March 2016 and 17 February 2017 for Target All
Investments Limited. The legal proceedings were concluded
or terminated during the year ended 31 March 2019 and the
Group has received favourable court decisions and won all
of the cases for the abovementioned years of assessments.
However, the Macau Financial Services Bureau refused to
refund the remaining amount of taxes paid by the Group of
approximately HK$95,900,000. The Group is seeking further
clarification and assistance from the court to request refund
of the aforesaid tax paid.

Subsequent to the conclusion or termination of the above
legal proceedings, Good Start Group Limited and Target All
Investments Limited further received tax notices issued by
the Macau Financial Services Bureau for the years of
assessment from 2013 to 2018 and from 2015 to 2018
respectively on demanding Macau Complementary Tax, in
the aggregate amount, of approximately HK$121,000,000, of
which approximately HK$56,800,000 was paid for the year
ended 31 March 2019.

As at 31 March 2020, there were nine legal proceedings in
total between the Group and the Macau Financial Services
Bureau, in connection with Macau Complementary Tax, in
respect of Good Start Group Limited for each of the years of
assessment from 2009 to 2014 and Target All Investments
Limited for each of the years of assessment from 2012 to
2014. The aggregate amount of all of these tax cases was
approximately HK$152,700,000 and such amount has been
paid by the Group.

Kingston Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2020

45 FEERDIAEE #)

WEIZEeRKEAER iz HEHRE
REBIZBEENRECBERREHLY
97,200,000 8 L& A B RVART IR E5F © &
HEEBEREAEESRLEF  ~EEH 5
R-ZT—ME+-_AABR-ZT— X F+ A
— /8 B 5t Good Start Group Limited A &
FRREVIF 2B URR T —R"F=A+
A= —+tF_A+tHRETREER
REIAEEFLIRH I 25 © &&ﬁ“a%
HEZZ-NF=ZA=1+—RALFEELE
BE - AREBERE EM R FE A = i
PTHIBEBERR - AT - BPIFBBERRER
SEE SRR T BLFKAY 95,900,000 7T °
REBIESSER#E —SEB RGBSR
BB ERIR -

LUK BFAFE A LKL LR - Good Start
Group Limited &%@?ﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁ?'ﬂﬂ&
HRMMEEAAMR T —=FE2=ZF—N
FURZE—RAFE_ZT - \FRUFEH
B2 RIRBAE - ESRETRPIF BT
& #£#)121,0000008 7 - AMBE T
—NF=ZA=+—HULEFEEHNESLY
56,800,000/ 7C °

AZEZEF=A=+—H AEBEERM
Bt I /B 7t Good Start Group Limited A =&
ENFEZ—NFRRFERLEHRRESR
RABR - E——F=2_FT—UFHRHFE
RFIFBEARETNREARFTD - %5
W ReEE H4152,700,0008 7T - B
BeBECAAEETIT -
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46

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LlABlLlTlES (continued)

Based on the advices from the Group’s legal counsel, the
directors of the Company considered that the Group has
valid grounds to recover the full amount of tax paid of
approximately HK$152,700,000. Accordingly, no provision
for taxation has been made in the profit or loss. In the
contrary, if the nine legal proceedings are eventually
unsuccessful and the Macau Financial Services Bureau
applied the same basis to the issued tax notices for the years
of assessment from 2015 to 2018, the Group will need to pay
of approximately HK$61,000,000 for Macau Complementary
Tax.

The Group had no other material contingent liabilities as at
31 March 2020 and 2019.

UNDERWRITING AND SUB-
UNDERWRITING COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2020, the Group did not enter into any
underwriting and sub-underwriting agreements to guarantee
for purchasing any securities in underwriting or sub-
underwriting between the Group and the issuer of securities.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group guaranteed to purchase the
securities in underwriting amounted to approximately
HK$53,060,000, being offered by sales of securities, at an
agreed-upon price between the Group and the issuer of
securities, regardless of whether or not the securities can be
sold to investors in the futures.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair value
of the underwriting arrangement is insignificant to the Group.
The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph
121 of HKFRS 15 to its customer contracts relating to
underwriting services, such that the Group had not disclosed
information about revenue that the Group will be entitled to
when it satisfies the remaining performing obligations under
the contracts that had an original expected duration of one
year or less and any estimated amounts of variable
consideration that are constrained.

45

46

EERIAREE

BAEBZAEABRHZER  ARARESER
B AEEERGEBERKDZHEMNTRKRLY
152,700,000/ 7T AL+ WEFLFHIBRIE
mARTREE - R - AR ERFLER
KREERHR - BV BBRR T —AFE_Z
—NERBREEHEL 2B BNERBHER
A REBBEEMBPASHEAHY
61,000,000 7T ©

R_F_ZER_FT-NF=ZA=+—8"
AEBYEAMBEALAALE -

BERDEHEARE

R-_T-ETF=A=+—0H ~AEELEF]
VEMBHEES BEBHEAREREANEE

BB ST APTRI L B D B P ERE
% o

RZZE—NAF=ZA=1+—8 r5£ERER
B BT A# 453,060,008 Ty ES
BEFHEPIRZRE2FS  ESHmASE
EHEFAHBETARE  MTwESFBRESR
HETIRES -

ARAEERR  BHTFZAFEHAE
BmELNEKN - AREDHEBYBRS
HAUFSHEF 12V RZEREEEEARE
REHERBZEFEH  FILERNEEENX
FRIEAHRA—FHATZEHNZHRTREL
BN AREYEREEEASESHE
WOB 2z W Je 32 PR il 2 Al R E A F 2
BB -

EHNELREBEFR QA
“EROTFER
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47 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY AND 47 EXBAETRBAERS

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, the
Group entered into the following material related party and
connected transactions during the year.

(a) Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration of key management personnel, including
those remuneration paid or payable to the directors of

Rt FR eV BRREBBIWRELZH M
,\\nﬁ/‘w\\ : $’$IEA¢WE E1T T B AR =

(a) FEEBAEME
TEEBAENE  BREFRENAK
BRARREETZZSME (R F

the Company during the year as disclosed in Note 16 is 164%FR) T -
as follows:
2020 2019
HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET THIT
Salaries and other benefits e hEMET 81,051 95,627
Contribution to defined contribution REHIGERTE 2 H®HEK
retirement scheme 90 90
81,141 95,717

Total remuneration of key management personnel is
included in “Staff costs” as disclosed in Note 9.

264 Kingston Financial Group Limited
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47 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY AND

B BmARM T

47

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continuea)

(b) During the year, the Group entered into the following
material related party transactions (“RPT”), which are
also included connected transactions (“CT”") or
continuing connected transactions (“CCT”) under the

Listing Rules.

Name of related party

BELEE/ e

Chu and Li’'s Family
RERFRFE

Ho Chi Ho
1—,[IL: ES

Directors of subsidiaries
and their associates

MEARESREABEAL

Kingston Finance Limited
(Note 1)

SHEHBERAT
(Fizt1)

Nature of transaction

XAME

Brokerage income

KERLVON

Maximum amount of margin financing
EERECRER

Interest income

MEBA

Brokerage income

IR ON

Maximum amount of IPO financing
BREAERAHEERER

Maximum amount of margin financing
BERECRER

Interest income

MEWBA

Brokerage income

EGEON

Interest expense
MEBFX

Management fee income
BRERA

BEAXBAEIRBERS
(b) FA  AEBEZETTIERNBEES
RH5(BEARS])  ZEXHNE

BEMRRBETZEERS (TFER

ZHEBERE

21 -

Transaction type
under Listing Rules

EHRA

BT

ZRZER

CcCT

SERE

CCT

REmE

CCT

FERmE

CCT

REmE

CCT
REmE
CCT
REmE
CcCT
REmE

BER S

X5

%%

X5

X5

X%

2%

X5

2020

— 7 = q-:
HK$’000
TR
289

52,119

298

35

116,432

939

EHNELREBEFR QA
“EROTFER

RH(HBEHEER

2019
—hée
HK$'000
b7

866
43,296
419
25
19,927

958

38

156,853

600
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47 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) (continued)

Name of related party

BER A8/ N

Kingston Property Investment
Limited (Note 1)

ENEREBRAA
(Het1)

Sincere Watch (Hong Kong)
Limited (Note 2)

Sincere Watch (Hong Kong)
Limited (#/7£2)

Mr. Lee Wai Man (Note 3)
FEEE(HES)
Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah
FAERT

REF Financial Press Limited
(Note 4)

Nature of transaction

47 ERBEAEFTRBERS =

(b) (&)

Transaction type
under Listing Rules

EHRAET 2020 2019
ZXFER BB _“T-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET THET
Management fee income CT 222 -
ERBUA BER S
Financial advisory income, placing RPT 565 696
commission, financial services BERRS
incomes, brokerage fee and
handling charge
BEEBA - EERE
SRBBRA -
BLERTFEE
Consultancy fee CT 1,000 1,000
BHER BER S
Staff quarter rental expenses CT 1,218 1,218
EIREHEMAX HER S
Office rental payment CT 35,308 7,006
HE/NEYISE ANE N AERS
Financial printing service charge CT 47 422
B EN IR 75 & A BER S

266

BENEARBERAT (Hit4)

For the continuing connected transactions disclosed
above, the Independent Non-executive Directors have
reviewed and confirmed that the continuing connected
transactions are in the ordinary and usual course of
business, on the normal commercial terms and in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

Kingston Financial Group Limited
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47 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

(continued)

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 (Revised) “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the HKICPA. The auditor
has issued its unqualified letter containing its findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group in pages 265 to
266 in accordance with the Main Board Listing Rule
14A.56. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided
by the Company to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

Notes:

1. Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah had controlling interest in Kingston
Finance Limited and Kingston Property Investment
Limited (2019: Kingston Finance Limiteq).

2. Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah is a common director of Sincere
Watch (Hong Kong) Limited.

3. Mr. Lee Wai Man is the father of Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah.

4. Mr. Lau Man Tak is a controlling shareholder of REF
Holdings Limited. REF Financial Press Limited is an
indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of REF Holdings
Limited.

47 EXRBEFTRBERS @

(b) (&)

RRAREEBMCEZBERE LS
MASHEMGzEEEFEHENSE
300055 (185]) [ FE ALK ER B A
BERMWEETIE]  WERESHB
F 74057 (AE5]) BN BB EmRAI
Frii#% (B RAIE X 5 MR BRET 1 | BLAR
EEHERERSHELERE - &K
B E AR IR AR T AR BI 58 14A.56 16 3L
F 265 266 AT AN EIFER
BERXSHEHERBERLRMS &P
NEABSERE LR - ARFIERE
BHAR S AR QR R % B K
HEIA -

it -

1. FHAELLHE2NEHMEERAA]
ReEMBREFRAA(ZFE-NF :
ENEHBEERAR]) 2R E -

2. ZF H# L4 #Sincere Watch (Hong
Kong) Limited & 2[R & -

3. FEXEAERFAELLZXH -

4. BIX{E 4 B REF Holdings Limited
ZHERRARER o i E R A EI R B IR 22 &)
/& REF Holdings Limited 2 E1## %2 &
K& 2 a]
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EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Since the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019
(“COVID-19”) in January 2020, a series of precautionary and
control measures of the COVID-19 has been implemented
throughout different countries and regions, including
restrictions and controls of travelling of people and traffic
arrangements, quarantine of residents, heightening of
hygiene and prevention requirements of factories and offices
and encouraged social distancing etc.

Given that COVID-19 arises certain extent of adverse impact
against the current business operations of the Group and the
overall economic environment surrounded in some operating
segments particularly, the Group will keep continuous
attention on the latest development of COVID-19, in order to
assess and react actively to its associated adverse impact
on the consolidated financial position and operating results
of the Group. Up to date when the consolidated financial
statements were approved and authorised for issue, the
Group will pay close attention to the development of
COVID-19 and the estimation on the possible range of
financial impact is still in progress.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

There are certain comparative figures disclosed in the
consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to
conform with the current year’s presentation in the
consolidated financial statements.

APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors of the Company
on 30 June 2020.
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MEBRET R EHS -
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